
Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride 

Regular Meeting of the 
Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority 

Wednesday, November 28, 2018, 1:30-4:00 p.m. 
Utah Transit Authority Headquarters,  
669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 

Golden Spike Conference Rooms 

1. Call to Order & Opening Remarks Chair Carlton Christensen 

2. Pledge of Allegiance Cathie Griffiths 

3. Safety First Minute Dave Goeres 

4. General Public Comment Period Bob Biles 

5. Approval of November 14, 2018 Board Meeting & Public
Hearing Report

Chair Carlton Christensen 

6. September 2018 Financial Report Bob Biles 

7. R2018-11-01: Resolution Amending the Bylaws of the
Utah Transit Authority

Chair Carlton Christensen 

8. R2018-11-02: Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Real
Property (Orem Bus Transfer Center)

Paul Drake 

9. R2018-11-03: Resolution Authorizing the Purchase of Real
Property (Parcels 137:A, 137:E)

Paul Drake 

10. Contracts and Change Orders
a. R2018-11-04: Resolution Authorizing Execution of the

Contract with Michelin North America, Inc. for the
Lease of Bus Tires

Eddy Cumins 

b. R2018-11-05: Resolution Authorizing Execution of the
Contract with Stantec Architecture, Inc. for
Professional Engineering Services (Depot District)

Eddy Cumins 

c. R2018-11-06: Resolution Authorizing Execution of the
Contract Amendment with Stadler US, Inc. for the
Extension of Lease Agreement (Warm Springs)

Paul Drake 

d. Revenue Contract: 7200 South Bridge (UDOT) Eddy Cumins 

11. Pre-Procurements Steve Meyer 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride


 

Website: https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees       
Live Streaming: https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

   
12. Salt Lake City Interlocal Agreement Update Nichol Bourdeaux 
    
13. Closed Session Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Strategy Session to Discuss Pending or Reasonably 

Imminent Litigation 
 

    
14. Other Business Chair Carlton Christensen 
 a. Next meeting: December 12, 2018  
   
15. Adjourn Chair Carlton Christensen 
   

Public Comment: Members of the public are invited to provide comment during the general comment period or 
prior to any action on a board resolution. Comment may be provided in person or online through 
www.rideuta.com. In order to be considerate of time and the agenda, comments are limited to 2 minutes per 
individual or 5 minutes for a designated spokesperson representing a group. Comments may also be sent via e-
mail to boardoftrustees@rideuta.com.   
 
Special Accommodation: Information related to this meeting is available in alternate format upon request by 
contacting calldredge@rideuta.com or (801) 287-3536. Request for accommodations should be made at least 
two business days in advance of the scheduled meeting. 

https://www.rideuta.com/Board-of-Trustees
https://www.youtube.com/results?search_query=utaride
http://www.rideuta.com/
mailto:boardoftrustees@rideuta.com
mailto:calldredge@rideuta.com




 
 

 

Board Members Present: 
Carlton Christensen, Chair 
Beth Holbrook 
 
Board Members Excused/Not in Attendance:  
 
Also attending were members of UTA staff, as well as interested citizens and members of the media. 
 

 
Welcome and Call to Order. Chair Christensen welcomed attendees and called the meeting to 
order at 1:31 p.m. with two board members present. The board and meeting attendees then 
recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Safety Minute. Chair Christensen yielded the floor to Dave Goeres, UTA Chief Safety, Security & 
Technology Officer, for a brief safety message. 
 
General Public Comment Period. Public comment was given by Claudia Johnson. Ms. Johnson 
requested that the positive changes initiated by the former board be continued.   
 
Public Hearing on the 2019 Tentative Budget. A motion to open the public hearing on the 
agency’s 2019 tentative budget was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by Chair 
Christensen. The motion carried unanimously and the public hearing began at 1:36 p.m. No 
public comment was given. 

A motion to close the public hearing period was made by Trustee Holbrook and seconded by 
Trustee Christensen. The motion carried unanimously and the public hearing closed at 1:37 
p.m. 

  

Report of the Meeting 
of the 

Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 
held at UTA FrontLines Headquarters located at 

669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah 
November 14, 2018 

 



 
Other Business.  
 

Next Meeting. The next meeting of the board will be on Wednesday, November 28, 
2018. 

 
Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 1:37 p.m. by motion. 

 
Transcribed by Cathie Griffiths 
Assistant to the President/CEO 
Utah Transit Authority 
cgriffiths@rideuta.com  
801.237.1945 
 
This document is not intended to serve as a full transcript as additional discussion may have 
taken place; please refer to the meeting materials, audio, or video located at 
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/497607.html for entire content. 
 
This document along with the digital recording constitute the official minutes of this meeting. 
 
 

mailto:cgriffiths@rideuta.com
https://www.utah.gov/pmn/sitemap/notice/497607.html


UTA Board Dashboard: 
September 2018

Financial Metrics Sept Actual Sept Budget
Fav/ 

(Unfav) % YTD Actual YTD Budget
Fav/ 

(Unfav) %

Sales Tax (August '18 mm $) 23.5$       24.2$     (0.64)$    -2.7% 184.8$             179.9$                4.89$        2.7%

Fare Revenue (mm) 3.8$         4.7$       (0.90)$    -19.3% 37.7$               36.2$                  1.53$        4.2%

Operating Exp (mm) 21.6$       23.2$     1.67$     7.2% 200.4$             207.3$                6.92$        3.3%

Investment Per Rider (IPR) 4.48$       5.13$     0.65$     12.7% 4.95$               5.13$                  0.18$        3.5%

IPR adj for fuel  price 4.21$       5.13$     0.92$     17.9% 4.92$               5.13$                  0.21$        4.1%

UTA Diesel Price ($/gal) 2.33$       2.20$     (0.13)$    -5.7% 2.40$               2.20$                  (0.20)$      -9.0%

Operating Metrics Sept Actual Sep-17 F/ (UF) % YTD Actual YTD 2017 F/ (UF) %

Ridership (mm) 4.04         4.01       0.0           0.8% 32.85               33.83                  (1.0)            -2.9%

Alternative Fuels $/gal  YTD Actual

CNG Price  (Bus Diesel Equiv rtl ) 1.16$        36.83$             
Debt Service Sept Actual Sep-17 Var % YTD Actual YTD 2017 Var %

Debt Service (net mm) 8.60$       8.40$     (0.20)$    -2.4% 87.21$             77.15$                (10.05)$   -13.0%

.

Revenue Development (m$)

 $-

 $5

 $10

 $15

 $20

 $25

 $30

 $35

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

M
ill

io
ns

UTA Sales Tax Trends

2017 Actual Sales Tax 2018 Budgeted Sales Tax

2018 Actual Sales Tax

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

M
ill

io
ns

UTA Ridership Trends 

YTD Act 2018 YTD Act 2017



Utah Transit Authority 
Financial Statement 

(Unaudited) 
 
 
 
 

 
September 30, 2018 

 

 

 
 



KEY ITEM REPORT EXHIBIT 1-1
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

1 Sales Tax
2 Passenger Revenue
3 Other Revenue
4 Total Revenue

5 Net Operating Expenses

Net Operating Income (Loss)

6 Debt Service
7 Other Non-Operating Expenses
8 Sale of Assets

9 Contribution to Capital Reserves

10 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB
11 Amortization
12 Depreciation
13 Total Non-cash Items

GOALS

RIDERSHIP

14

REVENUE DEVELOPMENT

15 Federal/Local/Regional

OPERATING INVESTMENT PER RIDER  Budgeted IPR is $5.13
IPR with Fuel Adjustment

16 Net Operating Expense Net Operating Expense
17 Less: Passenger Revenue - Less: Passenger Revenue -
18 Fuel Adjustment +

19 Subtotal Subtotal
20 Divided by: Ridership ÷ Divided by: Ridership ÷
21 Investment per Rider Investment per Rider

2018 %
FAVORABLE

(UNFAVORABLE)

830,341                4,128,750              

2018 VARIANCE
FAVORABLE

(UNFAVORABLE)

5,164,220$           
1,527,312             

3%

-                         

(924,565)$             

ACTUAL
YTD

55,339,750$         
297,087,172         

(207,321,961)        

89,765,211            

86,561,026            

YTD
BUDGET

205,594,250$       
36,153,172$         

(5,323,404)           

22,162,423$        

5,323,404             

23,086,988$         

3,966,516             
10,658,048           

17,579,136           

6,921,087             

(645,893)               

(2,889,334)           

87,206,919           
3,298,409             

69,069                  

210,758,470$      
37,680,484$        
59,306,266$        

107,344,347        

307,745,220        

(200,400,873)       

4%
7%
4%

3%

20%

-1%
20%

71,205,171           

September 2017

4,006,524

YTD

45,119,780
2017 Actual September 2018

4,039,537

68,384,906$        

32,853,297          32,853,297                
4.95$                   4.92$                         

36,827,447$ 

200,400,873$      200,400,873$            
(37,680,484)         (37,680,484)               

(1,083,890)                 
162,720,389        161,636,499              

-977,833
2017 YTD Difference

IPR

2018 YTD

32,853,297 33,831,130
Difference

33,013



SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA EXHIBIT 1-2
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

BALANCE SHEET

9/30/2018 9/30/2017
CURRENT ASSETS

1 Cash 11,802,162$      11,267,013$      
2 Investments (Unrestricted) 82,760,810        151,852             
3 Investments (Restricted) 151,666,769      191,926,364      
4 Receivables 63,557,057        55,464,656        
5 Receivables - Federal Grants 27,516,833        10,450,634        
6 Inventories 35,521,967        32,574,305        
7 Prepaid Expenses 2,158,461          2,077,845          
8 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 374,984,059$    303,912,669$    

9 Property, Plant & Equipment (Net) 3,053,477,009   2,987,983,105   
10 Other Assets 144,233,485      121,760,723      
11 TOTAL ASSETS 3,572,694,553$ 3,413,656,497$ 

12 Current Liabilities 24,287,565        22,872,523$      
13 Other Liabilities 274,235,030      235,378,136      
14 Net Pension Liability 100,876,554      112,925,121      
15 Outstanding Debt 2,200,346,565   2,126,802,972   
16 Equity 972,948,839      915,677,745      
17 TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 3,572,694,553$ 3,413,656,497$ 

RESTRICTED AND DESIGNATED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RECONCILIATION

RESTRICTED RESERVES
18 Debt Service Reserves 37,815,498        42,964,240        
19 2015A Sub Interest Reserves -                     
20 2018 Bond Proceeds 58,694,824        
21 Debt Service Interest Payable 27,148,291        25,459,280        
22 Risk Contingency 7,663,947          7,504,527          
23 Box Elder County ROW (sales tax) 6,865,369          5,903,843          
24 Mountain Accord 149,706             243,304             
25 Joint Insurance Trust 4,246,184          3,256,602          
26 UT County Bond Proceeds 1,473,595          43,793,851        
27 Amounts held in escrow 7,609,355          4,254,216          
28 TOTAL RESTRICTED RESERVES 151,666,769$    133,379,863$    

DESIGNATED OPERATING RESERVES
29 Service Stabilization Reserve 13,916,046$      13,525,550$      
30 Fuel Reserve 1,915,000          1,915,000          
31 Parts Reserve 3,000,000          3,000,000          
32 Operating Reserve 25,976,619        25,247,693        
33 Early Debt Retirement Reserve 39,963,175        14,858,258        
34 TOTAL DESIGNATED OPERATING RESERVES 84,770,840$      58,546,501$      

35 TOTAL RESTRICTED AND DESIGNATED CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 236,437,609$    191,926,364$    



SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA EXHIBIT 1-3
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

REVENUE & EXPENSES
ACTUAL ACTUAL YTD YTD
Sep-18 Sep-17 2018 2017

REVENUE
1 Passenger Revenue 3,773,414$    4,302,398$   37,680,484$     38,034,819$     
2 Advertising Revenue 200,000         200,000        1,800,000         1,766,664         
3 Investment Revenue 370,675         254,284        4,664,769         2,063,245         
4 Sales Tax 27,381,363    23,580,896   210,758,470     194,583,573     
5 Other Revenue 181,827         363,481        6,771,762         2,706,592         
6 Fed Operations/Preventative Maint. 5,762,579      3,998,009     46,069,735       45,014,650       
7 TOTAL REVENUE 37,669,858$  32,699,068$     307,745,220$   284,169,543$   

OPERATING EXPENSE
8 Bus Service 7,432,748$    6,949,757$   70,907,730$     66,247,939$     
9 Commuter Rail 2,148,700      1,770,374     18,209,228       15,897,642       

10 Light Rail 3,222,146      3,178,439     26,765,853       26,417,352       
11 Maintenance of Way 1,732,766      1,113,850     12,012,268       11,828,617       
12 Paratransit Service 1,301,280      1,712,495     15,578,588       14,859,027       
13 RideShare/Van Pool Services 115,720         288,552        2,161,733         2,143,434         
14 Operations Support 3,668,127      3,316,147     33,493,552       31,030,431       
15 Administration 1,942,746      1,808,939     21,271,922       21,191,883       
16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 21,564,233$  20,138,553$     200,400,873$   189,616,325$   

17 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 16,105,625$  12,560,515$     107,344,347$   94,553,218$     

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
18 Planning & Development 302,379$       346,128$      3,298,409$       3,735,386$       
19 Major Investment Studies (7,480)           -                       -                       
20 Offsetting Investment Studies -                       -                       
21 Bond Principal 182,778         766,667        10,296,666       6,680,003         
22 Bond Interest 7,901,567      7,307,318     70,961,146       62,999,427       
23 Bond Funded Interest - 2015A Sub 47,716          -                       4,914,774         
24 Bond Cost of Issuance/Fees -                 10,500          1,048,622         45,650              
25 Lease Cost 514,896         267,947        4,900,485         2,513,302         
26 Sale of Assets (80,344)          (5,323,404)       (2,365,368)       
27 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE 8,821,276$    8,738,796$       85,181,924$     78,523,174$     

28 CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVES 7,284,349$    3,821,719$       22,162,423$     16,030,044$     

OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH)
29 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB -$               31,718$        69,069$            158,590$          
30 Bond Premium/Discount Amortization (1,062,172)     (2,642,513)    (9,650,361)       (13,212,563)     
31 Bond Refunding Cost Amortization 683,649         1,370,384     6,152,842         6,851,920         
32 Future Revenue Cost Amortization 67,576           67,576          608,185            608,184            
33 Depreciation (22,721,099)   12,560,000   71,205,171       113,040,000     
34 NET OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH) (23,032,046)$ 11,387,165$     68,384,906$     107,446,131$   



  ACTUAL REPORT EXHIBIT 1-4
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

CURRENT MONTH
VARIANCE %

ACTUAL BUDGET FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
Sep-18 Sep-18 (UNFAVORABLE) (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE
1 Passenger Revenue 3,773,414$     4,677,068$     (903,654)$         -19%
2 Advertising Revenue 200,000          213,833          (13,833)             -6%
3 Investment Revenue 370,675          311,000          59,675               19%
4 Sales Tax 27,381,363     25,691,342     1,690,021          7%
5 Other Revenue 181,827          564,333          (382,506)           -68%
6 Fed Operations/Preventative Maint. 5,762,579       5,068,917       693,662             14%
7 TOTAL REVENUE 37,669,858$   36,526,493$   1,143,365$        3%

OPERATING EXPENSE
8 Bus Service 7,432,748$     8,172,215$     739,467$           9%
9 Commuter Rail 2,148,700       1,863,293       (285,407)           -15%

10 Light Rail 3,222,146       2,960,926       (261,220)           -9%
11 Maintenance of Way 1,732,766       1,578,358       (154,408)           -10%
12 Paratransit Service 1,301,280       1,924,188       622,908             32%
13 RideShare/Van Pool Services 115,720          267,535          151,815             57%
14 Operations Support 3,668,127       3,771,403       103,276             3%
15 Administration 1,942,746       2,698,129       755,383             28%
16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 21,564,233$   23,236,047$   1,671,814$        7%

17 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 16,105,625$   13,290,446$   2,815,179$        21%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
18 Planning & Development 302,379$        458,750$        156,371$           34%
19 Major Investment Studies -                     -                 -                        
20 Offsetting Investment Studies -                     -                 -                        
21 Bond Principal 182,778          -                 (182,778)           
22 Bond Interest 7,901,567       8,051,454       149,887             2%
23 Bond Funded Interest - 2015A Sub -                     -                        
24 Bond Cost of Issuance/Fees -                     5,458              5,458                 100%
25 Lease Cost 514,896          1,081,746       566,850             52%
26 Sale of Assets (80,344)          -                 80,344               
27 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE 8,821,276$     9,597,408$     776,132$           8%

28 CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVES 7,284,349$     3,693,038$     3,591,311$        -97%

OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH)
29 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB -$                   
30 Bond Premium/Discount Amortization (1,062,172)     
31 Bond Refunding Cost Amortization 683,649          
32 Future Revenue Cost Amortization 67,576            
33 Depreciation (22,721,099)   
34 NET OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH) (23,032,046)$ 



BUDGET TO ACTUAL REPORT EXHIBIT 1-5
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

YEAR TO DATE
VARIANCE %

ACTUAL BUDGET FAVORABLE FAVORABLE
Sep-18 Sep-18 (UNFAVORABLE) (UNFAVORABLE)

REVENUE
1 Passenger Revenue 37,680,484$      36,153,172$      1,527,312$       4%
2 Advertising Revenue 1,800,000          1,841,500          (41,500)             -2%
3 Investment Revenue 4,664,769          2,799,000          1,865,769         67%
4 Sales Tax 210,758,470      205,594,250      5,164,220         3%
5 Other Revenue 6,771,762          5,079,000          1,692,762         33%
6 Fed Operations/Preventative Maint. 46,069,735        45,620,250        449,485            1%
7 TOTAL REVENUE 307,745,220$    297,087,172$    10,658,048$     4%

OPERATING EXPENSE
8 Bus Service 70,907,730$      72,580,089$      1,672,359$       2%
9 Commuter Rail 18,209,228        17,140,761        (1,068,467)        -6%

10 Light Rail 26,765,853        26,451,821        (314,032)           -1%
11 Maintenance of Way 12,012,268        13,397,992        1,385,724         10%
12 Paratransit Service 15,578,588        17,220,356        1,641,768         10%
13 RideShare/Van Pool Services 2,161,733          2,407,322          245,589            10%
14 Operations Support 33,493,552        33,824,570        331,018            1%
15 Administration 21,271,922        24,299,050        3,027,128         12%
16 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 200,400,873$    207,321,961$    6,921,087$       3%

17 NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 107,344,347$    89,765,211$      17,579,136$     20%

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE (REVENUE)
18 Planning & Development 3,298,409$        4,128,750$        830,341$          20%
19 Major Investment Studies -                    -                    -                    
20 Offsetting Investment Studies -                    -                    -                    
21 Bond Principal 10,296,666        9,200,000          (1,096,666)        -12%
22 Bond Interest 70,961,146        70,976,544        15,398              0%
23 Bond Funded Interest - 2015A Sub -                    -                    -                    
24 Bond Cost of Issuance/Fees 1,048,622          49,125               (999,497)           -2035%
25 Lease Cost 4,900,485          6,335,357          1,434,872         23%
26 Sale of Assets (5,323,404)        -                    5,323,404         
27 TOTAL NON-OPERATING EXPENSE 85,181,924$      90,689,776$      5,507,852$       6%

28 CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVES 22,162,423$      (924,565)$         23,086,988$     2497%

OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH)
29 Bond Debt Service - Series 2007A CAB 69,069$             
30 Bond Premium/Discount Amortization (9,650,361)        
31 Bond Refunding Cost Amortization 6,152,842          
32 Future Revenue Cost Amortization 608,185             
33 Depreciation 71,205,171        
34 NET OTHER EXPENSES (NON-CASH) 68,384,906$      



CAPITAL PROJECTS EXHIBIT 1-6
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

2018 ANNUAL
ACTUAL BUDGET PERCENT

EXPENSES
1 REVENUE AND NON-REVENUE VEHICLES 8,572,687$         23,516,922$       36.5%
2 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 2,508,106 8,594,818 29.2%
3 FACILITIES, MAINTENANCE & ADMIN. EQUIP. 521,361 1,035,796 50.3%
4 CAPITAL PROJECTS 6,491,410 41,057,292 15.8%
5 PROVO OREM BRT 24,097,567 40,227,000 59.9%
6 AIRPORT STATION RELOCATION 1,163,120 22,901,499 5.1%
7 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR 11,557,059 29,674,141 38.9%
8 PROP 1 PROJECTS 2,108,385 11,067,067 19.1%
9 TIGER (INCLUDING PROP#1 TIGER) 526,998 13,104,294 4.0%

10 TOTAL 57,546,693$       191,178,829$     30.1%

REVENUES
14     GRANT 3,726,741$         26,114,493$       14.3%
16     PROVO-OREM TRIP 24,097,567 30,000,000         80.3%
17     LEASES (PAID TO DATE) 7,963,654           21,163,045         37.6%
18     BONDS 2,035,887           50,877,399         4.0%
19     LOCAL PARTNERS 267,510              14,318,487         1.9%
15     TRANSFER FROM OPERATING (PROP 1) 2,108,385           3,997,323           0.0%
20     UTA FUNDING 17,346,949         44,708,082         38.8%
21 TOTAL 57,546,693$       191,178,829$     30.1%



FAREBOX RECOVERY & IPR EXHIBIT 1-7
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

BY SERVICE

Sep-18 Sep-17 2018 2017
UTA

Fully Allocated Costs 21,866,611         20,138,553         200,400,872       189,616,226       
Passenger Farebox Revenue 3,773,414           4,302,398           37,680,484         38,037,824         
Passengers 4,039,537           4,006,524           32,853,297         33,831,131         
Farebox Recovery Ratio 17.3% 21.4% 18.8% 20.1%
Actual Investment per Rider $4.48 $3.95 $4.95 $4.48
GOAL Investment per Rider

BUS SERVICE
Fully Allocated Costs 10,087,404         9,194,824           94,919,176         89,196,404         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 1,295,271           1,447,418           14,508,227         14,334,306         
Passengers 1,764,311           1,708,856           14,151,355         14,602,472         
Farebox Recovery Ratio 12.8% 15.7% 15.3% 16.1%
Actual Investment per Rider $4.98 $4.53 $5.68 $5.13

LIGHT RAIL SERVICE
Fully Allocated Costs 6,566,735           5,781,467           55,399,034         53,227,054         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 1,355,069           1,495,566           13,277,838         13,161,472         
Passengers 1,641,804           1,680,617           13,422,278         13,985,515         
Farebox Recovery Ratio 20.6% 25.9% 24.0% 24.7%
Actual Investment per Rider $3.17 $2.55 $3.14 $2.86

COMMUTER RAIL SERVICE
Fully Allocated Costs 3,440,006           2,861,566           29,561,230         27,133,707         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 415,684              502,762              4,310,338           4,269,630           
Passengers 464,505              433,137              3,733,872           3,625,709           
Farebox Recovery Ratio 12.1% 17.6% 14.6% 15.7%
Actual Investment per Rider $6.51 $5.45 $6.76 $6.31

PARATRANSIT
Fully Allocated Costs 1,551,775           1,843,719           17,034,773         16,301,335         
Passenger Farebox Revenue 380,795              546,348              2,652,691           3,387,444           
Passengers 68,645                69,719                630,130              628,628              
Farebox Recovery Ratio 24.5% 29.6% 15.6% 20.8%
Actual Investment per Rider $17.06 $18.61 $22.82 $20.54

RIDESHARE
Fully Allocated Costs 220,691              456,977              3,486,659           3,757,725           
Passenger Farebox Revenue 326,596              310,304              2,931,389           2,884,971           
Passengers 100,272              114,196              915,661              988,807              
Farebox Recovery Ratio 148.0% 67.9% 84.1% 76.8%
Actual Investment per Rider ($1.06) $1.28 $0.61 $0.88

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE



FAREBOX RECOVERY & IPR EXHIBIT 1-8
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

BY TYPE

Sep-18 Sep-17 2018 2017

FULLY ALLOCATED COSTS
Bus Service $10,087,404 $9,194,824 $94,919,176 $89,196,404
Light Rail Service $6,566,735 $5,781,467 $55,399,034 $53,227,054
Commuter Rail Service $3,440,006 $2,861,566 $29,561,230 $27,133,707
Paratransit $1,551,775 $1,843,719 $17,034,773 $16,301,335
Rideshare $220,691 $456,977 $3,486,659 $3,757,725
UTA $21,866,611 $20,138,553 $200,400,872 $189,616,225

PASSENGER FAREBOX REVENUE
Bus Service $1,295,271 $1,447,418 $14,508,227 $14,334,306
Light Rail Service $1,355,069 $1,495,566 $13,277,838 $13,161,472
Commuter Rail Service $415,684 $502,762 $4,310,338 $4,269,630
Paratransit $380,795 $546,348 $2,652,691 $3,387,444
Rideshare $326,596 $310,304 $2,931,389 $2,884,971
UTA $3,773,414 $4,302,398 $37,680,484 $38,037,823

PASSENGERS
Bus Service 1,764,311           1,708,856           14,151,355         14,602,472         
Light Rail Service 1,641,804           1,680,617           13,422,278         13,985,515         
Commuter Rail Service 464,505              433,137              3,733,872           3,625,709           
Paratransit 68,645                69,719                630,130              628,628              
Rideshare 100,272              114,196              915,661              988,807              
UTA 4,039,537           4,006,524           32,853,297         33,831,130         

FAREBOX RECOVERY RATIO
Bus Service 12.8% 15.7% 15.3% 16.1%
Light Rail Service 20.6% 25.9% 24.0% 24.7%
Commuter Rail Service 12.1% 17.6% 14.6% 15.7%
Paratransit 24.5% 29.6% 15.6% 20.8%
Rideshare 148.0% 67.9% 84.1% 76.8%
UTA 17.3% 21.4% 18.8% 20.1%

ACTUAL INVESTMENT PER RIDER
Bus Service $4.98 $4.53 $5.68 $5.13
Light Rail Service $3.17 $2.55 $3.14 $2.86
Commuter Rail Service $6.51 $5.45 $6.76 $6.31
Paratransit $17.06 $18.61 $22.82 $20.54
Rideshare ($1.06) $1.28 $0.61 $0.88
UTA $4.48 $3.95 $4.95 $4.48

CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE



SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE EXHIBIT 1-9
(UNAUDITED)
As of September 30, 2018

Classification Total Current 31-60 Days 61-90 Days 90-120 Days Over 120 Days
1 Federal Government ¹ 27,516,833$   27,516,833$   
2 Local Contributions ² 49,490,894     49,490,311     583                 
3 Pass Sales 364,792          376,890          20,476            (102,472)        12,970            56,928            
4 Property Management 127,578          33,086            43,442            1,728              11,354            37,968            
5 Vanpool/Rideshare 23,357            16,426            (2,947)            5,608              14                   4,256              
6 Product Sales and Development 3,390,978       2,229,117       1,112,579       10,859            14,136            24,287            
7 Railway Worker Protection 1,800              1,800              
8 Capital Development Agreements 3,893,236       694,948          3,000,000       -                 198,288          
9 Mobility Management 1,700              -                 -                 1,700              

10 Paratransit 11,250            11,250            -                 
11 Other ³ 6,251,472       6,251,472       
12 Total 91,073,890$   86,620,333$   4,173,550$     (84,277)$        38,474$          325,810$        

Percentage Due by Aging
13 Federal Government ¹ 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
14 Local Contributions ² 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
15 Pass Sales 103.3% 5.6% -28.1% 3.6% 15.6%
16 Property Management 25.9% 34.1% 1.4% 8.9% 29.8%
17 Vanpool/Rideshare 70.3% -12.6% 24.0% 0.1% 18.2%
18 Product Sales and Development 65.7% 32.8% 0.3% 0.4% 0.7%
19 Railway Worker Protection 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 100.0%
20 Capital Development Agreements 17.9% 77.1% 0.0% 0.0% 5.1%
21 Mobility Management
22 Paratransit 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
23 Other 100.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
24 Total 95.1% 4.6% -0.1% 0.0% 0.4%

Note: 

¹ Federal preventive maintenance funds, federal RideShare funds, and federal interest subsidies for Build America Bonds
² Estimated sales tax to be distributed upon collection by the Utah State Tax Commission
³ OCIP escrow, fuel tax credit, warranty parts out for repair



SUMMARY OF APPROVED DISBURSEMENTS OVER $200,000 EXHIBIT 1-10
FROM SEPTEMBER 1, 2018 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2018
(UNAUDITED)

Contract # and Description Contract Date Vendor Check # Date Check Total
17-2212TB (7) FORD EXPLORERS (POLICE) 5/25/2017 KEN GARFF WEST VALLEY 339352 9/13/2018 214,886.00$   
R2018-05-09 ROCKY MOUNTAIN POWER 339585 9/20/2018 326,725.70     
15-577TP EMPLOYEE HEALTH CLINIC 4/28/2016 CAREHERE, LLC. 339652 9/20/2018 201,600.92     
14-1063JH TIMP FACILITY EXPANSION 7/29/2015 BIG-D CONSTRUCTION 339670 9/20/2018 1,135,993.27  
14-17TH POSITIVE TRAIN CONTROL 10/6/2014 ROCKY MOUNTAIN SYSTEMS SERVICE 339678 9/20/2018 221,077.35     
16-1846TP ON-CALL MAINTENANCE 10/7/2016 STACEY AND WITBECK, INC. 339849 9/27/2018 747,598.05     



 1 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 

AUTHORITY AMENDING THE  
BYLAWS OF THE UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY  

 
No. R2018-11-01 November 28, 2018 
 

WHEREAS, the Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and exercise 
all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local Government Entities- 
Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees (“Board”), after consulting with the Local 
Advisory Board in a joint public meeting held on November 14, 2018, desires to amend 
the Authority’s bylaws to reflect legislative changes to the Public Transit District Act, to 
establish Local Advisory Board officers and duties, and to better enable the Board to 
provide direction to the Authority. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Utah 
Transit Authority: 
 
1. That the Utah Transit Authority Bylaws, as set forth in Exhibit A, are hereby 

amended. 
 
2. That this Resolution supersedes Resolution 2017-02-01.  
 
3. That this Resolution stay in force and effect until rescinded, amended, or 

superseded by further action of the Board. 
 
4. That the Board formally ratifies prior actions taken by staff that were necessary or 

appropriate to amend the Bylaws.  
 
5. That the corporate seal be attached hereto. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 28th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
  ___________________________ 

 Carleton Christensen, Chair 
 Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
 
_______________, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
[SEAL] 



 3 

CERTIFICATE 
 
 The undersigned duly qualified Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit 
Authority certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at 
a legally convened meeting of the Board held on the 28th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 
  ___________________________ 

 Carleton Christensen, Chair 
       Board of Trustees 
 
 
______________________________ 
 
_________________, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form  
 
 
____________________ 
Legal Counsel 
 
  



 4 

Exhibit A 



 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

BYLAWS OF THE 

 

UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

 

DRAFT 11-20-2018 

 

 

 

 

 



 

2 

 

 

BYLAWS OF THE UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Section 1. Creation.   

The Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) was created pursuant to the Utah Limited 

Purpose Local Government Entities - Local Districts Act, Title 17B, Chapter One – and the Utah 

Public Transit District Act, Chapter 2(a), Part 8 of the Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amended (the 

“Act”), and is a public transit district organized under the laws of the State of Utah.  The Authority is 

comprised of its Board of Trustees, which shall hereinafter be referred to as the Board and its 

appointees shall be referred to as Trustees; the Local Advisory Board of Trustees, which shall 

hereinafter be referred to as the Advisory Board and its appointees shall be referred to as Members; 

officers; management; and employees.  It is a political subdivision of the State of Utah with those 

powers specifically granted in the Act and with implied powers necessary to carry out the objectives 

and purposes of a public transit district. 

Section 2. Duties.   

A. Trustees and Members shall act in the best interest of the Authority and in accordance 

with the Constitutions and laws of the United States of America and the State of Utah, the Act, as 

well as adopted policies. 

B. Trustees and Members have a duty to exercise due care, to act with reasonable skill and 

diligence, and to perform the duties of their office honestly, faithfully, and to the best of their 

abilities.   



 

3 

 

C. Trustees and Members have a fiduciary duty to the entire transit district.  They have a 

duty of loyalty and shall articulate and consider the interests of constituencies in the District and then 

take actions based on the best interest of the entire transit district.   

D. Trustees, Members, and their alternates have a duty to complete an annual Financial 

Disclosure Report, sign an annual Code of Conduct, provide prompt disclosure of conflict of 

interests, and recuse themselves from discussing or voting on issues for which they have a conflict of 

interest.   

E. Trustees and Members have a duty to comply with the State of Utah’s Government 

Records Access and Management Act and to maintain records consistent with applicable retention 

schedules adopted by the Authority.   

F. Trustees and Members have a duty to comply with the State of Utah’s Public Officers’ 

and Employees’ Ethics Act.    

G. Trustees and Members have a duty to maintain the confidentiality of non-public 

information obtained in their official capacities.  They shall not disclose or improperly use non-public 

information for actual or anticipated personal, economic, or political gain, or for the actual or 

anticipated personal, economic, or political gain of any other person.  They shall not rely on non-

public information obtained in an official capacity to acquire a pecuniary interest in any property, 

transaction, or enterprise.   

H. Each Trustee and Member shall report the business of the Authority to their appointing 

jurisdictions.   

Section 3. Oath of Office.  

The oath of office shall be given to all Trustees and Members before commencing the duties 

of the office.   



 

4 

 

Section 4. Indemnification.   

Trustees and Members shall be defended by the Authority against any action, suit or 

proceeding arising from an act or omission alleged to have been committed within the scope of the 

individual’s official capacity with the Authority to the full extent allowed by applicable law. 

 Section 5. Attendance. 

Each Trustee and Member is expected to serve faithfully, attend all meetings and perform 

other assignments in compliance with Board and Advisory Board policies.   

ARTICLE II — THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 

Section 1. Qualifications, Appointment, Number and Terms of Office. 

The required number of Trustees, the terms of office, qualifications, and the process of 

appointment to the Board of Trustees, shall all be as set forth in the Act, as amended.     

Section 2. Powers.   

The Board of Trustees shall have the powers provided in the Act, these Bylaws, and other 

applicable law. 

Section 3. Compensation.  

The Advisory Board shall set the compensation of the Board of Trustees.      

Section 4. Board Officers.     

The officers of the Board of Trustees shall consist of all Trustees of the Board, Secretary, 

Executive Director, Treasurer, Comptroller, and Internal Auditor.   

Section 5. Appointment of Board Officers.   
 



 

5 

 

The Board Chair shall be appointed by the Governor of the State of Utah.  The Board shall 

appoint an Executive Director by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, as well as a 

Secretary, Treasurer, Comptroller, and Internal Auditor.   

Section 6. Responsibilities of Officers. 

A. Board Chair.   

The Chair shall preside at all Board meetings and all joint meetings of the Board and 

the Advisory Board, set the agenda for Board meetings in consultation with the other 

Trustees, coordinate the agenda for Advisory Board meetings with the Advisory Board Chair, 

and shall establish the duration and timing of public comment. 

B. Board Secretary.   
 

The Secretary shall attest to all resolutions, ordinances, or orders passed by the Board 

and shall ensure that all necessary documents are filed with appropriate entities. 

C. Treasurer.  

The Treasurer may be chosen from among the members of the Board except that the 

Board Chair may not be appointed as Treasurer.  The Treasurer shall serve as custodian of all 

money, bonds, or other securities of the Authority and, in consultation with the Advisory 

Board, shall ensure that the Authority complies with the requirements of the State of Utah’s 

Money Management Act. 

D. Comptroller. 

The Controller shall oversee the Authority’s accounting and financial reporting. 

E. Internal Auditor. 

The Internal Auditor shall objectively review the Authority’s key processes and 

related internal controls; evaluate and improve the Authority’s risk management, control, and 



 

6 

 

governance processes; and report assessment results and recommendations as required by the 

Act.  The Internal Auditor shall also serve as the Authority’s Ethics Officer and shall 

investigate complaints of ethical violations. 

Section 7. Appointment of Staff. 

The Board shall hire qualified individuals, set salaries, and develop performance targets and 

evaluations for the Executive Director; Chief Internal Auditor; any vice president level officer; the 

Chief Safety, Security, and Technology Officer; and the Chief People Officer.      

Section 8. Removal of Officers. 

Trustees shall serve at the pleasure of the Governor of the State of Utah.  The Executive 

Director may be removed pursuant to the terms of the Act.  All other officers serve at the pleasure of 

the Board and may be removed by a majority vote. 

Section 9. Voting Rights and Quorum. 

Each Trustee may cast one vote on all questions, orders, resolutions, and ordinances coming 

before the Board.  A majority of all Trustees constitutes a quorum for the transaction of Board 

business.  Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or applicable State law, a majority vote or 

more of a quorum is sufficient to carry any order, resolution, ordinance or proposition before the 

Board. 

ARTICLE III — THE LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 

Section 1. Qualifications and Appointment. 

The required number of Members, the terms of office, qualifications, and the process of 

appointment to the Local Advisory Board (“Advisory Board”), shall all be as set forth in the Act, as 

amended.     

Section 2. Powers.   



 

7 

 

The Advisory Board shall have the powers provided in the Act, these Bylaws, and other 

applicable law. 

Section 3. Compensation. 

Advisory Board Members shall be compensated in compliance with Utah Administrative 

Code R25-5 Payment of Meeting Compensation (Per Diem) to Boards.   

Section 4. Advisory Board Officers. 

The officers of the Advisory Board shall consist of a Chair, Vice-Chair, and Second Vice-

Chair. 

Section 5. Election/Appointment of Advisory Board Officers. 

Members of the Advisory Board shall nominate and elect a Chair, Vice-Chair, and Second 

Vice-Chair by majority vote from among that body.  

Section 6. Term of Office for Advisory Board Officers. 
 
 Officers of the Advisory Board shall serve for a period of one year. 

Section 7. Duties of Officers.  

A. Advisory Board Chair.   

The Advisory Board Chair shall preside at all Advisory Board meetings.  The 

Advisory Board Chair shall ensure that the Advisory Board carries out its duties under the Act 

and shall coordinate the agenda with the Board Chair to accomplish this end.  The Advisory 

Board Chair shall serve as the liaison with the Board.   

B. Advisory Board Vice-Chair.   

In the absence of the Advisory Board Chair, the Advisory Board Vice-Chair shall 

carry out the duties of the Advisory Board Chair. 

C. Advisory Board Second Vice-Chair.   



 

8 

 

The Advisory Board Second Vice-Chair shall attest to all resolutions, ordinances, or 

orders passed by the Advisory Board.   

Section 8. Removal from Office. 
 
Advisory Board Officers may be removed by a majority vote of the Advisory Board.  

Advisory Board Members may be removed by a majority vote of the Advisory Board for ethical 

violations or criminal conduct.    

Section 9. Voting Rights and Quorum. 

Each Member may cast one vote on all questions, orders, resolutions, and ordinances coming 

before the Advisory Board.  A majority of all Members constitutes a quorum for the transaction of 

Advisory Board business.  Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws or applicable State law, an 

affirmative vote by fifty percent or more of a quorum is sufficient to carry any order, resolution, 

ordinance or proposition before the Advisory Board.  A quorum is not required for the adoption of a 

motion to adjourn.  

Section 10.   Alternate Board Member Representation. 

Each appointing authority shall have the right to select alternative representatives 

(“Alternate”) to the Advisory Board so that each appointing authority may be adequately represented.  

Each appointing authority desirous of selecting an Alternate shall do so in accordance with the 

procedures for selecting Board Members.  If the appointing authority’s Member is not present at a 

meeting of the Advisory Board or a committee meeting, then a properly designated Alternate may 

participate in the meeting, make motions, count toward a quorum, and vote in matters before the 

Advisory Board.  Alternates should take steps necessary to be fully informed on actions to be taken at 

meetings in which they represent their appointing authority.    



 

9 

 

ARTICLE IV — EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
 

Section 1. Powers. 

The Executive Director shall have all of the powers, duties, and responsibilities granted and 

imposed by the Act and those assigned by the Board.  In the event the position of Executive Director 

is vacant, an Interim Executive Director may be given an interim appointment by the Board until the 

position can be filled.   

Section 2. Compensation 

The compensation of the Executive Director shall be established by the Board.   

Section 3. Removal of Executive Director. 

The removal of an Executive Director shall be governed by the Act.   

ARTICLE V —  COMMITTEES 
 

Section 1. Committees. 

The Board may establish standing or ad hoc committees (“Committees”) deemed appropriate 

and shall designate their functions.  Committees shall be established, amended or disbanded by 

adoption of a Board Resolution at a duly noticed Board meeting. Committees shall meet as needed or 

as determined by the Board Chair and, once established, by the Committee chair. Members of 

Committees shall be appointed by the Board Chair and serve at the pleasure of the Board Chair.   

Section 2. Committee on Accessible Transportation. 

The Authority establishes an advisory committee on accessible transportation (“Committee on 

Accessible Transportation” or “CAT”) to offer recommendations to the Board on accessibility issues 

related to the Authority’s facilities, equipment, routes, plans and programs.  The CAT serves in an 

advisory capacity. It shall be governed and membership determined by a charter authorized and 



 

10 

 

approved by the Board that is consistent with its charge as an advisory committee to the Authority.  

The Board Chair shall appoint Members or Trustees to serve as liaison to the CAT.    

Section 3. Pension Committee.  

 The Authority establishes a Pension Committee to manage the Utah Transit Authority 

Employee Retirement Plan and Trust Agreement (“Plan”).  Representation on the Pension Committee 

shall comply with the Plan and applicable contractual obligations of the Authority.   

Section 4. Audit Committee.     

The Authority establishes an Audit Committee to direct the Internal Auditor to conduct audits 

determined to be most critical to the organization and hear the results of those reports.  The Audit 

Committee shall consist of the Board of Trustees, the Chair of the Advisory Board, and the Vice-

Chair of the Advisory Board.  The Chair of the Board of Trustees shall serve as the Chair of the Audit 

Committee. 

ARTICLE VI — MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ADVISORY BOARD 

Section 1. Open and Public Meetings. 

All meetings of the Board, its Committees, and the Advisory Board shall be open to the public 

and comply with the State of Utah’s Open and Public Meeting Act. 

Section 2. Meeting Schedule. 
 
At the beginning of each fiscal year, the Board and Advisory Board shall establish a regular 

meeting schedule by resolution.   

Section 3. Special Meetings.  

The Chair of the Board of Trustees shall call Special Meetings of the Board and joint Special 

Meetings of the Board and Advisory Board as necessary.  The Chair of the Advisory Board shall call 

Special Meetings of the Advisory Board as necessary.       



 

11 

 

Section 4. Notice of Meetings. 

Notice of all regular meetings, special meetings and emergency meetings of the Board and 

Advisory Board shall be by electronic means to Trustees and Members at electronic mail address as 

shown in the records of the Authority.  Notice of emergency meetings shall be given to Trustees and 

Members at least twenty-four hours before the meeting, if possible.  In the event twenty-four hour 

notice is not possible, each Trustee and Member shall receive the best notice which practicably can 

be given.  Notice for emergency meetings may be oral, written, or electronic.  Notices of meetings 

shall contain the date, time, place, and an agenda for the meeting.  Notice of meetings shall be posted 

on the Utah Public Notice Website. 

Section 5. Minutes of Meetings. 

Minutes of meetings shall be prepared and available to the public as required by the State of 

Utah’s Open and Public Meetings Act.   

Section 6. Electronic Attendance at Meetings.   
 
A Trustee or Member may attend a meeting via electronic means if the Trustee or Member 

provides twenty-four hour advance notice to the applicable Chair.  A Trustee or Member attending a 

meeting electronically shall be counted as present for purposes of a quorum and may fully participate 

and vote.  Only one Trustee or Member is required to be physically present for meetings that other 

Trustees or Members attend electronically.   

Section 7. Order of Business. 

The business of all meetings of the Board and Advisory Board shall be transacted as far as 

practicable in the order of business set forth in the agenda.  At any meeting where a new Trustee and 

Member is to take the oath of office and be seated, such ceremony shall be conducted prior to the 

determination of a quorum. 



 

12 

 

 ARTICLE VII — CONDUCTING BUSINESS 
 

Section 1. Resolutions, Orders and Ordinances — Vote Recorded. 

Each and every formal action by the Board and Advisory Board shall be taken by the passage 

of a resolution, order or ordinance by the Board or Advisory Board.  Resolutions and ordinances shall 

be by roll call vote with each affirmative and negative vote recorded.  Proposed resolutions and 

ordinances shall be forwarded to each Trustee and Member by electronic means at least twenty-four 

hours before the ordinance is presented for adoption.   All resolutions and ordinances passed by the 

Board and Advisory Board shall be authenticated as soon as practicable after their passage by the 

signature of the applicable Chair and attested to by the Board Secretary or Advisory Board Second 

Vice-Chair, and kept in the official records of the Authority.  A record of meetings of the Board and 

Advisory Board shall be made and retained as provided by law. 

Section 2. Adoption and Amendment of Bylaws. 

These Bylaws may be adopted and amended by an affirmative vote by a majority of the Board 

after consultation with the Advisory Board.  

Section 3. Fiscal Year.   

The fiscal year of the Authority shall commence on January 1 and end on December 31 of 

each calendar year.   

Section 4. Principal Place of Business. 

The principal place of business for the Authority, and the location of all offices and 

departments, shall be determined from time to time by the Board.  The  

Board Secretary shall publish the location of the principal place of business in the Government Entity 

Database maintained by the Division of Corporations of the State of Utah.   



 

13 

 

Section 5. Budget.   

 The Authority shall prepare an annual budget for the consideration of the Board each year in 

compliance with applicable law.  After analyzing the proposed budget and making any corrections or 

revisions that it may find necessary and consulting with the Advisory Board, the Board shall adopt a 

final annual budget prior to the end of each fiscal year.   

Section 6. Audit Reports. 

A. Annual Audit.   

The Board shall cause an annual audit of the Authority’s financial statements to be 

conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards following the end of each 

fiscal year and in compliance with the Act.  The audit shall be performed by an independent 

certified public accounting firm selected by the Board.  The auditor shall provide a signed 

auditor’s opinion as to the fair presentation of the financial position of the Authority and the 

results of Authority operations and changes in its financial position for the fiscal year ended.  

The audit shall be made available in compliance with the Act.   

B. Other Audits.  

In consultation with the Advisory Board, the Board may cause audits other than the 

annual audit to be made, which shall be made available in compliance with the Act. 

 



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 THE UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE  

SALE OF REAL PROPERTY 
(OREM BUS TRANSFER CENTER)  

 
 
R2018-11-02 November 28, 2018 

                         
 

WHEREAS, Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local 
Government Entities – Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is in the process of constructing the Provo Orem 
Transportation Improvement Project (the “Project”) in Utah County; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority owns real property located at 1145 South 750 

East in Orem City (the “Property”) that will no longer be needed for a transit use 
following the completion of the Utah County Bus Rapid Transit project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on May 23, 2018, the Board designated the Property as surplus 

and set conditions and parameters for the sale of the Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has obtained a certified appraisal identifying the 
value of the Property to be $815,000; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority has openly marketed the Property for sale for at 

least thirty (30) days and received multiple competing offers, wherein the highest and 
best offer during the marketing period was for $901,500; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority (the 
“Board”): 
 
1. That the Board hereby approves the sale of the Property, for $901,500. 

 
2. That the Board hereby approves the contract for the sale of the Property 

attached hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
3. That the Executive Director and his or her designee(s) are authorized to 

execute the attached contract and any closing statements, escrow forms 
and other documents and instruments, and take any additional actions as 
may be necessary or prudent to complete the purchase in accordance with 
the terms indicated herein. 
 



 2 

4. That the Board hereby ratifies any and all actions previously taken by the 
Authority’s management and staff with regard to the purchase of the 
Property. 

 
5. That the corporate seal be attached hereto.  
 
Approved and adopted this 28th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
         (Corporate Seal) 
 
  



 3 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned duly qualified Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit 
Authority certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Trustees held on the 28th 
day of November, 2018 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Carlton Christensen, Chair 
Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
 
 
 
 



 4 

Exhibit A 



PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT

THls PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") entered into this _ day
of 2018, by and between University Mall Shopping Center, 1.C., a Utah
limited liability company, or its assigns (hereinafter "Purchaser"), and Utah Transit Authority, a
public transit district (hereinafter "Seller"), Seller being the title owner of record of the Property,
as defined in Paragraph 1 and legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated
herein, constitutes a contract for the purchase and sale of the real property, described as
follows:

1. Property. The following real property located in Utah County, State of Utah

That certain lot of land legally described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto and
incorporated herein by this reference; together with any appurtenances, easements,
or rights-of-way pertaining to such lot of land, together with any structures,
buildings, fixtures and any other improvements on such lot as currently exist as of the
Effective Date (the "Property").

2. Consideration. The consideration for the conveyance shall be as follows:

(a) Purchase Price. The total purchase price for the Property shall be Nine Hundred
One Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($901,500.00) (the "purchase
Price"), which sum shall be funded pursuant to Sub-Paragraphs 2.d. and 2.e.

below.

(b)

(c)

(d)

ln consideration of the Purchase Price, seller shall convey to Purchaser, and
Purchaser shall acquire from seller, all rights, title, and interest in and to all
Property.

As a specific component of the consideration, Seller agrees to convey all water
rights that Seller owns which are appurtenant to the property (if any).

Earnest Money Deposit. Within two (2) business days of execution and receipt
of the fully executed original of this Agreement, Purchaser shall deliver to the
Title company (as defined in Paragraph 3) good funds, in the amount of Fifty
Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($50,000.00) as earnest money deposit for this
transaction ("Earnest Money Deposit"). The Earnest Money Deposit, and all
interest earned thereon will be applied to the Purchase Price at closing (as

defined in Paragraph 12). The Earnest Money Deposit shall be fully refundable

L

L:\WP\U_MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 8OO E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht 20181 116.docx

60



3

to Purchaser through the expiration of the lnvestigation Period (as defined in
Paragraph 9).

(e) Additional Money at Closing. ln addition to the Earnest Money Deposit, which
shall be released to Seller at Closing and applied to the Purchase Price, Purchaser
shall also pay Eight Hundred Fifty-One Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100
Dollars ($851,500.00), subject to any credits, pro-rations, or further deposits
needed under this Agreement, which sum shall be funded to the Title Company
for the benefit of Seller at the time of Closing, and disbursed in full to Seller upon
Title Company's confirmation of recordation of the Deed on the date of Closing.

Escrow. Upon Purchaser's receipt of a fully executed copy of this Agreement, Purchaser
shall open escrow within two (2) business days, with Stewart Title, 857 North 900 West
Orem, Utah 84057, Attn: Wade Taylor (the "Title Company") by depositing the Earnest
Money Deposit as provided above and delivering to the Title Company a fully executed
copy of this Agreement. Upon mutual execution by Seller and Purchaser, this
Agreement shall constitute the initial escrow instructions to the Title Company.

Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date when a fully
executed copy of this Agreement, together with Purchaser's check, or other good funds
for the Earnest Money Deposit, is deposited with the Title Company as provided in
Paragraph 3, as evidenced solely by the date inserted by the Title Company beneath its
signature on the Receipt of Earnest Money attached hereto ("Effective Date"). ln the
event Purchaser does not timely deposit the Earnest Money Deposit pursuant to Sub-
Paragraph 2.d, Purchaser may choose, in Purchaser's sole discretion, to deem the
Effective Date (1) the actual date of the Earnest Money Deposit; or (2) the date on which
the Earnest Money Deposit was due pursuant to Sub-Paragraph 2.d.

5. Seller Deliverables.

Title Commitment. Seller shall provide Purchaser, within seven (7) calendar days
after the Effective Date, a title commitment for a standard coverage owner's
policy of title insurance ("Title Commitment") issued by the Title Company in full
amount of the Purchase Price, subject only to the lien for current year taxes not
yet payable (which taxes shall be paid by Purchaser and Seller as provided below),
and such other liens and encumbrances as shall be approved by Purchaser
pursuant to Paragraphs 6 and 7, in its sole discretion, as well as showing all
matters affecting title to the Property including all exceptions, easements,
restrictions, rights-of-way, covenants, reservations and other conditions or
encumbrances affecting the Property, together with legible copies of all recorded
documents constituting such exceptions. Seller shall be responsible, at its sole
cost and expense, to obtain the Title Commitment for the Property, but Purchaser
shall be responsible, at its sole cost and expense, to procure a survey for the
Property and any other third-party reports it may desire or may be required by

4.

a.

9q
2

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA BOO E Land\l040_UTA_PSA-wht-2018.1 116.docx



b

Purchaser's lender. Seller shall pay for an ALTA standard and extended coverage
title insurance policy. Purchaser may pay for any additional endorsement that
Purchaser may desire or Purchaser's lender may require.

Survey. Seller shall, within five (5) days of the Effective Date, provide to
Purchaser with its most current ALTA Survey to the extent that it has an ALTA
Survey in its possession.

All items outlined in this Paragraph 5 shall be defined as "Due Diligence Documents"

Title and Survey Objections. Purchaser shall have until fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration of the lnvestigation Period, to provide written notice to Seller of (1) any
matters contained in the Title Commitment to which Purchaser objects ("Title
Objections") and (2) any matters contained in the Title Commitment to which Purchaser
approves. Purchaser shall have a period of five (5) business days after receipt of any
survey performed under Paragraph 8 to provide objections to matters in such survey,
whether disclosed, absent, or otherwise arising from the survey ("Survey Objections").
Title Objections and Survey Objections shall collectively be referred to as "Objections".
Any matters in the Title Commitment to which Purchaser does not expressly object by
timely written notice under this Paragraph 6 shall be "Permitted Exceptions". Only
Objections to which Purchaser expressly objects by timely written notice under this
Paragraph 6 shall be deemed not to be Permitted Exceptions.

Curing Objections. Seller shall have until the date that is five (5) business days prior to
the expiration of the lnvestigation Period to cure the Objections to the satisfaction of
Purchaser ("Seller's Curing Period") or elect not to cure the same by written notice to
Purchaser ("Seller's Cure Notice"); provided, however, all consensual monetary
encumbrances, materialmen's liens, labor liens, mechanics liens, or other liens for
services or materials provided to the Property recorded against the Property shall be
discharged or otherwise removed by Seller on or before Closing and shall automatically
be deemed not to constitute Permitted Exceptions. ln the event Survey Objections are
provided on or after the date of expiration of the lnvestigation Period, Seller's Curing
Period with regard to Survey Objections shall be five (5) business days from receipt of
Purchaser's Survey Objections ("Survey Cure Period"); Purchaser's termination rights
together with rights to refund of the Earnest Money Deposit shall then extend to five (5)

business days from the expiration of the Survey Cure Period. lf Seller gives notice that
Seller elects not to cure the Objections to Purchaser's satisfaction within Seller's Curing
Period, then Purchaser may (a) waive any such Objections and proceed to Closing, or (b)

terminate this Agreement and receive an immediate and complete refund of the Earnest
Money Deposit and any interest earned thereupon. lf Purchaser proceeds to Closing
through written notice, Purchaser shall be deemed to have waived any Objections and
such Objections shall be deemed Permitted Exceptions.

6.

7

6w

3

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 8OO E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht 20,]81 116.docx



8 lnvestigations. From the Effective Date through the expiration of the lnvestigation
Period Purchaser, Purchaser's officers, agents, contractors, representatives and any other
party performing investigations on behalf of Purchaser shall have the right to enter upon
the Property to conduct investigations, including without limitation, obtaining or
performing surveys, soils and/or water tests, engineering studies, feasibility studies,
environmental assessments and inspections, including, but not limited to, obtaining or
performing any invasive testing commonly referred to as "Phase ll" testing, evaluating
the availability of utilities, drainage, and access, inspecting and verifying Due Diligence
Documents, tenant and property manager interviews, and performing such other
investigations as Purchaser may desire to determine, in Purchaser's sole discretion, the
suitability of the Property for Purchaser's intended use ("tnvestigations"). Through the
expiration of the lnvestigation Period, Purchaser may terminate this Agreement, in
Purchaser's sole discretion for any or no reason.

lnvestigation Period. From the Effective Date through 5:00 p.m. Mountain Time on the
date that is thirty (30) business days after the Effective Date ("lnvestigation Period").

Environmental Audit. Purchaser may choose to conduct, at its expense, an
environmental audit and lnvestigations regarding the environmental condition of the
Property, including but not limited to, invasive soils, groundwater, and building materials
test as Purchaser considers prudent to make an informed decision on environmental
conditions under the current condition of the Property.

Condemnation. lf, prior to the Closing, Seller receives notice that a condemnation or
eminent domain action is threatened or has been filed against the Property or any part
thereof (or that a taking is pending or contemplated), Seller shall promptly give notice
thereof to Purchaser. lf such taking is of a portion of the Property such that the value or
usefulness of the Property is, in Purchaser's sole discretion, materially impaired or
reduced, Purchaser may elect, by written notice delivered to Seller within thirty (30) days
after receipt of Purchaser's notice, to terminate this Agreement and the Escrow, in which
event neither party shall have any further obligation hereunder and Purchaser shall
receive a full refund and disbursement of all of the Earnest Money Deposit, any
provisions providing for the non-refundability of such Earnest Money Deposit
notwithstanding, deposited with the Title Company.

Closing. The conveyance of the Property to Purchaser shall be at Closing at the office of
the Title Company and shall occur thirty (30) days after the Effective Date ("Closing").

13. Closing Documents. The following documents shall be delivered at Closing:

Deed. Seller shall deliver a special warranty deed in substantially the form
attached hereto as Exhibit "8" ("Deed") executed and acknowledged by Seller,
conveying to Purchaser good and marketable title to the Property free and clear

9

10.

11

12.

a

Ma,
4

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\'l040_UTA PSA-wht 20181 116.docx



b.

of all restrictions, easements, liens, assessments, tenancies, (whether recorded or
unrecorded) and other encumbrances, except for matters of record.

Title Policy. Seller shall furnish, at Seller's expense, a standard or extended
coverage owner's title insurance policy, or ALTA equivalent issued by the Title
Company. The policy shall be in the amount of the Purchase Price and shall
guarantee that Purchaser's title to the Property is good and indefeasible subject
only to the Permitted Exceptions approved by Purchaser pursuant to Paragraphs
6 and 7. Purchaser may elect to obtain any endorsements it may desire, and
may condition Closing on the Title Company's ability or willingness to provide
ALTA extended title coverage and/or any endorsements to the title policy.

FIRPTA. Unless an exemption applies, the Foreign lnvestment in Real Property
Tax Act ("F|RPTA") requires that every Purchaser of real estate in the United
States withhold from Seller's proceeds an amount equal to fifteen percent (15o/o)

of the gross sales price. Seller shall furnish to Purchaser through escrow a

FIRPTA affidavit executed by Seller.

Assignments of Leases and Contracts. Seller shall furnish at Closing, valid,
approved and fully executed assignments of leases and contracts approved by
Purchaser in writing prior to Closing, if any, for the benefit of Purchaser. ln the
event any tenant of the Property has a security deposit or other obligation under
their respective lease secured by a letter of credit, Seller shall cause the issuing
bank to either re-issue such letter of credit in the name of Purchaser as

beneficiary, or transfer such letter of credit to the Purchaser as beneficiary. ln the
event Seller cannot cause all necessary documentation to effectuate such transfer
or re-issuance to Purchaser as beneficiary of the subject letter of credit ("LOC

Transfer Documents") to be deposited into escrow prior to the date of Closing,
an amount equal to the amount of the subject letter of credit ("LOC Escrow")
shall be held back in escrow until the earlier of (1) Seller delivery of LOC Transfer
Documents to Purchaser; or (2) one hundred eighty (180) days after the date of
Closing ("LOC Transfer Period") at which time the LOC Escrow shall be either (l)

disbursed to Seller in the event the LOC Transfer Documents are delivered to
Purchaser; or (ll) disbursed to Purchaser as fully negotiated LIQUIDATED

DAMAGES in the event the LOC Transfer Period expires with no delivery of LOC

Transfer Documents to Purchaser. Seller and Purchaser acknowledge and agree
that the risk of such a tenant's default and lack of security underlying such

tenant's obligation is impractical or impossible to reasonably calculate and the
above-agreed LOC Escrow disbursement to Purchaser is fully negotiated as

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES reasonably estimated to make Purchaser whole in such a

circumstance. ln the event the LOC Escrow is disbursed to Purchaser, Seller's shall
be released from Seller's obligation to deliver the LOC Transfer Documents to
Purchaser.

c.

d

c,

5

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 116.docx



Real Property Transfer Affidavit. Any affidavit or other documentation of value
exchanged for real property required in the state in which the Property lies shall
be executed and delivered by Seller at Closing.

Estoppels. Estoppel certificates in the form first provided by Purchaser's
lender providing financing for the Purchase Price ("Tenant Estoppel
Certificates") for tenants comprising 100o/o of the leased square footage as of
the Effective Date. ln the event a particular tenant's lease provides a form of
SNDA or estoppel attached, Seller shall deliver such form prior to delivery to
tenant, pursuant to Paragraph 5c.(x), for lender review, comments, and revisions

Tenant Deposit Documentation. Any documentation required by any bank
issuing a letter of credit for purposes of a tenant security deposit under any
Lease, together with full execution by Seller of any such documentation required
to transfer such letter of credit to name Purchaser as beneficiary thereunder.
Seller shall also remit to Purchaser at Closing a cashiers check sufficient to cover
all fees related to the transfer of any letter of credit issued for the purpose of a

tenant security deposit under any Lease.

Ground Lease. Seller and Purchaser shall negotiate prior to, and execute on the
day of Closing, a ground lease naming Seller as tenant of the Property and
Purchaser as landlord of the Property ("Ground Lease"). The Ground Lease will
include but not be limited to the following terms: (1) Purchaser will lease fee title
to the Property back to Seller for up to twelve (12) months ("Rental Term"); (2)

Seller will pay a monthly rent of Six Thousand Ten and 00/100 Dollars ($0,0t0.00);
and (3) Purchaser shall grant Seller free rent during the first nine (9) months of
such Rental Term.

14. Post-ClosingMatters: IntentionallyOmitted]

15 Closing Costs. Closing costs and pro-rations shall be prorated as of the date of Closing
as follows:

a Taxes and Utilities. All ad valorem taxes and utilities shall be prorated based on
a 365-day year. lf the current year's taxes are not known as of the date of
Closing, the proration shall be based upon the previous year's taxes with an
adjustment made between Seller and Purchaser when the current year's taxes are
known. All rollback taxes, when due, shall be the responsibility of Seller. Any
real property transfer tax shall be the responsibility of Seller. This Sub-
Paragraph 15.a. shall survive Closing and not merge with any deed until the date
that such adjustment has been made.

e

f

g

h.

m\7

6

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 116.docx

tu



b. Prepayment Penalties. Seller shall pay all prepayment penalties and other
amounts necessaryto release all existing notes, liens, deeds of trust, and security
interests against the Property.

Fees. Any escrow fee charged by the Title Company shall be shared equally by
Seller and Purchaser. Each party shall pay its own attorneys'fees. Purchaser
shall pay the cost of recording the Deed.

c.

seller's other closing costs. seller shall be responsible for any real estate
brokerage fee, and all title insurance premiums for a standard or extended
coverage owner's policy of title insurance or ALTA Equivalent, and any cost for
removing any liens and encumbrances contained in the Title Commitment that
are not Permitted Exceptions.

e. Other. All other bills or charges, including other recording fees, any state or
local documentary stamps, transfer taxes or fees, assessments for improvements
completed or initiated prior to the closing, whether levied or not, pertaining to
the Property as of the date of closing shall be allocated according to local
custom of the Title Company.

No Re-proration. All prorations under this Paragraph 15 are final, except for
those under Sub-Paragraph 15.a. in the event current year taxes are not known at
the date of Closing. There shall be no re-proration after an initial proration has
been applied at closing, except for those under sub-Paragraph 15.a. in the event
current year taxes are not known on the date of Closing.

Possession. Possession of the Property, subject to the terms of this Agreement, shall be
delivered to Purchaser on the date of Closing, free and clear of all leases, tenancies and
occupancies, except for those appearing in Due Diligence Documents and approved
pursuant to Sub-Paragraph 13.d. Seller shall have no obligation to remove exceptions
to title. Purchaser may terminate if Seller refuses to remove any exceptions to title.
Seller agrees that any improvements remaining on the Property after the date of Closing
shall belong to Purchaser.

17. Seller Representations and Warranties.

Notwithstanding the foregoing and any other provision to the contrary, Seller hereby
warrants, covenants and represents to Purchaser the following:

Good and Marketable Title. Seller shall have at Closing, and shall transfer and
convey to Purchaser, indefeasible title to the Property, free and clear of all liens
and encumbrances and no party, except as herein set forth, has or shall have at
Closing any rights in, or to acquire, the Property, except as set forth in the
Permitted Exceptions.

d.

f

16.

a

7

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA BOO E Land\1040-UTA_PSA-wht 2018.1 116.docx

{p



b Compliance with Other Documents. Seller is a not a party to, subject to, or
bound by any restrictions, covenant, lease, contract, indenture, trust, agreement
of any nature, mortgage, deed of trust, loan agreement, security agreement,
judgment, order, writ, injunction or decree of any court or governmental body,
that prohibits or impairs Seller's performance under this Agreement.

Conformity with Law. The Property conforms to, and is operated, maintained
and used in accordance with, all applicable city, county, state, federal and other
applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations to the extent that the
laws are applied to the current and historical use of the Property and Seller's
historic use of the Property complies with all private deed restrictions and
restrictive covenant agreements affecting the Property.

No Material Adverse Change. Seller shall inform Purchaser in writing of any
material adverse change in the condition, financial or otherwise, of the Property,
or the operation thereoi which occurs at any time prior to Closing.

Organization and Standing. lf Seller is a limited liability company, corporation,
partnership, trust or other legal entity, Seller represents and warrants that Seller is

duly formed and validly existing under the laws of the state in which Seller was
organized and duly qualified to transact business in the state in which the
Property lies. The signatory executing this Agreement and any documents
delivered in connection with this Agreement on behalf of Seller has full power
and authority to bind Seller.

Bankruptcy or lnsolvency Proceedings. Seller has not (i) made a general

assignment for the benefit of its creditors, (ii) filed any voluntary petition in
bankruptcy or suffered the filing of an involuntary petition in bankruptcy by
Seller's creditors, (iii) suffered the appointment of a receiver to take possession of
all or substantially all of Seller's assets, (iv) suffered the attachment or other
judicial seizure of all or substantially all of Seller's assets, (v) admitted in writing
its inability to pay its debts as they become due, or (vi) made an offer of
settlement, extension or composition to its creditors generally.

No Litigation. There is no litigation, investigation or proceeding pbnding,
contemplated, or threatened against Seller or the Property which would impair or
adversely affect Seller's ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement or
which will affect the Property after Closing.

No Notification of Condemnation. Seller has not received written notification
from any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Property of any
pending or threatened condemnation of the Property or any portion thereof.

c.

f

d.

e

g

h

8

L:\WP\U-MALTLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 1 16.docx
hCI)



k.

Seller's Due Diligence Documents. Seller's Due Diligence Documents delivered
to Purchaser under Paragraph 5 aretrue, correct, and complete in all material
respects according to the best of Seller's knowledge.

No Binding Offer. Seller is not currently obligated to sell the Property or any
portion thereof to any party or entity other that Purchaser, nor do there exist any
rights of first refusal or options to purchase the Property or any portion thereof.

Environmental. Neither Seller, nor any tenant of Seller, has engaged in or
permitted any violation of state, federal, or local laws ("Environmental Laws")
and regulations governing or in any way relating to the generation, handling,
manufacturing, treatment, storage, use, transportation, spillage, leakage,
dumping, discharge, disposal (each whether accidental or intentional)
("Hazardous Activities"), with regard to toxic or hazardous substances, material
or wastes as defined by Environmental Laws ("Hazardous Materials"), on, in, or
about the Property or any portion thereof or in any manner giving rise to a

recognized environmental condition under ASTM standards. Seller has no
knowledge of any proceeding or inquiry by any governmental authority with
respect to any matter set forth in this Sub-Paragraph 17.k.

Fee Title Owner. Seller is the owner of fee title to the real property and other
assets described in Paragraph 1 comprising the Property. There are no
unrecorded or undisclosed documents that affect title to the Property other than
the documents disclosed under Sub-Paragraph 5.c. that may or may not be
recorded.

FIRPTA. Under the Foreign lnvestment in Real Property Tax Act of 1980
("FIRPTA'), persons purchasing U.S. real property interests from foreign persons
are required to withhold fifteen percent (15o/o) of the amount realized on the
disposition of such real property. Seller is neither a "foreign person" nor a
"foreign corporation" as those terms are defined for purposes of FIRPTA.

OFAC. Neither Seller nor any of its affiliates, nor any of their respective partners,
members, shareholders or other equity owners, and none of their respective
employees, officers, directors, representatives or agents is, nor will they become,
a person or entity with whom United States persons or entities are restricted from
daily business under regulations of the Office of Foreign Asset Control ("OFAC")

of the Department of the Treasury (including those named as OFAC's Specially
Designated and Blocked Person list) or under any statute, executive order
(including without limitation, the September 24,2001 Executive Order Blocking
Property and Prohibiting Transactions With Persons Who Commit, Threaten to
Commit, or Support Terrorism), or other governmental action, and is not and will
not engage in any dealings or transactions or be otherwise associated with such
persons or entities.

m

n

9

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 8OO E Land\1040-UTA-PSA_wht 20181 1 16.docx YCI)



18

o. lndemnity. Seller shall indemnify and hold Purchaser harmless from and against
any claim, liability, damage or exposure (including reasonable attorneys'fees)
asserted against or suffered by Purchaser arising from a breach by Seller of
Seller's representations and warranties under this Paragraph 17. Both Seller's
representations and warranties under this Paragra ph 17 , and Seller's
indemnification obligations under this Sub-Paragraph 17.o. shall survive the date
of Closing or early termination of this Agreement, and shall not merge with the
deed or any other document at Closing.

Notices. Any notice or designation to be given hereunder shall be given (i) by placing
the notice or designation in the United States mail, certified or registered, properly
stamped and addressed to the exact address of the respective party shown below, by
personal delivery to such address by a party, or by a delivery service which documents
delivery, and such notice or designation shall be deemed to be received upon such
placing in the mails or such delivery; or (ii) by email to the email address for the
respective party below, and such notice or designation shall be sent with a receipt
confirmation request. Email notices under Paragraph 18(ii) shall be deemed to be
received upon the sending party's receipt of a receipt confirmation or one (1) hour day
after such email has left the sending party's email server, whichever is earlier.

Email notices under Paragraph 18(ii) shall only be deemed received by Purchaser if (a)

such email notice is sent including the following in the subject line 1040-5640-UTA; and
(b) such email notice is followed by a hard copy notice in compliance with Paragraph
18(i). Dates of receipt under Paragraph 18(ii) shall prevail over dates of receipt under
Paragraph 18(i):

PURCHASER: University Mall Shopping Center, L.C.

c/o Wood bury Corporation
Attn: Legal Department
2733 East Parleys Way, Suite 300,

salt Lake City, utah 84109
Ref:1040-5640 UTA

Emai I : lega I notices@wood bu rycorp.com

SELLER: Utah Transit Authority
Attn: Spencer Burgoyne,
Mgr. of Property Administration
669 West 200 South
Salt Lake city, UT 84101
Email: SBurgoyne@rideuta.com

0l
L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 116.docx

10

n



19,

20

TITLE COMPANY Stewart Title Guarantee Company
Attn:Wade Taylor
857 North 900 West
Orem, Utah 84057
Emai l: wade.taylor@stewa rt.com

Cc: mark.day@stewa rt.com

A party may change its notice address set out under this Paragraph 18 only by delivering
notice to the other party pursuant to the terms of this Paragraph 18.

Termination. lf this Agreement is terminated or Closing does not occur because of the
failure of any condition, Seller default, Seller breach, or the occurrence of an event giving
rise to a termination right by Purchaser as set forth herein, all monies deposited by
Purchaser hereunder, including the Earnest Money Deposit, shall be returned to it. lf
Closing does not occur due solely to a default by Purchaser, Seller shall retain the Earnest
Money Deposit and all other deposits as liquidated damages and Seller's sole remedy.
SELLER AND PURCHASER AGREE THAT IT WOULD BE IMPRACTICAL OR EXTREMELY

DIFFICULT TO FIX THE ACTUAL DAMAGES TO SELLER IN THE EVENT OF PURCHASER'S

DEFAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE THAT A
REASONABLE ESTIMATE OF SUCH DAMAGES IS AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE EARNEST

MONEY DEPOSIT AND ALL OTHER DEPOSITS, AND IN THE EVENT OF PURCHASER'S

DEFAULT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, SELLER SHALL BE ENTITLED TO RECEIVE AND
RETAIN AS FULLY AGREED LIQUIDATED DAMAGES THE ENTIRE EARNEST MONEY
DEPOSIT AS SELLER'S SOLE REMEDY, ALL OTHER REMEDIES BEING HEREIN EXPRESSLY

WAIVED BY SELLER.

ln the event of Seller's default or breach, Purchaser may, at its option (i) terminate this
Agreement upon written notice to Seller, and recover from Seller all damages incurred or
suffered by Purchaser, and recover from the Title Company the Earnest Money Deposit;
and/or (ii) pursue all other remedies available at law or in equity, including specific
performance.

lf Purchaser disapproves of the condition of the Property during the lnvestigation Period
for any reason, Purchaser shall have the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to
terminate this Agreement and to receive a full refund of the Earnest Money Deposit, less

Purchaser's share of any approved Title Company and/or title insurer cancellation fees
and charges.

Real Estate Agents. Purchaser and Seller each represent to the other that they have not
dealt with any real estate broker in connection with this Agreement other than
Woodbury Corporation as representing agent for Purchaser. Purchaser and Seller each
agree to indemnify and hold each other harmless from and against the claims of their
respective agents and/or any other brokers or other intermediaries claiming to have had
any dealings, negotiations or consultations with the indemnifying party in connection

vil)L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\l040_UTA_PSA-wht_2018i 1 16.docx
LT



21,

22,

23,

24.

with this Agreement. The parties acknowledge that certain of the Purchaser's and
Seller's principals may be Utah Real Estate licensees purchasing for their own account,
and each of Purchaser and Seller shall have no obligation to pay commissions on behalf
of the other party. This Paragraph 20 is for informational purposes only. This
Paragraph 20 shall not be interpreted or deemed to grant any third-person beneficiary
rights to any party who is not a party to this Agreement.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains all agreements between the parties and
any agreement not contained herein shall not be recognized by the parties.

Binding Effects. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the
parties and their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns.

Attorneys' Fees. ln any action arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing party shall
be entitled to costs and reasonable attorneys'fees.

Risk of Loss. All risk of loss or damage to the property shall be borne by Seller until
Closing. ln the event of any damage, destruction or condemnation of all or any of the
Property prior to the date of Closing, Purchaser may elect to terminate its obligation to
purchase the Property or proceed to complete the sale with all insurance proceeds for
such damage, destruction, or condemnation assigned by Seller to Purchaser for
Purchaser's benefit.

Assignment. Purchaser shall have the right to assign its right to purchase the Property
as defined in this Agreement.

Lender Approval. This Agreement is subject to Purchaser's ability, through good faith
efforts, to secure financing acceptable to Purchaser for the purposes of funding at the
date of Closing. ln the event Purchaser cannot secure such financing, Purchaser may
terminate this Agreement at any time upon notice to Seller. All rights and obligations
under this Agreement shall also terminate except those expressly surviving termination

1031 Exchange. The parties acknowledge that either of them may choose to
consummate the transaction contemplated by this Agreement through an exchange
permitted by Section 1031 of the lnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (an
"Exchange"). The parties shall reasonably cooperate with one another in accomplishing
such Exchange; provided, however, that neither party shall have any obligation to do
anything that would cause it to incur any liability or obligation or to take title to any
property other than the Property, as defined in Paragraph 1; and provided further that
such Exchange shall in no event delay the Closing. The party electing to utilize an
Exchange shall pay all costs and expenses associated with such Exchange. The
completion of an Exchange shall not be a condition of Closing so long as the party that
does not seek to affect such Exchange has reasonably cooperated with the other party as

contemplated by this Paragraph 27. lf either party elects to utilize an Exchange, such

25

26.

27

0
L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 8OO E Land\1040_UTA-PSA-wht_2018.1 1 16,docx

12

0/



29.

28.

30.

31

32.

33

electing party may assign all of its right, under this Agreement, but not delegate any of
its obligations under this Agreement, to a "qualified intermediary" as such term is
defined in the income tax regulations under Section 1031 of the lnternal Revenue Code.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by, construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the state in which the property is situated. The provisions of
this Paragraph 28 shall survive the termination of this Agreement without expiration
thereafter.

No Waiver. The waiver by one party of the performance of any covenant or condition
hereunder shall not invalidate this Agreement, nor shall it be considered to be a waiver
by such party or the other party, of any other covenant or condition hereunder. The
exercise of any remedy provided by law and the provisions of this Agreement for any
remedy shall not exclude other remedies unless they are expressly excluded.

Third-Party Beneficiaries. The provisions of this Agreement are solely for the benefit of
Seller and Purchaser and their successors and assigns, and no other person or entity shall
be entitled to any of the benefits or privileges hereof or to enforce any provisions of this
Agreement unless otherwise expressly stated herein. This Paragraph 30 shall survive
Closing without expiration thereafter.

Construction. The parties acknowledge and agree that each party is a sophisticated
party with experience in the relevant industry, that each party and its counsel have
reviewed this Agreement and that any rule of construction to the effect that ambiguities
are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply in the interpretation of this
Agreement or any amendments, exhibits or schedules hereto. This Paragraph 31 shall
survive Closing without expiration thereafter.

Recordation. Except as expressly set out to the contrary hereunder, neither party to this
Agreement shall record this Agreement, or any instrument, memorandum, or any other
document evidencing or referencing this Agreement, in any county and/or the official
records of any county.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by signing in counterparts of this
instrument, which shall constitute a valid execution and this instrument and all of its
counterparts shall be deemed for all purposes to be a single instrument. Facsimile and
electronic signatures shall bind the party transmitting such signature to the same extent
as an original for all purposes under the law.

Conduct of Business Before Closing. Prior to the Closing, the Property shall be operated
in the ordinary course of business consistent with previous practice.

Calculation of Dates. Business Days. Any calculation of a number of calendar days
described in this Agreement resulting in a deadline or expiration of any time period

34.

WW

35

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_201 81 1 1 6.docx
13



36.

hereunder falling on a Saturday, Sunday, or Holiday, shall be extended to the next
business day. Any reference to "business days" in this Agreement shall include
Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays, Thursdays, and Fridays. Any reference to "business
days" in this Agreement shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays, and Holidays. "Holiday" or
"Holidays" shall mean any day officially recognized by the United States government or
the Utah State government as a holiday on which government offices and/or banks are
closed.

Enforceability. Severability. Any term or provision of this Agreement which is invalid or
unenforceable in any jurisdiction will, as to that jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent
of such invalidity or unenforceability without rendering invalid or unenforceable the
remaining terms and provisions of this Agreement or affecting the validity or
enforceability of any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement in any other
jurisdiction. lf any provision of this Agreement is so broad as to be unenforceable, the
provision will be interpreted to be only so broad as is enforceable.

[Signature pages to follow]

fr)

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht 20181 1 16.docx
14



lN WITNESS WHEREOF, as of the date first above written, Purchaser and Seller have

executed this Ag reement.

SELLER: UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a public transit district

By:

Its:

By:

Its:

PURCHASER: UNIVERSITY MALL SHOPPING CENTE& 1.C.,

a Utah limited liability company

By: WOODBURY MANAGEMENT COMPANY, 1.C.,

a Utah limited liabil , lts Manager

By:

Its:

By:

Its:

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 116.docx
15



RECEIPT OF EARNEST MONEV

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of a check or other good funds in the
amount of Fifty Thousand and 00/100 Dollars ($50,000.00) as Earnest Money Deposit under the
foregoing Agreement. The undersigned shall promptly cash the check and hold the proceeds

as Earnest Money Deposit in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The undersigned
shall promptly notify the parties if these instructions are for any reason not carried out.

Stewart Title Guarantee Company

By:

Name:

Title:

Date:

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1 040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 1 16.docx
L6



EXHIBIT "A"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All of Lot 1 of "Plat B UTA Subdivision" according to the official plat thereof on file and
of record in the Utah County Recorder's office as Entry #64142, Map #7203.

CI fr

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\l040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181116.docx
L7



WHEN RECORDED RETURN TO:
University Mall Shopping Centeq L.C.

SPECIAL WARRANTY DEED

("Grantor"), hereby conveys and warrants to University Mall Shopping Center, L.C., a
Utah limited liability company ( "Grantee"), subject only to all matters of record, only against all who
claim by, through, or under the Grantor, for the sum of _ and 00/100 Dollars ($_), the following
described tract of land in Utah County, Utah, to wit:

See Exhibit 66i" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference (the "Property").

WitnessthehandofsaidGrantorthisthedayof-,20l-.

By:

By

Dated:

[Acknowledgements Begin on Following Page]

,vD

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_20181 116.docx
18



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I End of Acknow ledgements ]
fExhibit "i" Begins on Following Page]

trCI

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-whI_201811 1 6.docx
L9



EXHIBIT "i"

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

All of Lot 1 of "Plat B UTA Subdivision" according to the official plat thereof on file and
of record in the Utah County Recorder's office as Entry #64142, Map #7203.

d

L:\WP\U-MALLLASSET MANAGMEN\NEW DEALS\UTA 800 E Land\1040_UTA_PSA-wht_201811'16.docx
20



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
 THE UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING THE  

PURCHASE OF REAL PROPERTY 
(PARCELS 137:A, 137:E)  

 
 
R2018-11-03 November 28, 2018 

                         
 

WHEREAS, Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local 
Government Entities – Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority is in the process of constructing the Provo Orem 
Transportation Improvement Project (the “Project”) in Utah County; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Authority requires approximately 11363 square feet or 

0.2609 acres of property in fee and approximately 21435 square feet or 0.492 
acres for a temporary construction easement located at approximately 40 East 
1300 South, Orem, UT 84058 (the “Property”) for the purpose of widening 
University Parkway and related Project improvements; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Authority has obtained a certified appraisal identifying the 
value of the Property to be $227,260 and the temporary easement at $41,841 and 
the improvements valued at $24,176 for a total value (including rounding) of 
$293,300; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property owners dispute the Authority’s valuation of the 

Property and, on September 18, 2017, received an appraisal of the Property for 
$657,800; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property owners have agreed to accept $500,000 for the sale 

of the Property in settlement of the dispute; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration has reviewed the Authority’s 

administrative settlement of this dispute and determined that it is reasonable. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority (the 

“Board”): 
 
1. That the Board hereby approves the purchase of the Property, Easement, 

and administrative settlement in the amount of $500,000. 
 



 2 

2. That the Board hereby approves the contract for the purchase of the 
Property attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
3. That the Executive Director and his designee(s) are authorized to execute 

the attached contract and any closing statements, escrow forms and other 
documents and instruments, and take any additional actions as may be 
necessary or prudent to complete the purchase in accordance with the 
terms indicated herein. 
 

4. That the Board hereby ratifies any and all actions previously taken by the 
Authority’s management and staff with regard to the purchase of the 
Property. 

 
5. That the corporate seal be attached hereto.  
 
Approved and adopted this 28th day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
         (Corporate Seal) 
 
  



 3 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned duly qualified Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit 
Authority certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Trustees held on the 28th 
day of November, 2018 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Carlton Christensen, Chair 
Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
 
 
 
 
  



 4 

Exhibit A 



Utah Transit Authority 
Right of Way Contract 

Revised: 08/06/2012 Approved by Utah Attorney General's Office Page 1 of 3    
Grantor's Initials 

 

 

Fee Simple Acquisition - Strip 
Project No: S-0265(23)3 Parcel No.(s): 137:A, 137:E 

 
Pin No: 10266 Job/Proj No: Project Location: Provo/Orem Transportation Improvement Project 
County of Property: UTAH Tax ID / Sidwell No: 57:012:0001 
Property Address: 40 East 1300 South OREM UT, 84058 
Owner's Address: 1 Ashley Way,Arcadia,WI,54612 
Primary Phone: 866-403-5272 Owner's Home Phone: Owner's Work Phone: (866)403-5272 
Owner / Grantor (s): Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
Grantee: Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 

 

 
IN CONSIDERATION of the foregoing and other considerations hereinafter set forth, it is mutually agreed by the parties as 
follows: 
The Grantor hereby agrees to convey and sell by Warranty Deed, Temporary Easement, attached as Exhibit A, parcels of 
land known as parcel numbers 137:A, 137:E for transportation purposes.  This contract is to be returned to: Gale Padgett 
(Consultant), Right of Way Agent c/o Utah Transit Authority (UTA), 669 W. 200 South, Salt Lake City, UT 84101. 

 

1. Grantor will transfer property free of all liens and encumbrances except recorded easements. 
2. Grantor agrees to transfer property free of all debris and any hazardous materials (including paint or other 
household products.) 
3. Grantor shall leave the property in the same condition, as it was when this contract was signed.  No work, 
improvement, or alteration will be done to the property other than what is provided for in this agreement. 
Grantor agrees to maintain the property until UTA takes possession. 
4. Grantor agrees to pay any and all taxes assessed against this property to the date of closing. 
5. UTA shall pay the Grantor and or other parties of interest for the real property in the deed(s) and/or easement(s) 
referenced above. 
6. "Transportation Purposes" is defined as follows: The public use for which the property or property right is being 
acquired herein, may include but is not limited to the following possible uses by UDOT, UTA and/or the City: the 
construction and improvement of a highway or roadway, which may include interchanges, entry and exit ramps, 
frontage roads, bridges, overpasses, rest areas, buildings, signs and traffic control devices, turning lanes, dedicated 
bus lanes, curbing, curb and gutter, safety zones and areas, sidewalks and pedestrian crossings, bus shelters and 
facilities, station platforms and related facilities, placement of utilities, clear zones, maintenance facilities, detention 
or retention ponds, environmental mitigation, maintenance stations, material storage, bio fuel production, slope 
protections, drainage appurtenance, noise abatement, landscaping, transit, project caused statutory relocations, and 
other related transportation uses. 
7. The Grantor(s) is aware that Utah Code Ann. Sect. 78B-6-520.3 provides that in certain circumstances, the seller 
of property which is being acquired for a particular public use, is entitled to receive an offer to repurchase the 
property at the same price that the seller received, before the property can be put to a different use.  Grantor(s) 
waives any right grantor may have to repurchase the property being acquired herein, and waives any rights 
Grantor(s) may have under Utah Code Ann. Sect. 78B-6-520.3. 
8. Grantor shall indemnify and hold harmless Grantee from and against any and all claims, demands and actions, 
including costs, from lien holders or lessees of the property. 
9. Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless for all third party claims, liabilities, obligations, damages, 
costs or expenses to the extent directly caused by the actions or omissions of the Grantee, its agents, employees, or 
contractors while performing construction activities for the highway project within the temporary easement. 
Grantee's obligation to indemnify is limited to the amounts described in the Utah Governmental Immunity Act 
("Act") and Grantee does not waive any protections in the Act. 
10. Upon execution of this contract by the parties, Grantor grants UTA, its contractors, permittees, and assigns, 
including but not limited to, utilities and their contractors, the right to immediately occupy and commence 
construction or other necessary activity on the property acquired for the state transportation project. 

Additional Terms: 
1. Grantor was paid for the following improvements:7435 sf of sprinklered sod/grass = $9,294,00, 358 lf of concrete 
curbing = $4,565.00, 3,570 sf of asphalt paving = $10,317.00.  These items are included in the Total Selling Price. 
 
2. Enacted in 2018, Section 17B-2a-803.1 of the Utah Code changes the name of Utah Transit Authority to Transit 
District of Utah, but provides that Utah Transit Authority shall implement the change over time and as resources 
permit. Notwithstanding the timing or manner of this change, the Parties acknowledge that any such name change, 
or lack thereof, will only pertain to Utah Transit Authority’s name, and will not affect the duties and obligations of 
the Parties set forth in this Contract. 

 
 



Utah Transit Authority 
Right of Way Contract 

Grantor's Initials 

 

 

Fee Simple Acquisition - Strip 
Project No: S-0265(23)3 Parcel No.(s): 137:A, 137:E 

 
Pin No: 10266 Job/Proj No: Project Location: Provo/Orem Transportation Improvement Project 
County of Property: UTAH Tax ID / Sidwell No: 57:012:0001 
Property Address: 40 East 1300 South OREM UT, 84058 
Owner's Address: 1 Ashley Way,Arcadia,WI,54612 
Primary Phone: 866-403-5272 Owner's Home Phone: Owner's Work Phone: (866)403-5272 
Owner / Grantor (s): Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
Grantee: Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 

 

 
 

3.  Continuing through completion of the project, UTA's contractor will, at its sole expense, provide temporary 
directional signage bearing the name of the current retail business and directing the public to the retail business from 
Main Street and University Parkway. 

 
4.  UTA's contractor has or will, at its sole expense, be removing the existing sidewalk by the road and replacing it as 
per the design drawings. 

 
5.  UTA's contractor has or will, at its sole expense, install all five curbed islands in the parking lot impacted by the 
project per the project design, and will landscape within the new curbed islands as shown in the planting plan for the 
project. 

 
6.  UTA's contractor has or will, at its sole expense, repair, slurry seal and restripe any area impacted by the project. 

 
7.  UTA's contractor has or will, at its sole expense, landscape the areas as designed and approved by Orem City. 

 
8.  UTA's contractor will not utilize the area of the TCE to the south of the white line on the south side of the existing 
front row of parking stalls until such time as the contractor needs to move the landscaping islands separating the front 
row of parking from the next southern rows of parking. 

 
9.  UTA's contractor, at its sole expense, has or shall relocate the three display lights impacted by the project to the 
landscape islands within the temporary construction easement.  UTA shall be responsible for providing, at its sole cost 
and expense, commercially adequate temporary replacement display lighting of Ashley Furniture’s parking lot for the 
period of time any currently existing lighting is relocated (in accordance with the mutually acceptable and approved 
construction design plan) and out of service for a period of greater than two (2) days. 

 
10.  UTA's contractor will not utilize the area of the Temporary Easement to have offices, restroom facilities, 
material, equipment, vehicles or store other items.  At such time contractor is performing work on the Property 
(stubbing the utilities onto the Property, moving the landscaping islands separating the front row of parking from the 
next southern rows of parking, landscaping the islands on the Property, restriping the Property, and installing asphalt 
in cut areas) contractor may utilize the area of the temporary easement only to the extent necessary to effectuate its 
work on the Property.  Contractor will minimize impact of the work on the Property Owner's use, existing business 
and planned development. 

 
11.  UTA's contractor will work with and coordinate with Ashley Furniture's engineering firm and Ashley's contractor 
with regard to the construction coordination of their new 5000 sq.ft. building, so long as the coordination does not 
interfere with the Provo/Orem Transportation Improvement Project. 
 
12.  Upon execution by all required parties, this Contract shall represent the entire agreement between the parties and 
supersedes all previous negotiations and agreements, including that certain Right of Entry and Occupancy Agreement, 
between the parties in full. The Deposit made pursuant to that certain Right of Entry and Occupancy Agreement shall 
be credited toward and be included in (and not in addition to) the Total Selling Price. 

 
13.  An Administrative Settlement in the amount of $206,700 is included in the Total Selling Price.  This amount 
is subject to FTA concurrence and UTA Board approval. 
 
CONFIRMATION OF AGENCY DISCLOSURE.  Buyer and Seller acknowledge prior written receipt of agency disclosure 
provided by their respective agent that has disclosed the agency relationships confirmed below.  At the signing of the Purchase 
Contract; 

 

Seller's Agent 
Seller's Brokerage 

, represents seller. 
, represents seller. 

 
Revised: 08/06/2012 Approved by Utah Attorney General's Office 

 
Page 2 of 3 



Utah Transit Authority 
Right of Way Contract 

Revised: 08/06/2012 Approved by Utah Attorney General's Office Page 3 of 3    
Grantor's Initials 

 

 

Fee Simple Acquisition - Strip 
Project No: S-0265(23)3 Parcel No.(s): 137:A, 137:E 

 
Pin No: 10266 Job/Proj No: Project Location: Provo/Orem Transportation Improvement Project 
County of Property: UTAH Tax ID / Sidwell No: 57:012:0001 
Property Address: 40 East 1300 South OREM UT, 84058 
Owner's Address: 1 Ashley Way,Arcadia,WI,54612 
Primary Phone: 866-403-5272 Owner's Home Phone: Owner's Work Phone: (866)403-5272 
Owner / Grantor (s): Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
Grantee: Utah Transit Authority (UTA) 

 

 
Buyer's Agent 
Buyer's Brokerage 

 
 

Grantor's Initials 

, represents purchaser. 
, represents purchaser. 

Total Selling Price $500,000.00 

Grantor understands this agreement is an option until approved by the MGR of Property Acquisition/Dispositions. 
Grantors acknowledge and accept the percent of ownership listed below and agree that the portion of the total selling price they 
each receive, will correspond with their respective percent of ownership. 
This Contract may be signed in counterparts by use of counterpart signature pages, and each counterpart signature page shall 
constitute a part of this Contract as if all Grantors signed on the same page. 

 
Percent Date 

 
100%        

Ashley Real Estate, LLC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Right of Way Agents   
Gale Padgett (Consultant) / Acquisition Agent 

 
 

Eric Lyon / Team Leader 
 
 

Senior Manager of Real Estate and Transit Oriented Development 
 
 

Project Manager 
 
 
 
Vice President of Finance 
 
 
 
Executive Director 
 

  



Utah Transit Authority 
Right of Way Contract 

Revised: 08/06/2012 Approved by Utah Attorney General's Office 

 

 

 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
(Deed, Easements) 

 



WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO: 

Utah Department of Transportation 

Right of Way, Fourth Floor 

Box 148420 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-8420 

 

MAIL COPY TO: 

Utah Transit Authority 

PO Box 30810 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84130-0810 

 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 2 

 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RW-03LL (11-01-03) 

 

 

 

 

Warranty Deed 
(CONTROLLED ACCESS) 

(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY) 
 

Utah County 

 Tax ID No.  57:012:0001 

 Pin No.  10266 

Project No. S-0265(23)3 

Parcel No.  0265:137:A 

 

Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Grantor, CONVEYS AND 

WARRANTS to the UTAH DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, at 4501 South 

2700 West, Salt Lake City, Utah 84114, Grantee, for the sum of TEN ($10.00) Dollars, 

and other good and valuable consideration, the following described parcel of land in 

Utah County, State of Utah, to-wit: 

 

A parcel of land in fee, being part of an entire tract of property, situate in Lot 1, Plat “A”, 

University Square Subdivision, according to the official plat thereof on file and recorded 

April 30, 1991 as Entry No. 15740 as Map No. 4167-52, situate in the NW1/4NW1/4 of 

Section 26, T.6S., R.2E., S.L.B.&M., for the construction of improvements incident to 

the Provo-Orem Transportation Improvement Project, known as project number 

S-0265(23)3. 

 

Beginning at a point on the northerly boundary line of said Lot 1, which point is on the 

southerly right of way and limited access line of State Route 265 (University Parkway), 

which point is also 1,956.41 feet (1,956.00 feet measured) N. 00°44’08” W. and  

57.74 feet (53.49 feet measured) East from the West Quarter Corner of said Section 26; 



PAGE 2 

Pin No. 10266 

Project No. S-0265(23)3 

Parcel No. 0265:137:A 
 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 3 

 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RW-03LL (11-01-03) 

 

thence along said boundary, right of way and limited access line S. 89°15’43” E.  

364.95 feet (S. 89°13’23” E. 369.19 feet measured), more or less, to the northeast 

corner of said Lot 1; thence along the easterly boundary line of said Lot 1  

S. 00°44’17” W. 28.50 feet to a point which is 93.50 feet perpendicularly distant 

southerly from the control line of said project, opposite approximate Engineer Station 

145+51.16; thence N. 89°13’23” W. 357.92 feet to a point which is 93.50 feet 

perpendicularly distant southerly from the control line of said project, opposite Engineer 

Station 141+93.24; thence S. 37°39’26” W. 43.76 feet to the westerly boundary line of 

said Lot 1 and the easterly right of way line of Main Street, which point is also  

128.50 feet perpendicularly distant southerly from the control line of said project, 

opposite Engineer Station 141+66.98; thence along said boundary and right of way line 

the following two (2) courses: (1) N. 00°13’54” W. 43.62 feet to a point of curvature;  

(2) northeasterly 31.75 feet (27.47 feet measured) along the arc of a 20.00-foot radius 

curve to the right, through a central angle of 90°58’11” (78°42’21” measured), the chord 

of which bears N. 45°15’11” E. 28.52 feet (N. 39°07’35” E. 25.36 feet measured), more 

or less, to the point of beginning as shown on the official map of said project on file at 

the office of the Utah Department of Transportation. The above described parcel of land 

contains 11,363 square feet or 0.261 acre in area, more or less. 

 

(Note: Rotate above bearings counterclockwise 00°14’37” to equal project bearings.) 

  

 To enable the Utah Department of Transportation to construct and maintain a 

public highway, as contemplated by Title 72, Chapter 6, Section 117, Utah Code 

Annotated, 1998, as amended, the Owners of said entire tract of property hereby 

release and relinquish to said Utah Department of Transportation any and all rights 

appurtenant to the remaining property of said Owners by reason of the location thereof 

with reference to said highway, including, without limiting the foregoing, all rights of 

ingress to or egress from said Owner's remaining property contiguous to the lands 

hereby conveyed to or from said highway. 

 



PAGE 3 

Pin No. 10266 

Project No. S-0265(23)3 

Parcel No. 0265:137:A 
 

 

PREPARED BY: J-U-B ENGINEERS, INC. (SPH) (06/07/2016) 14P    LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RW-03LL (11-01-03) 

REVISED BY: J-U-B ENGINEERS, INC. (12/19/2017) 

 

 Subject to Grantor’s existing on-premise business sign that has an overhang of 

“±” 6 inches over the new northerly boundary line of the property and into the right of 

way for SR-265 located at Station 144+69.00. Grantor shall have the right to repair and 

maintain said sign with the overhand so long as the sign remains in its current location. 

If the sign structure is relocated, removed or altered by natural or manmade cause, 

Grantor, or successors, shall reconstruct the sign entirely outside of the highway right of 

way. 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company has caused this instrument to be executed by its proper officers 

thereunto duly authorized, this          day of   , 

A.D. 20       . 

STATE OF  

 

COUNTY OF 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 Ashley Real Estate, LLC 

 a Delaware limited liability company 

By  

 Manager 

 

 On the date first above written personally appeared before me, 

   , who, being by me duly sworn, says that     he is the 

Manager of Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and that the 

within and foregoing instrument was signed in behalf of said company by authority of its 

Articles of Organization, and said      

acknowledged to me that said company executed the same. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official stamp the date in this certificate first above 

written: 

 

  

   Notary Public 



Parcel 137:A 5/26/2016

File: 10266_S-0265(23)3_14P_137_A_DeedPlot.ndpScale: 1 inch= 50 feet
Tract 1: 0.2609 Acres (11363 Sq. Feet), Closure: n00.0000e 0.00 ft. (1/221101), Perimeter=870 ft.

01 s89.1323e 369.19

02 s00.4417w 28.50

03 n89.1323w 357.92

04 s37.3926w 43.76

05 n00.1354w 43.62

06 Rt, r=20.00, delta=078.4221, arc=27.47, chord=n39.0735e 25.36

s89°13'23"e

369.19

2

n89°13'23"w

357.92

s
3
7
°3
9
'2
6
"w

4
3
.7
6

n
0
0
°
1
3
'5
4
"w

4
3
.6
2

R
=

20

A
=
27

.47



WHEN RECORDED, MAIL TO: 

Utah Transit Authority 

PO Box 30810 

Salt Lake City, Utah 84130-0810 

 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 2 

LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RW-09LL (12-01-03) 

 

 

 

 

Easement 
(LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY) 

 

Utah County 

 Tax ID No.  57:012:0001 

 Pin No.  10266 

Project No. S-0265(23)3 

Parcel No.  0265:137:E 

 

Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, Grantor, hereby 

GRANTS AND CONVEYS to the UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY, at 669 West 200 

South, Salt Lake City, Utah 84101, Grantee, for the sum of TEN ($10.00) Dollars, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the following described easement in Utah 

County, State of Utah, to-wit: 

 

A temporary easement, upon part of an entire tract of property, situate in Lot 1, Plat “A”, 

University Square Subdivision, according to the official plat thereof on file and recorded 

April 30, 1991 as Entry No. 15740 as Map No. 4167-52, situate in the NW1/4NW1/4 of 

Section 26, T.6S., R.2E., S.L.B.&M., for the construction of improvements incident to 

the Provo-Orem Transportation Improvement Project, known as project number 

S-0265(23)3. This easement shall commence upon the beginning of actual construction 

on the property and shall continue only until project construction on the property is 

complete, or for two years, whichever first occurs. The easement shall be non-exclusive 

such that the Grantor may use the property at any time in a manner which does not 

interfere with construction activities. 

 

Beginning at the intersection of the westerly boundary line of said Lot 1 and the 

southerly project right of way and limited access line of said project, which point is on 

the easterly right of way line of Main Street, which point is also 1,956.41 feet  



PAGE 2 

Pin No. 10266 

Project No. S-0265(23)3 

Parcel No. 0265:137:E 
 

CONTINUED ON PAGE 3 

 LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RW-09LL (12-01-03) 

 

(1,956.00 feet measured) N. 00°44’08” W. and 57.74 feet (53.49 feet measured) East 

and S. 14°02’30” W. 65.24 feet from the West Quarter Corner of said Section 26, which 

point is also 128.50 feet perpendicularly distant southerly from the control line of said 

project, opposite Engineer Station 141+66.98; thence along said project right of way 

and limited access line the following two (2) courses: (1) N. 37°39’26” E. 43.76 feet;  

(2) S. 89°13’23” E. 357.92 feet, more or less, to the easterly boundary line of said Lot 1; 

thence along said boundary line S. 00°44’17” W. 57.00 feet; thence N. 89°13’23” W. 

383.83 feet to the westerly boundary line of said Lot 1 and the easterly right of way line 

of said Main Street; thence along said boundary and right of way line N. 00°13’54” W. 

22.00 feet, more or less, to the point of beginning.  The above described part of an 

entire tract of land contains 21,435 square feet or 0.492 acre in area, more or less. 

 

(Note: Rotate above bearings counterclockwise 00°14’37” to equal project bearings.) 

 

After said improvements and appurtenant parts thereof are constructed at the expense 

of the Utah Transit Authority, said Utah Transit Authority is thereafter relieved of any 

further claim or demand for costs, damages or maintenance charges which may accrue 

against said improvements and appurtenant parts thereof. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PAGE 3 

Pin No. 10266 

Project No. S-0265(23)3 

Parcel No. 0265:137:E 
 

 

PREPARED BY: J-U-B ENGINEERS, INC. (SPH) (06/07/2016) 14P  LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY RW-09LL (12-01-03) 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, said Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited 

liability company has caused this instrument to be executed by its proper officers 

thereunto duly authorized, this          day of   , 

A.D. 20       . 

 

STATE OF  

 

COUNTY OF 

) 

) ss. 

) 

 Ashley Real Estate, LLC 

 a Delaware limited liability company 

By  

 Manager 

 

 On the date first above written personally appeared before me, 

   , who, being by me duly sworn, says that     he is the 

Manager of Ashley Real Estate, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, and that the 

within and foregoing instrument was signed in behalf of said company by authority of its 

Articles of Organization, and said      

acknowledged to me that said company executed the same. 

 

 WITNESS my hand and official stamp the date in this certificate first above 

written: 

 

 

 

  

   Notary Public 

 



Parcel 137:E 5/26/2016

File: 10266_S-0265(23)3_14P_137_E_DeedPlot.ndpScale: 1 inch= 50 feet
Tract 1: 0.4921 Acres (21435 Sq. Feet), Closure: n00.0000e 0.00 ft. (1/228995), Perimeter=865 ft.

01 n37.3926e 43.76

02 s89.1323e 357.92

03 s00.4417w 57.00

04 n89.1323w 383.83

05 n00.1354w 22.00

n
3
7
°3
9
'2
6
"e

4
3
.7
6

s89°13'23"e

357.92

s
0
0
°
4
4
'1
7
"w

5
7
. 0
0

n89°13'23"w

383.83

5



Revenue Contracts
Disbursements

Item 
#

Board Motion Criteria Type Project Manager Project Title Summary Description & Purpose
Vendor 

(or potential vendors)
 Total Contract Value 

 Change Order 
Amount 

 Total Contract 
Amount After Change 

Order 

Percentage 
Change

Contract Start 
Date

Contract End Date 
(incl. options)

Included in 
2018 Budget?

Solicitation 
Method

Number Of Firms Which 
Responded To 

Solicitation

 Total Contract 
Amount Of Next 
Lowest Bidder 

10a Motion to approve the 
contract

Contract is > 
$1,000,000 Contract Jesse Rogers Bus Tire Service 

Lease
Lease tires and services for buses.  Replacement 

contract for current contract expiring soon. Michelin  $         5,049,185  N/A N/A 12/1/2018 11/30/2023 Yes RFP 2  $    5,161,743 

10b Motion to approve the 
contract

Contract is > 
$1,000,000 Contract Greg Thorpe Depot District A&E 

Services

A/E Consultant Services for the bidding and 
construction phase servcies for the Depot District 

Clean Fuels Technology Center.
Stantec  $         2,220,059  $                -    N/A N/A 8/13/2018 1/2/2022 Yes Sole Source N/A  N/A 

10c Motion to approve the 
contract

New total contract 
value is $200,000 - 

$999,999, and 
change order is > 

15%

Change 
Order Paul Drake Stadler Lease 

Extension
Lease extension of the Warm Springs facility to 

Stadler. Stadler  $            400,000  $         70,000  $         470,000 18% 12/1/2018 1/31/2019 Yes Revenue 
contract N/A  N/A 

10d Motion to approve the 
contract

Contract is $200,000 
- $999,999 Contract Greg Thorpe

7200 S. TRAX 
Bridge 

Replacement 
w/UDOT

7200 S. signal system upgrade due to 7200 S. 
TRAX bridge replacement with UDOT. 100% to be 

reimbursed by UDOT.

Stacy and 
Witbeck, Inc.  $            729,934  N/A N/A 11/29/2018 9/30/2019 Yes Sole Source N/A  N/A 

11a Pre-Procurement 
(information only)

Contract is $200,000 
- $999,999

Pre-bid 
Review David Filby

Ultrasonic Heavy 
and Light Rail 

Testing

Ultrasonic testing of the rail lines to meet FRA 
requirements and look for internal and external 

flaws.
TBD  $            300,000  $                -    N/A N/A TBD TBD Yes IFB TBD  TBD 

General Contracts, Change Orders and Disbursements
Contracts & Change Orders
Pre-Procurements (information)

Change Orders Board Meeting 11/28/2018



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT WITH  
MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. FOR THE LEASE OF BUS TIRES 

 
 
R2018-11-04 November 28, 2018 

                         
 

WHEREAS, Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local 
Government Entities – Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s Board of Trustees (“Board”) passed Resolution 
R2018-05-09 on May 23, 2018 Granting Contract and Expenditure Authority 
(“Resolution”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Bus Tire Lease and Services Agreement with Michelin 
North America, Inc., attached as Exhibit A, for the lease of bus tires has a value of 
$5,049,185 and has been reviewed and recommended for approval by staff; and   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority: 

 
1. That the Board hereby approves the contract with Michelin North America, 

Inc. for the lease of bus tires as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Board authorizes the Executive Director and his designee(s) to execute 
the contract in substantially the same form as the exhibit to this Resolution. 
 

3. That the Board hereby ratifies any and all actions previously taken by the 
Authority’s management and staff to prepare the contract with Michelin 
North America, Inc.  

 
4. That the corporate seal be attached hereto.  
 
 
  



 2 

Approved and adopted this 28th day of November 2018. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
         (Corporate Seal) 
 
  



 3 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned duly qualified Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit 
Authority certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Trustees held on the 28th   
day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Carlton Christensen, Chair 
Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
  



 4 

Exhibit A 
 



Rev.061418

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Contract #: Contract Title: Bus Tire Svc Lease

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: Pat Postell

Impacted Areas: Included in budget? Yes

Procurement method: Contractor: Michelin

Sole-Source Reason: Total Contract Value  $                 5,049,185 
Qty & Unit price

Contract term (Months) 36 Contract options (Months) 24

Contract start date: 12/1/2018 Contract end date: 11/30/2023

2 Next Lowest Bidder:  $                 5,161,743 

Attachments: Yes

Contract and Requisition

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

18-2595PP

Jesse Rogers

Other attachments? (list)

Contract routing sheet attached?

This is the contract award for Bus Tire Service Lease.  The current contract expires Nov 2018.  The scope of 
work encompasses leasing bus tires, including supplying the tires and the installation services, as well as 
making sure vehicles are outfitted with the proper seasonal tires for winter or ski service.  The tires are leased 
and services are defined with a clear scope of work on what is covered and which party is responsible for that 
work.  There were two (2) firms that provided proposals.  Michelin was determined to be the highest scored 
technical and lowest priced.

Best value (RFP)

Number of responding firms:

Detailed Description & Purpose:

(Items to include: Current condition, Benefits, Return on investment, Savings, Other alternatives considered)

Motion to approve the contract

F&AC Review and/or Approval Date: 11/28/2018

Contract is > $1,000,000

N/A

Bus Operations



Once approved, please forward to Contract Administrator

UTA

Agenda Item No:
Board Review Data

CONTRACT ROUTING SHEET

CONTRACT SECTION

Project Manager:

2) Contract Type LA. A&E/Desiqn Os. Blanket P0 El C. Construction El o. Goods

El E. Option OF. Other

_________

DC. Renewal H. rices

3) Procurement Method LI RFQ (Quote) J the (Low Bid) H REQU (Quatihcation)
UI REP (Best-value) El Sole source H Other:

4) Contract Title Bus Tire Lease and Services
5) Description

Purpose
(of coniract or pmject)

Bus Tire Lease and associated services

6) Contractor Name Michelin North America, Inc.

7) Effective Dates Beginning: 12)01118
8) Option to renew? Eyes El No

FINANCIAL SECTION
9) Total Board Approval Amount:

9a) Current Contract Value:
9b) Amendment Amount:
9d) New Contract Value (including all amendments)
9e) Is the amount an estimate? No

(Estimate if per transaction cost)

91) If estimated. how
was the estimate

Estimate based on expected Bus Tire use from historic usage. I
10) Is the amount a one-tine purchase or annual recurring purchase? El One-time El Recurdng

11) Account Code sieojsaii.ts, 32. 33. 34.nd 3900.50411.15

12) Budgeted? El Yes El No Sucgel amount:

13) Will this contract require support from another department?

15) It box 2a or 2c is checked, has the Qualified Heath Insurance

SIGNATURE SECTION Route to?

Attorney/Legal El yes

Accounting Reviewed

16) Approval Signatures

Capital Project Coce N/A

$ 4,092,600.00
Dyes ElNo

Dyes LINO
Certificate been verifed2 J Yes fl No

Initials

[I
1f -

UTêIo7 inillals ---:‘ -.

Eves flNo I / ruo

]ves flNo I

_______________

Eyes DNa I I

_______________

Eyes DNa I I

_______________

Supply Chain Manager for board meeting agenda and approval

1) ContracuP.0 No. 1 8-2595PP (Assigned by Purchasng) Contract Administrator: Brian Motes

Jesse Rogers

E. Modiflcation

El [, Task Orders

Ending: 11130(23
Renewal terms Initial 3 years with 2 one year

options

S 5,049,185.00
$ 5,049,185.00

$
$

14) It so, is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?

upioslok Manager/Program Manager

UpiosSOk Dir, Sr. Mgr, ROM. or ChiefNp

1* a si ChiefNP, or
Dir, Sr Mgr, ROM (capllai, Ma ri.. Ops on:y)

Over 5400K Executive Director

Over 5200K Board Approval Elves ENo

If Yes, route to the Sr

(àt_’P&

Revised 5/30/2018 Page I of I



Contract Number UT-18-2595PP

BUS TIRE LEASE AM) SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS BUS TIRE LEASE SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) entered into effective the
1st day of December, 2018 (the “Effective Date”), by and between the UTAH TRANSIT
AUTHORITY, a public transit district organized under the laws of the State of Utah (“UTA”), and
MiCHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC., located at One Parkway South, Greenville, SC 29615
(“Supplier”).

RECITALS

W1-1EREAS, UTA advcrtiscd an August 13, 2018 Request for Proposals (RFP No, UT-l8-
2595PP and hereinafter the “REP”);

WI-IEREAS, on September 20, 2018, UTA opened sealed proposals for furnishing Bus Tire Lease
Services (hereinafter referred to as the “Services”), according to conditions and specifications prepared by
IJTA in die REP; and

WI-IEREAS, upon evaluation of the proposals. VTA determined that Supplier’s September 20,
2018 proposal (“Supplier’s Proposal”) constituted the best value for UTA; and

WI-IEREAS, Supplier is willing to furnish the Services per the terms and conditions of the RFP
and Supplier’s Proposal.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the foregoing Recitals, which are incorporated herein
by reference, and for and in consideration of the mutual covcnants and agreements hereafter set forth, the
mutual benefits to the parties to be derived herefrom, and for other valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1. DESCRIPTION OR SERVICE

Supplier agrees to furnish, and perfom all services related to, tires that are used by UTA transit
buses and paratransit vans as outlined in the REP scope of work (the “Scope of Work”) and this
Agreement.

Supplier agrees to provide an adequate staff of its own employees, including one (1) full-time supervisor,
who are qualified and properly trained to cariy out the responsibilities described in the Scope of Work.
Supplier shall not use subcontractor persoirnel to staff any position based at lilA facilities and all such
individuals must be Employees of Supplier. Supplier shall submit a plan to UTA’s Maintenance Manager
at each facilhy for approval to indicate how each facility shall be staffed. Supplier shall make every effort
to assign service personneL when the majority of UTA’s fleet is not in revenue service. Supplier’s work
hours shall be coordinated with, arid approved by, each facility’s Maintenance Manager.

UTA shall provide adequate working space and tire storage for the tires furnished by Supplier. Supplier
personnel shall be required to clean the work space daily to confonn to the rest of UTA’s cleanliness
standards in its other shop areas. Supplier shall provide a service truck and all hand tools required by
Supplier personnel for the proper servicing of tires. All tire service equipment furnished by UTA shall
remain the property of UTA. Supplier shall assume full responsibility for the movement of the buses
and/or paratransit vans to and from and within UTA’s facilities by Supplier or its employees, contractors
and agents. Supplier shall assume all liability for any damage to a UTA bus, paratransit van or other
property inflicted by Supplier or its employees, contractors and agents.



2. TIRES

Supplier will furnish tires for use on UTA buses and paratransit vans tinder the terms and
conditions set forth in the Scope of Work, and per the Price Forms attached hereto as Exhibit “A”; and per
additional terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement.

The number of tires to be furnished pursuant to this Agreement shall be sufficient to keep UTA’s fleet
frilly equipped and to maintain a tire inventory mounted on rims at each of U1’A’s facilities that will
ensure continuity of service. Buses and paratransit vans operating under this Agreement shall be equipped
with the sizes and types of rims of sufficient strength to permit inflation necessary for the load carrying
capacity required and spaced to conform to the approved standards of The l’ire and Rim Association.

UTA may use, separate and outside of this Agreement and until unfit for finther service, tires in UTA’s
possession on the date when this Agreement becomes effective and furnished by paities other than
Supplier under a similar mileage agreement previously in effect between UTA and a third party.

UTA agrees to use tires furnished by Supplier on buses and paratransit vans operated by UTA in Box
Elder, Weber, Davis, Salt Lake, Utah, Summit and Tonele Counties, and the general vicinity; except that
UTA may utilize up to 15% of its fleet to test tires other than those furnished by Supplier. Such test tires
shall not be subject to any of the terms or provisions of this Agreement except for service. If Supplier
cannot supply tiles that meet specifications required by UTA, UTA may purchase or lease tires from
another vendor.

3. DELIVERY OF TIRES

Deliveiy shall be to UTA’s Meadowbrook facility, 360(1 South 700 West, Salt Lake City, Utah.
Supplier shall be responsible for all delivery logistics, and Supplier shall retain all risk of loss with
respect to tires while in transit. Hours of delivery are 8:00 am. to 3:30 p.m., Monday through Friday,
except on holidays. Freight and delivery charges are included in the total price reflected on the Price Form
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”. Once, mounted, Supplier shall hold all risk and responsibility for tire
transported by Supplier between UTA’s Meadowbrook facility and satellite facilities.

4. TERM OF AGREEMENT AN]) DISPOSITION OF TIRES AT TERMINATION

This Agreement shall be effective for three (3) years beginning as of the Effective Date
(December I, 2018) and temuiiating at midnight, November 30, 2021. UTA may, at its sole election,
extend the initiaL three-year term for up to two (2), additional one-year options periods, for a total
Agreement term uot to exceed five (5) years. Extension options may be exercised by UTA upon providing
Supplier with notice of such election at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the initial term or
the then.expiring option period, as applicable.

Unless UTA elects to “run out” the tires according to the conditions set forth in Article 16 of this
Agreement, UTA will, within thirty (30) days after the expiration of this Agreement (which shall, for
purposes of this Article, include a termination for convenience pursuant to ArticLe 6 of this Agreement)
or submission of an invoice by Supplier, whichever is later, purchase those tires owned by Supplier that

are branded for the fleet of UTA, including tires on the wheels of vehicles, tires in the course of repair,
and such spare tires and such used tires in storage as shall have been furnished by Supplier in fulfillment
of its obligation to maintain an adequate inventory at prices set forth in the” Cost Per 32nd Of An Inch”
and attached as Exhibit ‘A’ to this Agreement. Title to all tires shall remain with Supplier until all such
statements and billings have been paid in full, at which time UTA will acquire each such used tire(s) as is,
and Supplier makes no warranties as to the condition or fitness for continued use of such tires. This clause
does not include new tires in inventory which shall be retained by Supplier.

5. PRICING AND PAYMENT

This Agreement provides for a tire leasing transaction. The method of determining and paying

mileage charges shall be as described in this Article 5.



UTA shall keep Supplier informed of the mimber of tires on each bus in UTA’s fleet identified by bus
number, and any tire changes affecting such number of Supplier and non-supplier tires performed by
UTA, and Supplier shall keep UTA informed of any tire changes affecting such number of Supplier and
non-supplier tires performed by Supplier.

UTA shall furnish to Supplier by the fifteenth (15”) day of each month:

(a) A record of the bus miles run as determined by UTA during the preceding entire month by
each bus, identified by number, which is equipped with Supplier’s tires or for which
Supplier has servicing responsibility, and a record of the bus miles run on Supplier’s tires by
each bus which was equipped with Supplier’s tires for a portion of the month;

(b) A statement of the said bus miles run during the preceding month of Supplier’s tires of cach
mileage rate class;

(c) A statement of the said bus miles run during the preceding month on all buses for which
Supplier has servicing responsibility;

(d) A calculation of the mileage payments due Supplier for tire usage and for service at the
applicable mileage rates.

(e) A current fleet list showing: (1) active vehicles, (2) new vehicles pitt into service during the
month including the start service date, and (3) retired vehicles removed from service during
the month including the date of removal from service.

lilA shall pay Supplier within thirty (30) days fro,n receipt of an invoice each month for tire usage and
service during the preceding month. There shall be one fixed service rate per month, and a fixed rate per
tire mile as specified in Exhibit “A” attached to this Agreement. Any size of tire not listed in Exhibit “AT
that is placed into service by Supplier during the term of tins Agreement shall have a separate rate per tire
mile applied that has been mutually agreed upon by both parties, documented in writing as a modification
to this agreement, prior to the tire’s placement into service. The payment due Supplier for tire service shall
be invoiced separately as a fixed monthly service charge.

6. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT

(a) Termination for Convenience. UTA may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part and
without cause, at any time upon providing Supplier with one hundred twenty (120) days
advance written notice to Supplier. If Supplier has any property in its possession belonging
to UTA, Supplier will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs.

(b) Termination for Default. If Supplier fails to deliver materials or to perform the services
within the time specified in this Agreement or any extension or if Supplier fails to comply
with any other provisions of this Agreement, UTA may terminate this Agreement for
default. IJTA shall terminate by delivering to Supplier a Notice of Termination speci’ing
the nature of the default. Supplier will only be paid the contract price for materials delivered
and accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner or performance set forth
in this Agreement. 11 after termination for failure to fulfill contract obligations, it is
determined that Supplier was not in default, the rights mid obligations of the pmties shall be
the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of UTA.

(c) Opportunity to Cure. UTA in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for
breach or default, allow Supplier ten (10) calendar days in which to cure the defect. In such
case, the notice of temmination will state the time period in which cure is pennitted and other
appropriate conditions. If Supplier fails to remedy to UTA’s satisfaction the breach or default
of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement within ten (10) days after
receipt by Supplier of written notice from UTA setting forth the nature of said breach or
default, UTA shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without any further obligation



to Supplier. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude UTA
from also pursuing all available remedies against Supplier and its sureties for said breach or
default.

(d) Waiver of Remedies for any Breach. In the event that UTA elects to waive its remedies for
any broach by Supplier of any covenant, term or condition of this Agreement, such waiver

by UTA shall not limit UTA’s remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other
term, covenant, or condition of this Agreement.

7. TOOLS AND EOTJIPMENT RESPONSIBILITY

Supplier shall provide all hand tools required by Supplier’s personnel for the proper servicing of

tires (i.e. air guns, torque wrenches, etc.). Supplier shall check the calibration of the torque wrenches with

a Torque Wrench Tester provided by UTA, witnessed by U’lA at UTA’s option, a minimum of every

three (3) months.

Supplier shall have each torque wrench calibrated by a company that is certified to guarantee accuracy of

equipment tested. Supplier will provide a record of certification every twelve (12) months to UTA.

8. MILEAGE REPORTS AiND RECORDS

IJTA shall keep an accurate record of the number of revenue miles run as provided in the Scope

of Work and render to Supplier a report of such mileage prior to the 15n day of the month following the

month the miles were run.

The number of revenue miles run shall be determined either by means of an instrument which will

accurately record mileage being run on each bus or paratransit van, or by multiplying the number of trips

of each bus or paratransit van by the number of scheduled miles over the route it is driven. If the latter

method is used, UTA shall furnish Supplier a schedule of the established routes covered by its buses and

paratransit vans and shall advise Supplier of any changes iii such routes or any additional routes covered.

The recording instruments and/or mileage records referred to shall be open at all reasonable times during

usual business hours for inspection by Supplier’s representatives. UTA agrees to supply Supplier, on at

least a monthly basis, all information on tire changes made by UTA and vehicle and/or spare stock tire

inventory requested to enable Supplier to maintain any record or individual tire mileage and tire location

kept by Supplier.

9. ADDITIONAL BUSES/VANS

If UTA acquires by purchase, or otherwise acquires additional buses and/or paratransit vans,

UTA has the option to purchase or acquire buses and/or paratransit vans with tires as part of the vehicle.

A separate rate shall be negotiated between UTA and Supplier and applied to any other make or model of

bus or paratransit van placed in operation by TITA during the term of this Agreement requiring tires
different than those specified in this Agreement or tires not shown in the proposal specifications and

placed in operation by UTA during the term of this Agreement or a different size and/or type of tire than

those covered in the proposal specifications, These fires will be subject to the same service provisions as

the cun’ent leased tires.

If UTA shall purchase or lease any additional buses to its fleet which can be equipped with a size and type

of tire for which a lease rate has been established in this agreement, UTA may purchase or lease such

buses without tires and Supplier shall, in that event, furnish tires to the bus manufacturer or deliver to the

designated U.S. post of demarcation within sixty (60) days of written notice. Such lease tires shall

become subject to the provisions of the agreement upon delivery to the bus manufacturer and shall be

leased by UTA in the same manner as other tires furnished by Supplier. Any other tires already on buses

purchased or leased by UTA shall become subject to the provisions of the agreement in the same manner

as pre-existing tires not furnished by Supplier. When UTA purchases a new bus, typically, the tires for
those buses are purchased from the bus manufacturer. If UTA elects to purchase tires direct from



Supplier, a separate purchase order will be issued for invoicing of the purchased tires. These tires will be
the same as the current leased tires. They will be subject to the same service provisions as the current

leased tires.

Any tires lost, stolen, or damaged while in the possession of the vehicle manufacturer, or other seller, or

while the vehicle is being delivered to UTA shall he the responsibility of UTA.

10. SALE OR DISPOSITION 01? BUSES/VANS

If UTA sells or in any manner disposes of any buses or paratransit vans, which shall have been
equipped with tires supplied under this Agreement, or if for any reason UTA shall discontinue its
business, or discontinue the use of any such buses or paratransit vans, UTA shall purchase the unused
mileage in each tire (including spares) at prices set forth in the” Cost Per 32nd Of An Inch” and attached

as Exhibit “A”, or UTA may equip said buses or paratransit vans with scrap tires provided by Supplier as

per a separate Letter of Agreement, to be entered into by the parties in substantially the same form as
included in the RFP.

11. LEASED BUSES/VANS

UTA represents and warrants that it owns outright or has legal possession of all buses and
paratransit vans comprising the fleet operated by it. If during the term of this Agreement, including any

amendments arid extensions, UTA acquires the right to operate any buses or not owned by it, pursuant to
a rental or other arrangement with the owner of such buses or paratransit vans (called “Leased Buses” or
“Leased Vans”), UTA agrees (a) to noti& Supplier of the existence and details of such arrangement, (b)
that all Leased Buses and/or Vans will be furnisbed to UTA by the owner without tires so that they may

be operated by UTA equipped with tires furnished by Supplier to be supplied under this Agreement, and
if Supplier is to furnish tires (c) to obtain from the owner an agreement acceptable to and for the benefit

of Supplier, whereby the owner acknowledges Supplier’s ownership and right to possession of all tires
supplied by it and waives any and all rights by virtue of their use on Leased Buses or Vans or otherwise.

Contir.gent upon obtaining such agreement from the owner of Leased Buses or Vans, they shall be subject
to all the terms and conditions of this Agreement to the same extent as buses or paratransit vans owned by
UTA. In case UTA surrenders or otherwise loses possession of any of the Leased Buses or Vans equipped

with tires supplied by Supplier. UTA shall purchase each tire (including spares) as provided with respect
to buses or paratransit vans sold by UTA. The term “Leased Buses” or “Leased Vans” shall not apply to

any bus or paratransit van rented or borrowed for temporary use for a period not to exceed 120 days.

12. TITLE TO TIRES AND LIENS ON BUSES/VANS

Title to all tires furnished shall remain at all times with Supplier or its assignees and upon
purchase by IJTA in accordance with Article 4 of this Agreement, shall continuc to remain with Supplier
until ii shall have received full payment of all sums owed to it by UTA under the terms of this Agreement.

UTA will hold Supplier harmless against any claim on Supp)iems tires made by any holder of a lien on

any buses or paratransit vans on which UT.A uses such tires. IITA agrees to keep Supplier advised
concerning any such liens and the status of the Liens.

13. STORAGE, DAMAGE, AND LOSS OF TIRES

UlA agrees to provide a safe and suitable place for the storage of spare tires and tires unfit for

further service until they may be disposed of by Supplier; to either keep each bus or paratransit van

equipped with at least one properly inflated spare tire, or provide adequate road service for its fleet; and to

pay Supplier the amount of any tires damaged beyond repair through no fault of Supplier including, by
accident, fire, or which have been lost or stolen on the price basis listed under the Cost Per 32nd Of An
Inch attached as Exhibit ‘A’ to this Agreement. Curbing damage, cuts, bruises, and road hazard damage
encountered in normal transit operations are covered under this provision. Any tire that cannot have an

actual tread depth measurement taken due to total destruction or loss shall be assigned a tread depth equal



to one-half its original tread depth for purposes of determining a price for the tire. No other damage may

be billed. U’l’A agrees to maintain bus and paratransit vail suspension and steering in accordance with

manufacturers’ recommendations. Claims against UTA for tires lost or damaged while in UTA’s

possession shall be supported by the signature of an authorized representative of UTA attesting to such

loss or damage and be submitted to UTA for payment within sixty (60) days front the date of damage or

loss. This provision does not cover tires lost or damaged while in transit via public carrier or while in

Supplier’s own vehicles.

Any tires which may be rendered unfit for service by accident, abuse, or fire, which can be made

serviceable by repair shalL be repaired by Supplier and the actual cost of repair shall be paid for by UTA.

14. LL4BIIATY FOR DAMAGES

Supplier shall be liable for any damages that result from defective materials furnished by Supplier

or from Supplier’s negligence. Whenever Supplier’s tires fail because of a defect or Supplier’s negligence

and damage the bus (i.e. loses a retread on a recapped tire and damages an air ride, leveling valve, brake

hose, wheel well molding, etc.), Supplier will be liable for the cost of repairs (pails and Jabor). If towing

is required because of a Supplier’s tire defect or negligence as described above, Supplier will be liable for

all related towing costs.

In the event that any sut is brought alleging damages to property or injury or death to persons as a result

of a defect of the tires furnished hereunder or negligence in connection with servicing, inspecting,

mounting or replacing tires pursuant hereto, Supplier agrees to assume responsibility for the defense of

the suit and to hold UTA harmless therein unless and until it is establighed that something other than a

defect in workmanship or material or negligence on the part of Supplier caused the damage, injury or

death.

15. TIRES PERMANENTLY REMOVED FROM SERVICE

All tires serviced by Supplier under tins Agreement shall be returned by Supplier to the

Meadowbrook facility upon their permanent removal from service and separated out by ownership. UTA

owned and previous supplier-owned tires shall be set aside and the owners contacted to pick up and

dispose of their own tires. Disposal of such tires shall be at each owner’s sole expense. UTA requires all

tires permanently removed from service to be recycled, as per the applicable law regarding the disposal

and recycling of all tires. Any reference in this Agreement to tire disposal shall mean recycling.

Prior to Supplier ‘s removal of such tires from the Meadowbrook facility, Supplier shall furnish UTA with

an accounting of both UTA-owned and Supplier tires, indicating those tires which in the opinion of

Supplier, are suitable for retreading.

UTA will have the right to sell to Supplier good UTA-owned tire casings at a pre-determined amount.

UTA shall be given a credit for the return of UTA-owned retreadable tires in an amount specified in,

“Suppliers Purchase Price of Retreadable Tire Casings Which Are Owned By UTA”, attached as Exhibit

“A” to this Agreement.

16. RUN-OUT PROVISION

Upon the expiration of the term of this Agreement, UTA has the option to further extend this

Agreement and continue to use all tiles furnished by Supplier under this Agreement in UTA’s possession

on the expiration date for a period of thirty-six (36) months from said expiration date.

All terms, conditions, and provisions of said Agreement shall remain iii full force and effect during said

36-month period, except that Supplier, if UTA is changing suppliers, shall be relieved of any requirement

to furnish UTA with tires, or repair material during said 36-month period unless requested by IJTA and

agreed to by Supplier. Supplier is released from providing service during the run-out period and paymcnts

to Supplier during that period shall exclude that portion based upon the service rate.



The rate and rates per tire mile in effect during such 36-month period shall be the rate or rates in effect for
the six-month period immediately preceding the coinrnencctncnt date of such 36-month period or the new
rate or rates agreed to in a contract executed between IJTA and Supplier if Supplier is the successfial

bidder for the new contract period, whichever rate is the most advantageous for UTA.

It is understood that UTA shall continuously use such tires insofar as practicable, and use in preference to

tires furnished under any new Agreement on its highest mileage runs until the tire’s usefid life is
exhausted or until the expiration of the 36-month period, whichever occurs first.

Upon the expiration of said 36-month period, UTA shall purchase or provide for the purchase of the
remaining tires that have been furnished by Supplier in fulfillment of its run-out obligation at prices set

forth in the Cost Per 32nd Of An Inch and attached as Exhibit ‘A” to this Agreement. The price for said
tires will be paid for on a cost per 32nd of remaining tread of rubber. This will be based on original tread
depth only (not base gauge), UTA will acquire each such used tire as is, and Supplier makes no warranties

as to the condition or fitness for continued use of such tires.

The provision herein granted is exercisable by UTA upon thirty (30) days1 written notice prior to the

expiration date of the term of this Agreement. Such notice of UTA’s exercise of this provision must be in
writing and sent certified mail to:

Michelin North America, Inc.
Atm: Margaret Johnson
One Parkway South
P.O. Box 19001
Greenville, SC 29602-9001

17. UTA CONTRACTOR I3ADCE

All Supplier personnel assigned to UTA, whose ditties require regular access to UTA’s facilities

for a length of time of more than one (1) month, shall be required to obtain a UTA Supplier Badge and

undergo finger printing and a criminal background check initiated by Supplier prior to being issued such
UTA Supplier Badge. in evaluating results from a criminal background check, Suppliers personnel shall

evaluate (I) the naturc and gravity of the offense or offenses; (2) the time that has passed since the

conviction and/or completion of the sentence; and (3) the nature of the job. In no event, however, will a
Supplier employee be assigned to work at UTA facility if such employee has been convicted of one of the

following;

(a) A felony under federal or Utah state law within the last 10 years;

(b) A crime involving moral turpitude; and

(c) Two or more violations of driving under the influence of alcohol, any drug, or the combined
influence of alcohol and any drug.

Supplier empJoyees seeking to obtain a UTA Supplier Badge must provide a letter from Supplier attesting

to the fact that the employee conforms to the above contractual requirements prior to receipt of a UTA
Supplier Badge.

18. DRUG AND ALCOHOL TESTING

All tire employees performing work on UTA’s premises under this Aeernent will be engaged in

‘safety-sensftive” functions as that term is defined under Federal Transit Administration (FTA) drug and

alcohol testing regulations (49 C.F.R. Pails 655). Said employees will therefore be subject to VIA-

mandated random and other drug and alcohol testing such as pre-einployment, post-accident, and

reasonable suspicion. Said random testing may be performed by including Supplier employees



performing work under this Agreement in the pool of safety sensitive employees maintained by UTA for

random drug and/or alcohol testing purposes, subject to cost reimbursement by Supplier, or said testing

may be performed utilizing Supplier’s own random drug and/or alcohol testing program. Supplier is

required to provide UTA with results of Supplier’s drug and/or alcohol testing on an aimual basis.

Supplier is required to perform the pre-employment, post-accident, and reasonable suspicion testing. The
process for all required testing must comply with the 49 CFR Part 40.

19. FORCE MAJEURE

UTA shall be excused from compliance with the conditions of this Agreement in the event of

force inajeure events listed below. Supplier shall be excused from deliveries or delay in deliveries if such

failure to deliver or delay in deliveries shall be caused by war, acts of terrorism, fires, and interruptions of
transportation facilities, accidents, national shortage of energy source or raw material or other similar

causes beyond the control of Supplier. This agreement is expressly subject to applicable restrictions

imposed by any federal agency or by any other governmental authority. It is recognized that in the event

of strikes, lockouts or other labor disturbances, Supplier may be unable to provide materials or service as

described in this Agreement. However, during such events Supplier shall provide UTA prompt notice

thereof and, upon request, use commercially available efforts to arrange for the provisions of any

available alternate tires, such as retreads and/or other manufacturers’ tires including foreign made tires (if
permitted by the Federal Transit Administration) and Supplier’s service personncl shall be required to

provide service for such tires for the duration of this Agreement or until no longer usable.

20. WARRANTY OF TITLE

UTA acknowledges that title to all tires leased to UTA shall remain at all times with Supplier. All

tires, property and/or equipment furnished by either party shall remain the respective party’s sole personal

property. No accession of Supplier’s property shall result because of any attachment to the property’ of

UTA.

Ul’A will hold Supplier harmless against any claim against Supplier’s tires made by any holder of a lien

on any buses on which UTA uses such tires. UTA agrees to advise Supplier concerning such liens and the

status of the liens.

21. WARRANTY OF CONSTRUCTION

Supplier warrants that the work performed tinder this Agreemeut conforms to the requirements of

this Agreement and is free of any defect of equipment, material ot workmanship performed by Supplier or

any of its subcontractors or suppliers under this warranty. Supplier shall remedy at its own expense any

such defect.

All parts and materials shall initially be new, and in no ease will any used, reconditioned or obsolete parts

be accepted.

It is understood and agreed that by acceptance of this warranty, and the acceptance of the materials to be

manufactured or assembled pursuant to these specifications, UTA does not waive any warranty either

expressed or implied or any liability of the manufacturer as determined by and decision of a court of the

State of Utah or of the United States. Manufacturer standard warranty and extended warranty shall be

submitted on delivery of equipment, material or supplies, upon request.

22. NEW VERSUS USED MATERIALS AN]) SUPPLIES

With the exception of retread casings, the materials or supplies must initially be new and unused.

23. DEFECTIVE OR DAMAGED WORK

Supplier agrees to indemnify and hold UTA harmless in connection with any arid all claims

whatsoever for personal injuries or property damage caused by the active negligent acts or willful

misconduct on the part of Supplier, its agents, officers, subcontractors, or employees or any failure to



perform according to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.

Any material or equipment found to he damaged or defective at the time of delivery shall be repaired,

replaced, or corrected by Supplier hcicunder without additional cost to LTA.

If Supplier shall fail to comply promptly with this Agreement, UTA shall1 upon written notice to Supplier,

have the authority to deduct the cost thereof from any compensation due or to become due to Supplier

24. INSURANCE REOU1REMENTS

Supplier and subcontractors shall procure and maintain until all of their obligations have been
discharged, including any warranty periods under this Agreement are satisfied, insurance against claims

for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance

of the work hereunder by Supplier, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.

The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the
indemnity covenants contained in this Agreement. UTA in no way wai-rants that the minimum limits

contained herein are sufficient to protect Supplier from liabilities that might arise out of the performance

of the work under this Agreement by Supplier, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors

and Supplier is free to purchase additional insurancc as may be detennined necessary.

A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE: Supplier shalt provide coverage with limits
of liability not less than those stated below, which coverage may contain self-insured retentions,

either wholly or in part. Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by UTA.
Supplier may he required to provide evidence satisfactory to UTA guaranteeing payment of
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses. An excess liability
policy or umbrella liability policy may be used to meet the minimum liability requirements

provided that the coverage is written on a “following form” basis.

I. Commercial General Liability — Occurrence Form

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability
coverage.

• General Aggregate $5,000,000

• Products — Completed Operations Aggregate $2,000,000

• Personal and Advertising Injury $2,000,000

• Each Occurrence $2,000,000

a. “The Utah Transit Authority shall be named as an additional insured with respect to
liability arising from the activities performed by, or on behalf of Supplier”.

2. Automobile Liability

Bodily Injury and Froperty Damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used in

the performance of this Agreement.

Combined Single Limit (CSL) $2,000,000

a. “The Utah Transit Authority shall be named as an additional insured with respect to
liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of Supplier, including
automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Supplier”.

2. Worker’s Compensation and Employers’ liability

Workers’ Compensation Statutory

Employers’ Liability



Each Accident $100,000

Disease — Each Employee $100,000

Disease — Policy Limit $500,000

a. A waiver of subrogation in favor of UTA shall be provided.

b. This requirement shall not apply when a contractor or subcontractor is exempt tinder
UCA, AND when such contractor or subcontractor executes the appropriate waiver
form.

B. AJflMTIONAJ INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The following provisions shall apply:

Supplier’s insurance coverage, as it pertains to Supplier’s liability and the indemnity obligation

assumed by Supplier under this Agreement, shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with
respect to all other available sources of insurance.

C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions

of this Agreement shall provide thc required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided or
canceled except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to UTA, except when
cancellation is for non-payment of premium, then ten (10) days prior notice may be given. Such

notice shall be sent directly to UTA, Pat Postell, 669 West 200 South, Salt Lake City, Utah

84101.

D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS: Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or

authorized to do business in the State and with an “AM. Best” rating of not less than A- VII.

UTA in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect

Supplier from potential insurer insolvency.

E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE: Supplier shall furnish UTA with certificates of insurance

(ACORD form or equivalent approved by UTA) as required by this Agreement. The certificates

for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage
on its behalf

All certificates of insurance are to be received and approvcd by UTA before work commences.

Each insurance policy required by this Agreement must be in effect at or prior to commencement

of work tinder this Agreement and remain in effect for the duration of the project. Failure to
maintain the insurance policies as i-equired by this Agreement or to provide evidence of renewal
upon request is a material breach of contract.

All certificates required by this Agreement shall be sent directly to:

Utah Transit Authority
ATI’N: Contracts Office Coordinator
P.O. Box 30810
Salt Lake City, UT 84130-0810

UTA project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the certificate of

insurance. UTA reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies

required by this Agreement at any time. DO NOT SEND CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE

TO THE J.JTAII TRANSIT AUTIIORITYS CLAIMS AND INSURANCE DEPARTMENT.

F. SUECONTRACTORS: Suppliers’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional

insureds under its policies or Supplier shall furnish to UTA separate certificates for each

subcontractor. All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements
identified above.

0. APPROVAL: Any modification or variation from the insurance requircmcnts in this Agreement



shall be made by the Office of General Counsel or the Claims and Insurance Department, whose
decision shall be final. Such action will not require a formal Agreement atriendment, but may be
made by administrative action UTA will provide ninety (90) days written notice of such
requirement together with an explanation of the reason for the requirement. If the requirement is
unacceptable to Supplier, acting reasonably, then Supplier shall be entitled to tenninate this
Agreement without penalty on prompt written notice to UTA.

25. JNIWMNIFICATION

Supplier and UTA each hereby agree to protect, defend, release, indemnify and hold the other
party harmless from and with respect to any losses, claims, demands, expenses, attorneys fees, costs or
judgments arising directly or indirectly, as the result of the negligence, recklessness or willflul misconduct

of the indemniing party’ under this Agreement. Further, Supplier agrees to indemnify, defend and hold
hannless UTA, its affiliates, sureties, officers, trustees, contractors, agents, employees, from and against

any and all claims arising out of or related to; (a) Supplier’s breach of any representation, warranty,
covenant or obligation under Ilus Agreement; (b) obligations owed to any third party by Supplier or any
third party retained by it.; (c) any failure of Supplier to comply with applicable federal, state or local law,
or industry standard; (d) any actual or alleged infringement or misappropriation of any intellectual
property right of any third party by Supplier; (e) any bodily injury sustained by Supplier’s employees,
agents, subcontractors or assigns on UTA’s property; and (f any property damage or damage to UTA’s
personal or real property, in each case resulting from Supplier’s performance of the Scope of Work. Each
party shall not be liable for special, indirect, or consequential damages.

26. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACT

Supplier may subcontract to independent dealers work to be performed under this Agreement at
sites other than UTA properties, such as retreading. Supplier may assign its rights (such as for payment)
under this Agreement to third parties, with the prior written approval of UTA. No other assignment by
Supplier of this Agreement, in whole or in part, will be recognized by UTA unless such assigiunent has
had prior approval of UTA in writing.

UTA will ncither assign nor transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
Supplier.

27. CONTRACT CHANGES

Any proposed change in this Agreement must be submitted to UTA for its prior approval and UTA
will make the change, if approved, by a contract modification. Notwithstanding the above, no change,

modification, or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon either party unless set forth in
writing and signed by the proper officials of both patties.

28. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS

The documents listed below in this Article 28 are hereby incorporated into this Agrdement, and
together with this Agreement constitute the complete contract between the parties. In the event of any
irreconcilable conflict or inconsistency between the terms of this Agreement and the documents listed
below, this Agreement shall govern. The documents listed below are in chronological order, and in the
event of any conflict or inconsistency between the provisions of such documents, the more recent

document shall take precedence.

(a) The REP including, without limitation, the Scope of Work and the federal requirements;
(b) Addenda to the RFP;
(c) Supplier ‘s Proposal;

In addition, all applicable UTA policies and standard operating procedures, including but not limited to
Environmental and Safety Policies, are considered a part of this agreement and Supplier is required to
comply therewith.



29. NOTICES

Any notice or other communication required or permitted tinder Ihis Agreement must he in
writing and must be given by personal delivery or by mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested,
or by overnight deliveiy service postage prepaici. Mailed notices shall be addressed to the parties at the
addresses appearing herein:

If to UTA: Utah Transit Authority
ATTN: Pat Postell
Grants & Contracts Administrator
669 West 200 South
Salt Lake City, Utah 84101

If to Supplier: Michelin North America, Inc.
A’ITN: Margaret Johnson
One Parkway South
P.O. Box 19001
Greenville, SC 19602-9001

The address to which mailings may be made may be changed from time to time by notice maiLed as
described above. Any notice given by mail shall be deemed given on the day after it is deposited in the
United States Mail as provided above.

30. PROGRAM MANAGER

UTA Program manager for this Agreement shall be Jesse Rogers, or designee. All
correspondence regarding the program work of this Agreement should be addressed to Mr. Rogers, or
designee.

31. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR

UTA Agreement Administrator shall be Pat Postcll, or designee. All correspondence regarding
the terms, conditions, or administration functions should be addressed to Ms. Postell, or designee.

32. GOVERNING LAW

The validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
the State of Utah, without regard to its law on the conflict of laws. Any dispute arising out of this
Agreement that cannot be solved to the mutual agreement of the parties shall be brought in a court of
competent jurisdiction in Salt Lake County, State of Utah. Supplier consents to the jurisdiction of such
courts.

33. SERVER4BILITY

Any provision of this Agreement prohibited or rendered unenforceable by operation of law shall
be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining
provisions of this Agreement.

34. AMENDMENTS

Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing arid executed by the authorized
representatives of each party.

35. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTWS

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constiWte or be construed to create any partnership or
agency relationship between the Parties, or to create any new entity.

36. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES



The parties enter in to this Agreement for the sole benefit of the parties, in exclusion of any third
parly, and no third party beneficiary is intended or created by the execution of this Agreement.

37. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement shall constitute the entire agreement and understanding of the patties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede all offers, negotiations and other agreements with
respect thereto.

38. COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each of the parties hereto
on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, but all such
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. Any signature page of this
Agreement may be detached from any counterpart and reattached to any other counterpart hereof. The
facsimile transmission of a signed original of this Agreement or any counterpart hereof and the
retransmission of any signed facsimile transmission hereof shall be the same as delivcry of an original.

39. SURVIVAL

Provisions of tins Agreement intended by their nature and content to survive tennination of this
Agreement shall so survive including, but not limited to, Articles 4, 6, 12, 14, 16, 20, 21, 23, 24, 25, 28,
32, 33, and 35..

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement as of the day and
year first above written.

MICHELIN NORTH AMERICA, INC. UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY :

/lc

______ ___

Cannel Novak Steve Meyer : .::: : :
Director of Services & Solutions. Executive Director .

Sales & Operations
i{•’(___42._____

David Hancock
Mgr Rail Infrastructure Assets

UTA Legal Counsel



B. Monthly Tire Service Charge - Rate to be charged for Tire Sen-icing:

NOTE: Proposals for second, third, fourth, and fifth yeal shall not increase more than five percent (5%) from the previous year’s cost.

589 Buses = 55.660 lotal Tires (Group 41-5.7 buses have six (6) tires each. Group 46 buses have &ght (8) tires each.

Date Thre Service

Begins Meadnwflrook Cost Central Cost Orden Cost Timpanocos Cost Riverside Cost

‘ Per Per Per

Month Per Year Mouth Per Year Per Month Per Yea, Month Per Year Per Month Per Year

December I, 2019 545,208 55 iS.490 51.629 555.553 $4,629 £55,553 $4,629 555,553 54.629 555.553

Decen:ber 1. 2020 545.360 $514320 S4.860 558.320 S4,S&3 i 558.320 54.860 558.323 54.860 $58320

December I, 2021 I 5571,620 i.lO4 561,245 104’ $61,245 $5,104 $61,245 $5,104 561,245

December 1,2022 S50,0t5 5600,180 59 $64,305 $5,359 i 564.305 55,359 564,305 $5,359 4.305

December I, 2023 $52,518 S630,210 S5,627 £67,523 55,627 j 567,523 55,627 567.523 55,627 567,523

Totals 5238.735 52,864.820 525.579 5306.945 525,579 5506,945 525.579 5306,945 525.579 5706.915

,
- I L

F’ie (5) year Grand Total for all Facilirtes S
F

The monthly service charse sisal! be finn for length offontract. A monthly service chatge will be issued each month for servieinf the Authority’s tires. In the

event direct servtre pertcor.e units or the ntarober efservite locations are ircressed or decreased, the rates sh,a be adjusted on a nru1ualI agreeablc bass.



REViSED PRICE FORMS

c.nleiber 12,2018

Priclim Option #1

‘It poser sin II ci tide pricing for ih c (list year of the eon tact. Proposer xvii I propose Lii eqii tab I

esco i;t ion fac :e r. hasc on or: tic pondent i nde>t such as (‘Ph or P P1. b,r ve4I:5 tra, (2) Iii rcugh hi vt (5) of

the et,iitniet.

LLASE OF lIKES WITH SERVICE

!dea:ificai,o:: and descripi ion ottres to he Stn ished per Table I pages 15 and 16 cf Jo,:

Proj cot In tar, n ati oil. A Iipiov eq ia Is riray e requested

Single fires -
- Mileage ate to be charged for single tire usage only.

Proposers s hoe Id offer a single ti to rate for year I of the contract he low.

N 011 This is the Au thrority best estimate of. an, ti I bus miles to he covered by this contract, by Li ic

size, and may change on a yearly basis for the nei five (5) yea’s. A:

________________________—

S[JMATED NUMIJEII”f - ANNUAl, ESTIMA1FI)

I
ANNUAL, OF SINCI.F ANNUAL

GhOul’ lIRE SIZE BUS MILES WIJEIThS TIRE RAIL lEASE
PROPOSAL

I 275/7(111 a 22.5 60000 x 6 $01111694 =52,498,40

- 2 305/85R x22.5 12,474,000 x 6 x 50.00716 S883.04

3 12K x22,5 or x 6 $00076 -486,607,36

305/85K s22.5 2,016,0110

_______ _________

22.5 1,2lS,IliII) s 10 x$0fl0575=$70.035,00

305170K x 22.5 560090 a 6 50.00575 $19.320.00

6 315/SIlK x 22.5 2,646,000 x 8 a 50.00495 “$104,78L60

7 225/75K a 16.0 3,510,tIOO 3J_ ôJ a $1101130 I s63,39o.6II

ESTIMATED YEAR #1 LEASE TOTAL 4863,I6.00

Escalation:
1. Year2:5%________

2. year 3: _5%________

3. Year4:_5%________

4. YearS: 5%



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT WITH 

STANTEC ARCHITECTURE, INC. FOR 
 PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 

 
 
R2018-11-05 November 28, 2018 

                         
 

WHEREAS, Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local 
Government Entities – Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s Board of Trustees (“Board”) passed Resolution 
R2018-05-09 on May 23, 2018 Granting Contract and Expenditure Authority 
(“Resolution”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Professional Services Agreement with Stantec 
Architecture, Inc., attached as Exhibit A, for professional engineering services for 
the Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center has a value of $2,220,059 and 
has been reviewed and recommended for approval by staff; and   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority: 

 
1. That the Board hereby approves the contract with Stantec Architecture, Inc. 

for professional engineering services for the Depot District Clean Fuels 
Technology Center as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Board authorizes the Executive Director and his designee(s) to execute 
the contract in substantially the same form as the exhibit to this Resolution. 
 

3. That the Board hereby ratifies any and all actions previously taken by the 
Authority’s management and staff to prepare the contract with Stantec 
Architecture, Inc. 

 
4. That the corporate seal be attached hereto.  
 
 
  



 2 

Approved and adopted this 28th day of November 2018. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
         (Corporate Seal) 
 
  



 3 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned duly qualified Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit 
Authority certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Trustees held on the 28th   
day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Carlton Christensen, Chair 
Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
  



 4 

Exhibit A 
 



Rev.061418

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Contract #: Contract Title:
Depot District A&E 
Services

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: Teressa Pickett

Impacted Areas: Included in budget? Yes

Procurement method: Contractor:
Stantec Architecture, 
Inc.

Sole-Source Reason: Total Contract Value  $                 2,220,059 
Qty & Unit price

Contract term (Months)  37 months Contract options (Months)  N/A 

Contract start date: 11/29/2018 Contract end date: 12/31/2021

N/A Next Lowest Bidder:  N/A 

Attachments: Yes

Substantial Duplication of Costs

FLHQ and SLC Business unit

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

18-02931

E. Gregory Thorpe, PE

Other attachments? (list)

Contract routing sheet attached?

UTA desires to hire professional engineering services for the Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center to 
make drawing revisions to meet current codes, preconstruction and construction meetings with the contractor 
and UTA, design review with Salt Lake City and provide design services during construction for RFI's, design 
submittals and product submittals.

Sole-Source

Number of responding firms:

Detailed Description & Purpose:

(Items to include: Current condition, Benefits, Return on investment, Savings, Other alternatives considered)

Motion to approve the contract

Board Review and/or Approval Date: 11/28/2018

Contract is > $1,000,000



Once approved, please forward to Contract Administrator

CONTRACT ROUTING SHEET
UTA

Agenda Item No.:

_________________

Board Review Date:

CONTRACT SECTION

B. Blanket PC

El F. Other

___________

(Quote) Li IFB (Low Bid) Li RFQU (Qualification)

Li RFP (Best-value) Li Sole source Li Other:

___________________

Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center Engineering Services

Engineering services including design services during construction
for the Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center

____

6) Contractor Name Stantec ArcJjjecture, Inc.

7) Effective Dates Beginning: [11129118 Ending: 12131121
8) Option to renew? Li Yes Li No

FINANCIAL SECTION
9) Total Board Approval Amount: $ 2,220059.00

9a) Current Contract Value:
9b) Amendment Amount:
9d) New Contract Value (including all amendments)

_____________________

Se) Is the amount an estimate? Li Yes Li No

(Estimate if per transaction cost)

9f) If estimated, how N/A
was the estimate
calculated?

10) Is the amount a one4ime purchase or annual recurring purchase?

11) Account Code 40-3102.68912

12) Budgeted? Li Yes Li No Budget amount:

13) Will this contract require support from another department? Yes Li No

14) If so, is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the required support?

15) If box 2a or 2c is checked, has the Quahfied Heath Insurance
SIGNATURE SECTION Route to?

______

Attorney/Legal J Yes

_________ ____________________________________

Accounting Review

IT Review (IT software or hardware)

___________ ____________________________________________

Up to sioi< Manager/Program Manager

Up to $5oK Dir, Sr. Mgr, RGM, or ChiefNP

up to 5100K ChiefNP, or
Dir, Sr. Mgr, RGM (capital, Maim, Cpa. only)

OvarSlOOK Executive Director

OvarS200frK Board Approval

1) Contract]P.O, No.
— b zq 31 (Assigned by Purchasing)

2) Contract Type Li A. A&E/Design
LiE. Option

3) Procurement Method Li RFQ

Contract Administrator: Teressa Pickett

Project Manager:

Li C. Construction Li D. Goods
Li C. Renewal Li Fl. Services

4) Contract Title

5) Description /
Purpose
(of con kact orpmJecl

Greg Thorpe

Li E. Modification
Lii. Task Orders

Renewal terms
NIA

Li One-time Li Recurring

Capital Project Code MSPIO2IB

$ 2,220,059.00

LiYes LiNo

Bryan Steele

N/A

E. Gregory Thcrpe

Certificate been verified? Li Yes Li No
Initials

I ‘Bwc j Ban Simmons

LiYes LiNo I&I

____________

LiYes EjNo I I

_______________

EYes LiNo I&rT

_______________

Li Yes Li No fl1149 I

Li Yes Li No I t- I

____________________________________

Li Yes Li No I hr” I W Steve Meyer

Li Yes Li No I I Approval Date

If Yes, route to the Sr. Supply Chain Manager (or board meeting agenda and approval

Revised 7/12/2018 Page I of I



UTACONTCTNO. R -D 3;

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
DEPOT DISTRICT CLEAN FUELS TECHNOLOGY

CENTER ENGINEERING SERVICES

This Professional Services Agreement is entered into and made effective as of the day
of November, 2018 (the “Effective Date”) by and between UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY, a
public transit district organized under the laws of the State of Utah (‘UTA”), and STANTEC
ARCHITECTURE, INC., a corporation an office location at 1050 17TH Street, Suite A200,
Denver, Colorado 80265 (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

A. UTA desires to hire professional engineering services for the Depot District
Clean Fuels Techology Center

B. Consultant has been determinied to be the most qualified firm available to
perform the Work as set forth in the Scope of Services.

C. The parties have negotiated fair and reasonable pricing for the Work as set forth
in the Scope of Services.

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the foregoing Recitals, which are incorporated
herein by reference, and for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereafter
set forth, the mutual benefits to the parties to be derived herefrom, and for other valuable
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which the parties acknowledge, it is hereby agreed as
follows:

ARTICLE 1.0
Definitions

As used thioughout this Contract, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth below:

1.1 The term “Change Order” shall mean a written modification to this Contract (the form of
which shall be prescribed by UTA) pursuant to which the parties shall mutually agree upon
and effect any additions, deletions, or variations in the Work (as such Work is initially
defined by this Contract). The scope of modifications may include, without limitation,
changes in the: (i) consideration paid to Consultant, (ii) deliverables required to be
furnished by Consultant; (iii) method, manner or scope of the Work; or (iv) required
performance completion milestones or other Contract schedule requirements.

1.2 The term “Claims” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 16.1 of this Contract.

1 .3 The term “CMGC” shall mean the Construction Manager General Contractor that UTA
has retained to perform the construction management and general construction of the
facility.

1 .4 The term “Consultant’s Project Manager” shall mean Merlin Maley, or his/her successor as
appointed or designated in writing by Consultant.

UTA Professional Services Contract—Not-to-exceed fee



1.5 The term “Contract” shall mean this Professional Services Agreement (inclusive of
amendments and Change Orders hereto), together with all attached exhibits, all
documents incorporated by reference pursuant to Article 26 hereof, and all drawings.
reports, studies, industry standards, legal requirements and other hems referenced in the
foregoing documents.

1.6 The term “Indemnitees” shall mean the UTA parties set forth in Section 16,1 of this
Contract.

1.7 The term “Scope of Services” shall mean the services described in or reasonably implied
by this Contract including, but not limited to, Exhibit “A” (and all Contract requirements
associated with such services).

1.8 The term “UTA’s Project Manager” shall mean E. Gregon’ Thorpe, or his/her successor
as appointed or designated in writing by UTA.

1 .9 The term “Work” shall mean any activities undertaken or required to be undertaken by
Consultant in conjunction with the Scope of Services or Contract.

ARTICLE 2.0
Description of Services

2.1 Consultant shall perform all Work as set forth in the Scope of Services. Except for items
(if any) which this Contract specifically states will be UTA-provided or that of the
CMGC contractor, Consultant shall fhrnish all the labor, material and incidentals
necessary for the Work.

2.2 Consultant shall perform all Work under this Contract in a professional manner, using at
least that standard of care, skill and judgment which can reasonably be expected from

similarly situated professionals.

2.3 AlL Work shall conform to generally accepted standards in the transit industry. Consultant
shall perfonn all Work in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, rules,
ordinances, permit constraints and other legal requirements including, without limitation,
those related to safety and environmental protection.

2.4 Consultant shall furnish only qualified personnel and materials necessary for the
performance of the Work.

2.5 When performing Work on UTA property. Consultant shall comply with all UTA work
site rules including, without limitation, those related to safety and environmental
protection.

ARTICLE 3.0
Day-to-Day Management of the Work

31 Consultant’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for Consultant and
will be responsible for all Work, as well as the coordination of such Work with UTA.

3.2 UTA’s Project Manager will be the day-to-day contact person for UTA, and shall act as
the liaison between UTA and Consultant with respect to the Work. UTA’s Project Manager
shall also coordinate any design reviews, approvals or other direction required from UTA
with respect to the Work.

2
UlA Professional Services Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



ARTICLE 4.0
Progress of the Work

4.1 Consultant shall prosecute the Work in a diligent and continuous manner and in accordance
with all applicable notice to proceed, critical path schedule developed in conjunction with
UTA and the CMGC Contractor and guaranteed completion date requirements set forth in
(or developed and agreed by the parties and the CMGC in accordance with) the Scope of
Services.

4.2 Consultant shall attend regular Owner and Contractor meetings to update UTA’s Project
Manager and the CMGC contractor regarding the progress of the Work including, but
not limited to, any unusual conditions or critical path schedule items that could affect or
delay the Work. Such meetings shall be held at intervals mutually agreed to between the
parties and CMGC contractor.

4.3 Consultant shall assist UTA in the development of Independent Cost Estimates to be
used in negotiations with the CMGC contractor to validate the CMGC contractors final
agreed prices for each phase of the project.

4.4 Consultant shall deliver monthly progress reports and provide all Contract submittals and
other deliverables as specified in the Scope of Services.

4.5 My drawing or other submittal reviews to be performed by UTA in accordance with the
Scope of Services are for the sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Consultant of its
responsibility to comply with the Contract requirements.

4.6 UTA will have the right to inspect, monitor and review any Work performed by Consultant
hereunder as deemed necessary by UTA to veri’ that such Work conforms to the Contract
requirements. My such inspection, monitoring and review performed by UTA is for the
sole benefit of UTA, and shall not relieve Consultant of its responsibility to comply with
the Contract requirements.

4.7 UTA shall have the right to reject Work which fails to conform to the requirements of
this Contract. Upon receipt of notice of rejection from UTA, Consultant shall (at its sole
expense and without entitlement to equitable schedule relief) promptly re-perform,
replace or re-execute the Work so as to conform to the Contract requirements.

4.8 If Consultant fails to promptly remedy rejected Work as provided in Section 4.6, UTA
may (without limiting or waiving any rights or remedies it may have) perform necessary
corrective action using other contractors or UTA’s own forces. Any costs reasonably
incurred by UTA in such corrective action shall be chargeable to Consultant.

ARTICLE 5.0
Period of Performance

5.1 This Contract shall commence as of the Effective Date. This Contract shall remain in frill
force and effect until all Work is completed in accordance with this Contract, as reasonably
determined by UTA. The estimated completion date of the Work is December 2021. The
rights and obligations of UTA and Consultant under this Contract shall at all times be
subject to and conditioned upon the provisions of this Contract.

ARTICLE 6.0

3
UTA Professional 5ervices Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



Consideration

6.1 For the performance of the Work. UTA shall pay Consultant in accordance with the direct
labor rates identified in the Scope of Services and at audited overhead rates provided in
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. Monthly payments shall be made in arrears for Work
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the Contract during the preceding month.

6.2 Costs identified in the Scope of Services as being reimbursable shall only be
reimbursable to the extent allowed under 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E,

6.3 The Contract (inclusive of all wages, overhead, subcontract costs, reimbursable costs and
other cost components) is subject to a total “not-to-exceed” amount of TWO MILLION
TWO HUNDRED TWENTY THOUSAND AND FIFTY-NINE DOLLARS (2,220,059
and hereinafter the “Not to Exceed Amount”). Unless and until UTA has notified
Consultant by written instrument designated or indicated to be a Change Order that the
Not to Exceed Amount has been increased (which notice shall specify a revised Not to
Exceed Amount): (i) Consultant shall not be obligated to perform services or incur costs
which would cause its total compensation under this Contract to exceed the Not to
Exceed Amount; and (ii) UTA shall not be obligated to make payments which would
cause the total compensation paid to Consultant to exceed the Not to Exceed Amount.

6.4 UTA may withhold and/or offset from payment any amounts reasonably reflecting: (i)
items of Work that have been rejected by UTA in accordance with this Contract; (ii)
invoiced items that arc not payable under this Contract; or (iii) amounts Consultant owes
to UTA under this Contract.

ARTICLE 7.0
Contract Changes

7.1 UTA’s Project Manager or designee may, at any time, by written order designated or
indicated to be a Change Order, direct changes in the Work including, but not limited
to. changes:

A. In the Scope of Services;

B. In the method or manner of performance of the Work; or

C. In the schedule or completion dates applicable to the Work.

To the extent that any change in Work directed by UTA causes an actual and
demonstrable impact to: (i) Consultant’s cost of performing the work; or (ii) the time
required for the Work, then (in either case) the Change Order shall include an equitable
adjustment to this Contract to make Consultant whole with respect to the impacts of such
change.

7.2 A change in the Work may only be directed by UTA through a written Change Order or
(alternatively) UTA’ s expressed, written authorization directing Consultant to proceed
pending negotiation of a Change Order. Any changes to this Contract undertaken by
Consultant without such written authority shall be at Consultant’s sole risk. Consultant
shall not be entitled to rely on any other marmer or method of direction.

7.3 Consultant shall also be entitled to an equitable adjustment to address the actual and
demonstrable impacts of “constructive” changes in the Work if: (i) subsequent to the

4
UTA Profcssonal Services Contract — Not-to-exceed Ccc



Effective Date of this Contract, there is a material change with respect to any law or other
requirement set forth in this Contract; or (ii) other conditions exist which materially modify
the magnitude, character or complexity of the Work from what should have been
reasonably assumed by Consultant based on the information included in (or referenced by)
this Contract. In order to be eligible for equitable relief for “constructive” changes in Work,
Consultant must give UTA’s Project Manager or designee written notice stating:

A. The date, circumstances, and source of the change; and

B. That Consultant regards the identified item as a change in Work giving rise to an
adjustment in this Contract.

Consultant must provide notice of a “constructive” change and assert its right to an
equitable adjustment under this Section within ten (10) days after Consultant becomes
aware (or reasonably should have become aware) of the facts and circumstances giving
rise to the “constructive” change. Consultant’s failure to provide timely written notice as
provided above shall constitute a waiver of Consultant’s rights with respect to such claim.

7.4 As soon as practicable, Consultant must provide UTA with information and documentation
reasonably demonstrating the actual cost and schedule impacts associated with any change
in Work compensable under Section 7.1 or 7.3. Equitable adjustments will be made via
Change Order. Any dispute regarding the Consultant’s entitlement to an equitable
adjustment (or the extent of any such equitable adjustment) shall be resolved in
accordance with Article 20 of this Contract.

ARTICLE 8.0
Invoicing Procedures and Records

8.1 Consultant shall submit invoices to UTA’s Project Manager for processing and payment
in accordance with Article 6 of this Contract. Invoices shall be provided in the form
specified by UTA. Reasonable supporting documentation demonstrating Consultant’s
entitlement to the requested payment must be submitted with each invoice. UTA
shall have the right to disapprove (and withhold from payment) specific line items
of each invoice to address non-conforming Work or invoicing deficiencies.
Approval by UTA shall not be unreasonably withheld. UTA shall have the right to
offset from payment amounts reasonably reflecting the value of any claim which
UTA has against Consultant under this Contract. Payment for all invoice amounts not
specifically disapproved by UTA shall be provided to Consultant within thirty (30)
calendar days of invoice submittal.

ARTICLE 9.0
Ownership of Materials

9.1 All data including, but not limited to, maps, drawings, sketches, renderings, software,
hardware, and specifications, including the original thereof, developed by Consultant as a
part of its Work under this Contract (collectively and generically referred to in this Article
as “Work Product”) are the property of UTA. All Work Product must be delivered to UTA
no later than the completion of the Work and prior to final payment by UTA. In the event
this Contract is terminated prior to completion of the Work, then Consultant shall transmit
all Work Product completed or in-process as of the date of termination.

5
UTA Professional 5erviccs Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



9.2 UTA shall not be construed to be the owner of any intellectual property contained in the
Work Product that was owned or created by Consultant outside of the scope of this Contract.
However, with respect to such intellectual property of Consultant. Consultant hereby grants
UTA a non-exclusive perpetual license to use such intellectual property to the frill extent
reasonably necessary for UTA’s use and enjoyment of the Work Product furnished under
this Contract.

ARTICLE 10.0
Subeontracts

10.1 Consultant shall give advance written notification to UTA of any proposed subcontract
(not indicated in the Scope of Services) negotiated with respect to the Work. UTA shall
have the right to approve all subcontractors, such approval not to be withheld unreasonably.

10.2 No subsequent change, removal or substitution shall be made with respect to any such
subcontractor without the prior written approval of UTA.

10.3 Consultant shall be solely responsible for making payments to subcontractors, and such
payments shall be made within thirty (30) days after Consultant receives corresponding
payments from UTA

10.4 Consultant shall be responsible for and direct all Work performed y subcontractors.

10.5 Consultant agrees that no subcontracts shall provide for payment on a cost-plus-
percentage-of-cost basis. Consultant further agrees that all subcontracts shall comply with
all applicable laws.

ARTICLE 11.0
Key Personnel

11.1 Consultant shall provide the key persotmel as indicated in the Scope of Scrvices (or other
applicable provisions of this Contract), and shall not change any of said key personnel
without the express written consent of UTA.

ARTICLE 12.0
Suspension of Work

12.1 UTA may, at any time, by written order to Consultant, require Consultant to suspend,
delay, or interrupt all or any part of the Work called for by this Contract. Any such order
shall be specifically identified as a “Suspension of Work Order” issued pursuant to
this Article. Upon receipt of such an order, Consultant shall immediately comply with its
terms and take all reasonable steps to minimize the incurrence of further costs allocable to
the Work covered by the order during the period of Work stoppage.

12.2 If a Suspension of Work Order issued under this Article is canceled, Consultant shall
resume Work as mutually agreed to in writing by the parties hereto.

12.3 If a Suspension of Work Order is not canceled and the Work covered by such order is
terminated for the convenience of UTA, reasonable costs incurred as a result of the
Suspension of Work Order shall be considered in ncgotiating the termination settlement.

12.4 If the Suspension of Work causes an increase in Consultant’s cost or time to perform the
Work, UTA’s Project Manager or designee shall make an equitable adjustment to
compensate Consultant for the additional costs or time, and modify this Contract by

6
UTA ProfessionaL senices Contract — Not-toexceed fee



Change Order.

ARTICLE 13.0
Termination for Convenience; Termination for Cause and Default Remedies

13.1 UTA shall have the right to terminate this Contract at any time by providing written
notice to Consultant. If this Contract is terminated for convenience, UTA shall pay
Consultant its costs and a reasonable profit on work performed up to the effective date of the
termination notice, plus costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by Consultant to effect
such termination. UTA shall not be responsible for anticipated profits based on Work not
performed as of the effective date of termination. Consultant shall promptly submit a
termination claim to UTA. If Consultant has any property in its possession belonging to
UTA, Consultant will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs.

13.2 If Consultant materially fails to perform any of its obligations under this Contract, and
such failure is not cured or a cure initiated to the satisfaction of UTA within ten (10) days
after receipt of written notice from UTA, UTA may, at its discretion:

A. Terminate this Contract (in whole or in part) for default and complete the Work
using other contractors or UTA’s own forces, in which event Consultant shall be
liable for all incremental costs so incurred by UTA;

B. Pursue other remedies available under this Contract (regardless of whether the
termination remedy is invoked); and!or

C. Except to the extent limited by this Contract, pursue other remedies available at
law.

Upon receipt of a termination notice as provided above, Consultant shall (i) immediately
discontinue all Work affected (unless the notice directs otherwise); (ii) deliver to UTA
all data, drawings and other deliverables, whether completed or in process; and (iii) if
Consultant has any property in its possession belonging to UTA, account for the same,
and dispose of it in the manner UTA directs. Consultant shall remit a final invoice for all
services performed and expenses incurred in full accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Contract up to the effective date of termination. UTA shall calculate termination
damages payable under this Contract, shall offset such damages against Consultant’s
final invoice, and shall invoice Consultant for any additional amounts payable by
Consultant (to the extent termination damages exceed the invoice). All rights and
remedies provided in this Article are cumulative and not exclusive.

13.3 If UTA terminates this Contract for any reason, Consultant shall remain available, for a
period not exceeding 90 days, to UTA to respond to any questions or concerns that UTA
may have regarding the Work completed by Consultant prior to termination.

ARTICLE 14.0
Information, Records, and Reports; Audit Rights

14.1 Consultant shall retain all books, papers, documents, accounting records and other
evidence to support any cost-based billings allowable under the Scope of Services (or
any other provision of this Contract). Such records shall include, without limitation, time
sheets and other cost documentation related to the performance of labor services, as well
as subcontracts, purchase orders, other contract documents, invoices, receipts or other

7
UTA Professional Services Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



documentation supporting non-labor costs. Consultant shall also retain other books and
records related to the performance, quality or management of this Contract and/or
Consultant’s compliance with this Contract. Records shall be retained by Consultant for
a period of at least six (6) years after completion of the Work, or until any audit initiated
within that six-year period has been completed (whichever is later). During this six-year
period, such records shall be made available at all reasonable times for audit and
inspection by UTA and other authorized auditing parties including, but not limited to, the
Federal Transit Administration. Copies of requested records shall be furnished to UTA
or designated audit parties upon request. Consultant agrees that it shall flow-down (as a
matter of written contract) these records requirements to all subcontractors utilized in the
performance of the Work at any tier.

ARTICLE 15.0
Findings Confidential

15.1 Any documents, reports, information, or other data and materials available to or prepared
or assembled by Consultant or subcontractors under this Contract are considered
confidential and shall not be made available to any person, organization, or entity by
Consultant without consent in writing from UTA.

15.2 It is hereby agreed that the following information is not considered to be confidential:

A. Information already in the public domain;

B. Information disclosed to Consultant by a third party who is not under a
confidentiality obligation;

C. Information developed by or in the custody of Consultant before entering into this
Contract;

D. Information developed by Consultant through its work with other clients; and

E. Information required to be disclosed by law or regulation including, but not limited
to, subpoena, court order or administrative order.

ARTICLE 16.0

General Indemnification and Insurance

16.1 Consultant shall protect, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless UTA and its
trustees, officers, employees and agents (hereinafter collectively “Indemnitees”) against
and from any and all claims, demands, suits, losses, costs and damages of every kind and
description, including attorneys’ fees and/or litigation expenses (hereinafter collectively
“Claims”), brought or made against or incurred by any of the Indemnitees resulting from
or arising out of the negligent acts or omissions (actual or alleged) of Consultant, its
subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them or anyone for
whose acts any of them may be liabile in conjunction with this Contract or any Work
performed hereunder. If an employee of Consultant, a subcontractor, anyone employed
directly or indirectly by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable
has a claim against UTA or another Indemnitee, Consultant’s indemnity obligation set
forth above will not be limited by any limitation on the amount of damages,
compensation or benefits payable under any employee benefit acts, including workers’
compensation or disability acts.

8
UTA Professional Services Contract—Not-b-exceed fee



16.2 For the duration of this Contract, Consultant shall maintain at its own expense, and
provide proof of said insurance to UTA, the following types of insurance:

A. Occurrence type Commercial General Liability Insurance ISO CG001, with an
edition date of 11-88 or later, covering the indemnity and other liability
provisions of this Contract, with no exclusions of explosion, collapse or
underground hazards. The limits shall be $1,000,000 per occurrence with an
annual aggregate of $2,000,000. The policy shall be endorsed to include the
following additional insured language: The Utah Transit Authority shall be named
as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the activities
performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including completed operations.

B. Professional Liability insurance with the following limits and coverages:

Minimum Limits:

$1,000,000 each claim

$2,000,000 annual aggregate

Coverages:

1. Insured’s interest in joint ventures

2. Punitive damages coverage (where not prohibited by law)

3. Limited contractual liability

4. Retroactive date prior to date

5. Extended reporting period of 36 months

Coverage which meets or exceeds the minimum requirements will be
maintained, purchased annually in full force and effect until 3 years past
completion of the Work unless such coverage becomes unavailable to the market
on a commercially reasonable basis, in which case Consultant will notify UTA.
If UTA agrees that such coverage is not reasonably available in the commercial
market, Consultant may elect not to provide such coverage.

C. Automobile insurance covering owned, if any, non-owned, and hired automobile
with limits not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit of coverage. The policy
shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: “The Utah
Transit Authority shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability
arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, including
automobiles owned, leased, hired or bonowed by the Contractor.”

D. Workers’ Compensation insurance conforming to the appropriate states’ statutory
requirements covering all employees of Consultant, and any employees of its
subcontractors, representatives, or agents as long as they are engaged in the work
covered by this Contract or such subcontractors, representatives, or agents shall
provide evidence of their own Worker’s Compensation insurance. The policy
shall also cover Employers Liability with limits no less than $500,000 each
accident, and each employee for disease. The policy shall contain a waiver of
subrogation against UTA.

9
UTA Professional services Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



16.3 On insurance policies where UTA is named as an additional insured, UTA shall be an
additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Consultant. Insurance
limits indicated in this agreement are minimum limits. Larger limits may be indicated
after Consultant’s assessment of the exposure for this contract; for its own protection and
the protection of UTA. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and
non-contributory with respect to all other available sources.

16.4 Consultant warrants that this Contract has been thoroughly reviewed by its insurance
agent, broker or consultant, and that said agent/broker! consultant has been instructed to
procure for Consultant the insurance coverage and endorsements required herein.

16.5 Consultant shall furnish UTA with certificates of insurance (ACORD form or equivalent
approved by UTA) as required by this Contract. The certificates for each insurance
policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its
behalf All certificates and any required endorsements are to be received and approved
by UTA before work commences. Each insurance policy required by this Contract must
be in effect at or prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect
for the duration of the project. Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by
this Contract or to provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract.

16.6 UTA. as a self-insured governmental entity, shall not be required to provide insurance
coverage for the risk of loss to UTA premises and improvements or equipment owned by
UTA.

ARTICLE 17.0
Other Indemnities

17.1 Consultant shall protect, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless UTA and the other
Indemnitees against and from any and all Claims of any kind or nature whatsoever on
account of infringement relating to Consultant’s performance under this Contract. If
notified promptly in writing and given authority, information and assistance, Consultant
shall defend, or may settle at its expense, any suit or proceeding against UTA so far as
based on a claimed infringement and Consultant shall pay all damages and costs awarded
therein against UTA due to such breach. In case any portion of the Work is in such suit
held to constitute such an infringement or an injunction is filed that interferes with UTA’s
rights under this Contract, Consultant shall, at its expense and through mutual agreement
between the UTA and Consultant, either procure for UTA any necessary intellectual
property rights, or modify Consultant’s services or deliverables such that the claimed
infringement is eliminated.

17.2 Consultant shall: (i) protect, release, defend, indemnify and hold harmless UTA and the
other Indemnitees against and from any and all liens or Claims made or filed against
UTA or upon the Work or the property on which the Work is located on account of any
labor performed or labor, services, and equipment furnished by subcontractors of any
tier; and (ii) keep the Work and said property free and clear of all liens or claims arising
from the performance of any Work covered by this Contract by Consultant or its
subcontractors of any tier. If any lien arising out of this Contract is filed, before or after
Work is completed, Consultant, within ten (10) calendar days after receiving from UTA
written notice of such lien, shall obtain a release of or otherwise satisfy such lien. If
Consultant fails to do so, UTA may take such steps and make such expenditures as in its

Jo
UTA Professional Servtccs Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



discretion it deems advisable to obtain a release of or otherwise satisfy any such lien or
liens, and Consultant shall upon demand reimburse UTA for all costs incurred and
expenditures made by UTA in obtaining such release or satisfaction. If any non-payment
claim is made directly against UTA arising out of non-payment to any subcontractor,
Consultant shall assume the defense of such claim within ten (10) calendar days after
receiving from UTA written notice of such claim. If Consultant fails to do so, Consultant
shall upon demand reimburse UTA for all costs incurred and expenditures made by UTA
to satisfy such claim.

ARTICLE 18.0
Independent Contractor

18.1 Consultant is an independent contractor and agrees that its personnel will not represent
themselves as, nor claim to be, an officer or employee of UTA by reason of this Contract.
Consultant is responsible to provide and pay the cost of all its employees’ benefits.

ARTICLE 19.0
Prohibited Interest

19.1 No member, officer, agent, or employee of UTA during his or her tenure or for one year
thereafter shall have any interest, direct or indirect, including prospective employment by
Consultant in this Contract or the proceeds thereof without specific written authorization
by UTA.

ARTICLE 20.0
Dispute Resolution

20.1 The parties shall attempt to informally resolve all claims, counterclaims and other
disputes through the escalation process described below. No party may bring a legal
action to enforce any term of this Contract without first having exhausted such process.

20.2 The time schedule for escalation of disputes, including disputed requests for Change
Order, shall be as follows:

Level of Authority Time Limit
UTA’s Project Manager/Consultant’s Project Manager Five calendar days

UTA’s Director of Capital DevelopmentlConsultanfs Project Five calendar days
Principal

Unless otherwise directed by UTA’s Project Manager, Consultant shall diligently
continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

20.3 If the dispute cannot be resolved informally in accordance with the escalation procedures
set forth above, than either party may commence legal action in accordance with the
venue and law provisions of this Contract. If mutually agreed, the parties may also submit
the dispute to arbitration or mediation.

ARTICLE 21
Successors and Assignees

II
UTA Professional Services Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



21.1 Consultant shall not assign, sublet, sell, transfer, or otherwise dispose of any interest
in this Contract without prior written approval of UTA. and any attempted transfer in
violation of this restriction shall be void.

ARTICLE 22.0
Nonwaiver

22.1 No failure or waiver or successive failures or waivers on the part of either party in the
enforcement of any condition, covenant, or article of this Contract shall operate as a
discharge ofany such condition, covenant, or article nor render the same invalid, nor impair
the right of either party to enforce the same in the event of any subsequent breaches by the
other party.

ARTICLE 23.0
Notices or Demands

23.1 Any formal notice or demand to be given by one party to the other shall be given in
writing by one of the following methods: (i) hand delivered; (ii) deposited in the mail,
properly stamped with the required postage; (iii) sent via registered or certified mail; or
(iv) sent via recognized overnight courier service. All such notices shall be addressed as
follows:

If to UTA: with a required copy to:

Utah Transit Authority Utah Transit Authority

ATTN: Teressa Pickett ATTN: Gcneral Counsel

669 West 200 South 669 West 200 South

Salt Lake City. liT 84101 Salt Lake City, UT 84101

If to Consultant:

Stantec Architecture, Inc.

ATYN: Merlin Maley

1050 17th St. Suite A200

Denver, CO 80265-20 16

23.2 Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given, and shall he effective, on delivery
to the notice address then applicable for the party to which the notice is directed;
provided, however, that refusal to accept delivery of a notice or the inability to deliver a
notice because of an address change which was not properly communicated shall not
defeat or delay the giving of a notice. Either party may change the address at which such
party desires to receive written notice by providing written notice of such change to any
other party.

23.3 Notwithstanding Section 23.1, the parties may, through mutual agreement, develop
alternative communication protocols to address change notices, requests for information
and similar categories of communications. Communications provided pursuant to such
agreed means shall be recognized as valid notices under this Contract

UlA Professional services Contract — Not-to-exceed fee



ARTICLE 24.0
Contract Administrator

24.1 UTA’s Contract Administrator for this Contract is Teressa Pickett, or designee. All
questions and correspondence relating to the contractual aspects of this Contract
should be directed to said Contract Administrator, or designee.

ARTICLE 25.0
General Provisions

25.1 Neither this Contract nor any interest herein may be assigned, in whole or in part, by
either party hereto without the prior written consent of the other party, except that without
securing such prior consent, either party shall have the right to assign this Contract to any
successor or to such party by way of merger or consolidation or acquisition of
substantially all of the entire business and assets of such party relating to the subject
matter of this Contract, provided that such successor shall expressly assume all of the
obligations and liabilities of such party under this Contract, and provided further, that
such party shall remain liable and responsible to the other party hereto for the
performance arid observance of all such obligations.

25.2 This Contract shall be interpreted in accordance with the substantive and procedural laws
of the State of Utah. My litigation between the parties arising out of or relating to this
Contract will be conducted exclusively in federal or state courts in the State of Utah and
Consultant consents to the jurisdiction of such courts.

25.3 The headings of the articles, clauses, and sections of this Contract are inserted for reference
purposes only and are not restrictive as to content.

25.4 The parties enter in to this Contract for the sole benefit of the parties, in exclusion of any
third party, and no third party beneficiary is intended or created by the execution of this
Contract.

25.5 Any provision of this Contract prohibited or rendered unenforceable by operation of law
shall be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without
invalidating the remaining provisions of this Contract.

25.6 This Contract shall constitute the entire agreement and understanding of the parties with
respect to the subject matter hereof, and shall supersede all offers, negotiations and other
agmements with respect thereto.

25.7 Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and executed by the authorized
representatives of each party.

25.8 This Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts and by each of the parties
hereto on separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an
original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument.
Any signature page of this Contract may be detached from any counterpart and reattached
to any other counterpart hereof. The electronic transmission of a signed original of this
Contract or any counterpart hereof and the retransmission of any signed facsimile
transmission hereof shall be the same as delivery of an original.

25.9 Provisions of this Contract intended by their nature and content to survive termination of
this Contract shall so survive including, but not limited to, Articles 9, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17,

13
UTA Professional services Contract— Not-to-exceed fee



19,20 and 25.

ARTWEE 26.0
Insurance Coverage Requirements for Consultant Employees

26.1 The following requirements apply to this Contract and to any subcontract at any tier
that involves a sub-consultant that has a subcontract equal to or in excess of Si million
(including any subsequent modifications that cause the intital subcontract value to excr
exceed $1 million):

A. Consultant shall, prior to the effective date of this Contract, demonstrate to UTA
that Consultant has and will maintain an offer of qualified health insurance
coverage (as defined by Utah Code Ann. § 17B-2a-818.5) for the Consultant’s
employees and the employee’s dependents during the duration of this Contract.

B. Consultant shall also demonstrate to UTA that subcontractors meeting the above-
described subcontract value threshold have and will maintain an offer of qualified
health insurance coverage (as defined by Utah Code Ann. § i7B-2a-818.5for the
subcontractor’s employees and the employee’s dependents during the duration of
the subcontract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Contract as of the day and year
first above written.

UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY: STANTEC ARCHITECTURE, ENC:

By
Name
Title:

By____________________
Steve Meyer
Interim Executive Director

By__________________
Greg Thorpe, Project Manager

Legal Counsel

[ Director of Capital Projects

UTA Professional Services Contract — Not-to-exceed fee
14



H+- R
Stantec Architecture Inc
1050 17th Street, Suite A200

Stantec Denver, CO 80265

July 19, 2018
Revised October 30, 208

Attention: Greg Thorpe, P.E.
Utah Transit Authority
669 West 200 South
Salt Lake City, UT 84101

Dear Greg,

Reference: Construction Administration Services for LJTA’s Depot District Clean Fuels Technology
Center (DDCFTC)

As requested. I am providing you a proposal for design services during construction for the Depot District Technology
Center (DDTC). Stantec will serve as the prime consultant with myself as Project Principal and potentially Barry
Newton as Lead Architect. Barry was a member of the architectural team during construction the construction
documentation period, and is also has a long history of construction administration. Barry is currently committed to
another project which will potentially end in late December 2018. Stantec will submit our selected lead construction
administration architect’s resume to UTA for approval. This individual will be backed up by an architect from CRSA,
along with several architectural interns from both Stantec and CRSA. Our team includes the full consultant team from
the previous design efforts.

• CRSA: Associate Architect. Landscape Architect, Preservation Architect

• HDRIMDG: Equipment consultant (MDC was acquired by HDR in 2017)

• Jacobs: Civil Engineers

• Reaveley: Structural Engineers

• Colvin: Mechanical Engineers

• Spectrum: Electrical Engineers

• Fuel Solutions: Fueling Designer

We look forward to assisting UTA in the delivery of this exciting project. UTA has long needed replacement of its
existing Central Garage in order to expand its fleet operations and to service its growing fleet of CNG vehicles.
Construction of this new facility will start in early 2019 and will be phased to work within UTA’s funding stream. We
understand the preliminary schedule to be:

• 2018: Begin Drawing revisions to meet current codes, preconstruction meetings with the contractor
and UTA, design review meeting with Salt Lake City.

De&gr’ with comrnur’ity in mind



July 19, 2016
Greg Thorpe. RE.
Page 2 of 3

Reference: Construction Administration Services for IJTA’s Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center (DDCFTC)

2019: Complete drawing revisions to meet current codes. permitting. Construction of Wash. Diesel

Fueling. Grading. Drainage. tJtHities, Bus Parking, Employee Parking. Bus Canopies, and

Demolition of existng buil&ngs.

2020— 2021: Corstructron of Mafrtenance and Operat’ons

We recognize UTA’s reoui.rements for an hourly baseo contract. and will invoice at our approved billing rates, which are

established by direct labor + overhead + 10% profit Each year, we ‘till need to update individuals’ rates to account for

changes in direct labor and overhead. We anticipate thrs happening oetween January and tlarch each year and w.ll

update and our rate table for UTA’s review and acceptance,

As an hourly construction administration contract, we have provided the total number of estimated hours to complete

each task, including weekly OAC meetings in our July 19 proposal. UTA requested Stantec to reduce its estimated fee

for Tasks Sand 4 which were previously submitted and approved. An updated scope of work is provided that accounts

for this reduction in time for Tasks 3 and 4. We are also including Task 5: As-Built drawings, which we believe will be

required by UTA, but will need to be provided on a time and materials basis. Also included in the updated SOW is the

expected amount of RFIs and Submittals requiring review. If needed. UTA has said it will participate in the review of

submittals and RFIs to help keep the Stantec team within budget.

If it appears the team will exceed its allotment of hours within each task, we will need to have the ability to invoice UTA

directly for this time which should be addressed in the contract under additional services. In the reverse, if all the hours

within each task are not required, Stantec will not be invoicing UTA for this time.

Throughout the construction duration, members from the Stantec team will be required to travel to Salt Lake City. This

will be every three weeks to attend Owner Architect Contractor (OAC) meetings in person. perform a site walk,

generate a site observation report, and attend additional meetings with UTA and the contractor as required. Each of

these trips has been estimated to be a 1 1,4 day effort, but we will stay an additional day when required wilh prior

approval from UTA. Included are 13 OAC meetings + field reports for Task 3 and 35 DAC meetings + field reports for

Task 4. Our local architect, CRSA, will be available to meet on site if required during non-OAC weeks. All time will be

monitored closely, and a status report of time spent on associated activities wit ce proviced with each invoice.

Our updated fees from Seotember 12. 2018 are also i,rcluded following the revised scope of work to capture all

requested changes.

If you have any quesbons regarding the content of this proposal. or services to be performed during construction,

please do not hesitate to contact me directly, Greg This will be a monumental project once its completed and Stantec

is honored to be ncluded on UTA’s team

Desig r’v. I H conmril v in mind



July 19, 2018
Greg Thorpe. RE.
Page 3 of 3

Reference: Construction Administration Services for UTAs Depot District Clean Fuels Technology Center (DDCFTC)

Sincerely.

Merlin Maley AlA. LEED AR NCARB
Principal

Phone: 303-575-8497
Mobile: 303-921-8708
Merlin. rnaley©stantec. corn

Altachmenl: tJTA SOWdoc. UTA DDTC GarageCA Fees 1 .xlsx
c. Barry Newton. Carl Hole

ruin documenA

Des.q with corn’ n. r if, rnincJ



SCOPE OF WORK

Definitions for Typical Contract Administration Terminology

OAC Owner Architect Contractor Meeting

RFI: Request for Information - generated by the contractor, responded to by the
design/engineering team

ASI: Architects Supplemental Instructions — typically 8x1 I sketches, revising or clarifying the design

Submittal: Product literature, shop drawings, calculations provided by the contractor for specific
elements/products that will be utilize in construction. Designers review for conformance
with the contract documents

As-Builts: Clean drawings provided to the owner after construction completion, utilizing all markups to the
contract documents provided by the contractor, and incorporating all RFls and ASIs

TASK 1: UPDATE DRAWINGS

Since comoletion of the 100% construction document package, Satt Lake City has amenoed its building codes and
adopted the 2015 International Building Code (IBC). The current design package was produced under the 2012 IBC,
and will therefore need to be upgraded to the current code slandard. We believe this will be an approximate 12 week
effort after execution of Ihe new contract. If the City is wIling to make an exception and perm:t the project under the
2012 lEG then these services are no longer necessary. Items to be reviewed:

• Energy code compliance
• Architectural code compliance
• Structural code compliance
• Mechanical code compliance
• Electrical code compliance
• Civil and Utility code compliance

TASK 2: PERMITTING ASSISTANCE

The Stantec team will assist UTA with the permitting process. The services include the following

• Digitally submitting the drawings and specifications to Sail Lake City

• 2 Meetings with Salt Lake City
• 2 Rounds of resocncing to pemi1t’ro questions from Salt Lake City

• Excluded from cur proposal are all costs associatee w;th the permit ‘evew process



TASK 3: WASH BUILDING, DIESEL, AND SITE CONSTRUCTION
JANUARY — SEPTEMBER, 2019

The Stantec team will be providing UTA full construchon administration services during this task. CRSA will be on
site weekly, and Stantec will be on site bi-weekly. Stantec will call into the weekly OAC meetings on weeks when we
are not on site. Our assumptions for this CA effort include:

• Attendance at tn-weekly OAC meetings: 13 Total

• Site/Field Reports: 13 Total

- Consulting designers and enginees will also provide their own site/field reports following their
specific site visits.

• RFIs: 150 Total

• Submittals: 150 Total

UTA might be required to review submittals if the GC’s
submittal log is greater than 1 50. We will work with UTA to
establish this list once after receipt of the anticipated submitall
log from the GC.

• ASIs: 25 Total

• Punchlist: Site work, Wash Building, Canopies

• As-Builts: Site work, Wash Building, Canopies

• 6 Month Warranty: Site walk 6 months after construction completion to
review the construction prior to 1 year warranty
expiration. Wll issue a field report for any required
contractor work items.

• 11 Month Warranty: Not Included. By UTA only

TASK 4: MAINTENANCE AND OPERATIONS CONSTRUCTION
(JANUARY 2020— DECEMBER 2021)

The Stantec team will be providing UTA full construction administration services during this task. CRSA will be on
site weekly, and Stantec will be on site bi-weekly. Stantec will call into the weekly OAC meetings on weeks when we
are not on site. Our assumptions for this CA effort include:

• Attendance at tn-weekly OAC meetings: 35 Total

• Site/Field Reports: 35 Total

- Consulting designers and enginees will also provide their own site/field reports following their
specific site visits.

• RFls: 1000 Total

• Submittals: 500 Total

UTA might be required to review submittals if the GC’s
submittal log is greater than 500. We will work with UTA to
establish this list once after receipt of the anticipated submitall
log from the GC.

U



• ASIs: 150 Total

• PinchIist Martenance & Operations

• As-Builts: Maintenance & Operations

• 6 Month Warranty Site walkS months after construction complebori to
review the construction prior to 1 year wa’ranly
expiration. Will ssue a field report for any requirec
contractor work items.

• 11 Month Warranty: Not included. By UTA only

TASK 5: AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

As-Built drawings will be provided via change order (time and materials) if the Stantec team’s budgets for Tasks 3 & 4
have been consumed as part of the construction administration efforts. Stantec will provide a proposal to UTA for this
effort. If budget still remains within Tasks 3 & 4 budgets. but is not enough to cover Task 5. the difference will be
submitted to UTA for approval.

a



Stantec
UTA Dopol 01171701 T0o1000600 000)07 P16po641 04117102010

Revised 911212018
60s AJlllOOtoliOo. .)llI0l10l100, & 000541340 040,166 2 Week, ‘4 woolS 160 20*761 02765,066 254 700015

00 2101 00 0.,70*Dsy, 26002511177 0000
Pmo.ooeI Cobb too. upd.Ied 006, opdlled 0013210 .117*10* 1*02210 -62610)0* lmio-1o40,sl 462621 -102322

61$0U .rmo.Sy I as.t- nazi ‘tat
I R.,6 O,.w10q, P,,mtl, Coo,tmolIoo Post

Cb6il10 I 7* 0.t. *0e114,flboo Coo omoolo,
24mct La*o owolo.d fr.o* % Coos 17*o bI. —
60*6 6002%) Ilnoe1] fto00I p.ao,p•

Stanloc Architecture Inc 165,04

‘00064 1,641.7 06410 1707.63 3000 ‘ii:* 0007.7 72 103.063 63.026 64004 302 161,207
0446500006 6566160 14500 574.61 II 00°6 300.06 1031.1 ‘741 021.267 0 50 - $10520 272 635,127
0,000100664 0071. 06003 010761 060% T6T’44 -

QOJOC 0110 543.7 3727 0.00% 577.07 0
6 5 20 3 50 0 00 0 50 0 10
1, 56 56___3 16
11 20 56 1 50
6 083.71 001 III 736 ‘ISo 231320 3t1 043,607 3.493 544734’

‘260 342.0o 063.64 00,07 361.06 $110.60 0 20 00 0 00
60 070.60 163.69 10,00 100.00 0011. 420 053.32 00 400 353.330

060 132,06 503.06 10,00 14.4 203.10 00 10 0 50
.60 12706 044.71 “6013o ‘lTIo l7T.04 11o ‘9ltos 91 006 312.31$ 200,207
00 547.00 01?.43 ‘WOo 51140 5I37,42 114 1fl26 34 53.200 72 30.004

.00 120072 546.42 00.6) 57,44 301.0 144 51 1,70 15 566., 7: 56.540 50 230 $10,370

wl1 D,4oo, 2,3,7.04 14502 57564 30.00% 55113 $133120 40 16,40 I ‘ 34 33,201 72 36.004
00 Ll*Ie 0*0)11000 “ .70 12507 14)45 46E00% 50.6$ “iE.o So 73b 7 *o I 6—01 $3.

pb0100tlleO00000 0D 15700 201060 117026 503,20 3140.6 60 70 001061 00 07 III.
66 ‘00 02500 06)33 690 ‘Sl

00140 700 122:0 537065 •70’54 61 I

6* TOO

o.,7.l.o2’,:2s;s74o3o22,oIo7T4I,.’7o

Olo0dT100I “ . —
l44. 10141
14.00)1067
0611440
0.00.) 040
6000000140146000611 7000t,7l4 06006

F 1720

I..,,

I’S

CRSA

007 ] DIV

g!
‘I’S’ 6 5l.06C

004.7. 6 57,00 4 5670 120 no.020 00 31704 lIe *01.016

J 6 1000 4 SIlO 6’] 11,232 0 0 I 22.227
$57.’> 3’ ‘7,,;”47c75’02 3300 5 5477 63 27l7 II 5044 60 l6$40

004,65 02 5
575.60 13 I

7713

O’lTrII4’ooto. 570512’ — 7
“ ‘7 152]1L”j Ii)1L.0 ‘70*3”

151 I)’ L7 16 lot,,] Ill 05,70’ 1
47071 09007 537fl I ‘a—’”a— ‘ss— t”l’o’l’l

E106101*464p,0.n 1
—r,.

$4,006 30,706 167.410 2!6.702_.. 055,477

30Th. WItH REIIOOURSAOLE EXPENSES 0260.443 *21333 *407310 560.607 $014,017

0104p0540 000’.,

lob 05104010
‘01P600145460.7

110,0%
300.0* 5’

530,30 201.40 00.00%

00111 toIl

247.27 0,00%

Iko 100*1
eq 5.4

560.06 10.1400

5014 510.04 00
50614 400.54 II

!CkeomedRelIol,,,..I,0o Po7’llog Cools

$7.14 003,33

.0 00700

$12 1111.04 2

I’’’”:’’

0 5220 cooL

$6570’ ‘17 , , 13,020 24 , 52,17

$12 “7

50.65’ 40 02.6)225 00,53 I 006 100.200 464 0202
10 44 052033 0 III 0 50 40 01,3

020 400.010 364 035,7,

342.06I’’. I

01.44045 04.002 17.’ $10,701] 66 64.002 204 020.0

0’0’]

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘‘I’.’]4’’’ t02S’t0T7i4

$0

7o20’7T0’1l007 [‘9.ohooo”]I IOt 1000 [007 I
‘‘t’’””]’111.”20W4t4’’ 0 s°I 0 50 0 561 0 601 l I&0
,‘jro’u2’.,js” 56j%,.’ 0 501 0 50 0 501 0 50 01 koo

0Y:5T”.’.0t’$1. 0 001 0 50 0 101 0 50 II 11.57*
072310,6k $ 271 0 10 4 stI 0 20 ii 26,00

5,T40’ 0000 $1201 2211 530 3000 0000 1000 5,244 5226.1$
.n 100 $12001 10 5400 000 II. 100 *0,200 510 04,204.06

20 26001 3 56 7 50 20 0000 40 61.6*0.04
7460:ol_, 4*2’ s’ 0*3,0’ 11144,

1004F00704P40100 ‘so,) I



04-5;. 101St 004TH REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 535.507 3751 012.051 540.701

Jacobs

0,0.011 4411—.
0400

711’91 4- I I l4_44
MI.40o15191 pso:.o 134:;
Mooli Tolol I’TW-1;44f,’ . —
6331344041331004(341.14 04414009 403(1

99

HEXOIMLOG HIS

to;o[5çn •“*1 -

54;

‘-op

Mr .*- 001

1_134
3

$24.j

000]

-I

164.73 $ 75 30 0070044 210451 321 75’ 5’; 4 0 II 2.01 - 004 399 50
501 .— l•0 I:’ S

1.

;-—:s-o:.

.1;? 1.400 :1. 0,1’j 7

50-’:: :01; 120’ 16 2—04’ 5:04 15_s

044.7.45;:; — 0135’ 114574 II ILI 20 02.0 01:90
5;-.- s;- 5410’ —: 20 $1000 0: 4: 24

;,::j iL!i] ,, j 54.444 H- -HI

i Hb: t’j Hi ‘!

Jl’:

:—;:j—• sii

t: Hi-
iiic.jtngin,er, HIS

‘.l.Sd 6590009 0.0.00- 45 04 506.31 I 009%? 243; 41 3154 54’ 51 15020 zSjI:o 13•f. 44 444. 315 3:3 51?

55,544134 35429 364.221 40.09% 310111 314531 5t o.4 sa.s4 aS 574 615 01 ll,-2-’ 115

05014.04 5’41 016021 40.141. S2c’I 5375’ 51 14344 409 0991? °I 1:1 ‘5; 54411

331.ocj ossool 32L so 5534 05 4 oa.ci4”This0i00i ol 1’ 331 03_’ 521

,,____________ $6,I 50147115.00, sI’.’sI 30211553-03271 0 0 0; ol 601 o1 10271

‘ .°‘° mJ i.s4 on ‘-‘°I 1003179.4 445 50 44 510475 30 1315

I 200’1 30141 5150 0, 10 1 531 0 “l 4 1 15

rLtrL LE
100 .44 011 455 154 1000 1100.50—— 31?? -0 3? 200 403 II ‘(%S 340 14000.09

44,444 Oeoqo’

34.5130 45540,5

50. Fa€5 D05.ii

‘347? 342.57

5107.01

010044, £1022

14.00’- 5(7.17

11: 34444

1007.00

00550?

5°I
524

045.534 100101,, -

3143

14.94

21

SI 4.50.

l2CI III

31 0340

52451

I’

01 333’

‘.54

.15.10
— ‘I 312

-I ., -_.. j owl

I 001 121

34390
545021

501 121

040

I—--- 101 01
£700

III 06.000-00

silo
10’ 003400.00

SI
oil 0900.00

1600 00 301 0’ WI II
320’ 04 141 2041 1201 1001 0161 1401 GlOil

-ii °I “I 101 II 40f 01 ‘04 II 05440



TOTAL 0J I 76 502 I LIRTAILE 651615550 145,054 02.100 570.050 55615 1156.171

h60107001111 -

.adefro

140l—

— Lao

06
500is
10

1st31

Sn
62035
•3a35

sn

1S.7
53330
120.71

00.00%

l5.%
00.00%
07500%

650.77

57,0?
55532
06.25

0117.00

007-il

5020.24

40

40

05 657

55-754
SI-I??

15

10

$0
$0

3131

720

43

10

075.524

52739

24

40

52 ‘44
54

$137

44

504

44

15431

554,304
10.045
03.304

Colvin Engincoilno 3044%
: ff533 21 330s ‘ 71 016 5 30 TI 15.504

. 55701 44 05.044 15 72334 510 034.450
‘16’ $1,004 ‘‘b 52 4 025.375

. 505.21 40 42243 14 05452 12 ‘ñl $20,407

44III 1*4*1 Han4.I 707.03 50413 00.00% 310.10 0707.04 0 35.334 6 15 5 It 5 50 0 17.336
1qdo,D Maoists so .4o stub 00.00% 30430 0006.20 i6 51000 6 00 20 50 0 90 44 17.504

6017’ Iri’ nfl. 77 .1117 5lfl]07400

Sm” T,IOrTlriIl;’.l,’, 06*54 I. 6I0 ,,104l1l5l.IIe.07E]10X’S’I
[9r’r’t.c fl 7fl ‘0E 50fl 4l] I
5545.41,4 Fops-oslo Tilol 50200 0006 11,305 37355 04,000

TOTALI.’ITHiiFIVSLJIiSAOII 50151-5-555 i25l.’i 00.552 1117.147 10.030 5005.060

tII&Thtl.,o.,

Speolnim Engineers
4a5Ma0aool

WT07—
‘4.% 0500091
5*400060 Pooled lobooge?

III Mswol

01504 035.

110%

5060.30

1027_I’

535.05 50.766

102.52

044.70
$45-IS

$30.00
330.07
55220
009.04

013.30

‘4.7?

05.71 5420*‘000511,313 22 $1257 00 35.329 16 51.000 250 500.601

Foici Solutions, Inc.
,04odIsbooto 10010.R. I ‘-‘41 I I 5972.601 15

00003,
5606
7PM

406

DOS

Ills.
144.
973.

345.

‘33.
027.

10.00%
10.301
50 0045

10,005

00.005

$740.35
“37.32
1074,03
1290,34

194621

146 49

09

5&nc
51,611

13445’

14,00
00,047
04.760
00.5$.

33.454

0075
5075
5240

5%440

0443

1304
57.574

3900

3503

32

242

67

050.705

073,311
523.332

.-,-

3060

57,051

00.020

24

12

0675

15,560
14,050

1444
12.426
51.504

50,059

4[ 0540

1 59.52?

60

534

010
94
70

00

‘00

51

174535
.24I
13.’

0110.251
$475560
513.311
$075650
154204

04290

36 204

14.444

sojen 005mb IF4IOIO*400d F. I 500.301 I 1135161 92 0002? $5550 06 32953 3542 45 15.454

‘010006, J. I I 646.50 3 563 15 Silo ii 5279



I $16003 o914Ftt’.oL08 s°1co:: I- ‘sI 3845
-— S300 78.00 5] _F41]c 4_I 3 372-5 ‘0411 6 1206

50500 F 0021 50 3 27: 050] 6 5238
—

e I F 2 6 5520
.38’ 82-5,2:53 I.-.r,’osr6. 3161 $73] 7: 50 3 0223 015 6 3375I — — —

F - - —____t

Ip.oI.I.iiL.I184 CO f-I Vi I loll F5I:!IIOM’I,5145 411201*’ 4 ii, •o I -,:, 2.l:

I Taski: I Task2: F Taokl I Task4: I TOTAL:

TOTALSTANIECI,ABORWITHESII$!ATEOEXPENSES $546,288 $150,913 51,332.088 $150,765 $2,220,050



RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE UTAH TRANSIT 
AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF THE CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

WITH STADLER US, INC. FOR THE EXTENSION OF LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 
R2018-11-06 November 28, 2018 

                         
 

WHEREAS, Utah Transit Authority (the “Authority”) is a public transit district 
organized under the laws of the State of Utah and was created to transact and 
exercise all of the powers provided for in the Utah Limited Purpose Local 
Government Entities – Local Districts Act and the Utah Public Transit District Act; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Authority’s Board of Trustees (“Board”) passed Resolution 
R2018-05-09 on May 23, 2018 Granting Contract and Expenditure Authority 
(“Resolution”); and  
 

WHEREAS, the Authority previously entered into a Lease Agreement with 
Stadler US, Inc. for the lease of a portion of the Authority’s Warm Springs Facility, 
located at approximately 900 North 500 West, Salt Lake City, Utah; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to amend the Lease Agreement to extend 
its term through January 31, 2019; and  

 
WHEREAS, the amendment to the Lease Agreement, attached hereto as 

Exhibit A, has a value of $67,760 and has been reviewed and recommended for 
approval by staff; and   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of the Authority: 

 
1. That the Board hereby approves the contract amendment with Stadler US, 

Inc. to extend the Lease Agreement as set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

2. The Board authorizes the Executive Director and his designee(s) to execute 
the contract in substantially the same form as the exhibit to this Resolution. 
 

3. That the Board hereby ratifies any and all actions previously taken by the 
Authority’s management and staff to prepare the contract amendment with 
Stadler US, Inc. 

 
4. That the corporate seal be attached hereto.  
 
 
  



 2 

Approved and adopted this 28th day of November 2018. 
 
 
 

________________________________
 Carlton Christensen, Chair 

      Board of Trustees 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
         (Corporate Seal) 
 
  



 3 

 CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned duly qualified Chair of the Board of Trustees of the Utah Transit 
Authority certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted at a legally convened meeting of the Board of Trustees held on the 28th   
day of November, 2018. 
 
 
 

__________________________ 
Carlton Christensen, Chair 
Board of Trustees 

 
 
 
______________________________ 
Robert K. Biles, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
___________________ 
Legal Counsel 
  



 4 

Exhibit A 
 



Rev.10/11/18

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Contract #: Contract Title:
Stadler Lease 
Extension

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: Teressa Pickett

Impacted Areas: Included in budget? Yes

Procurement method: Contractor: Stadler

Sole-Source Reason: Total Contract Value  $                    643,720 
Qty & Unit price

Contract term (Months) 8 Contract options (Months) Monthly

Contract start date: 6/1/2018 Contract end date: 1/31/2019

N/A $ Value of Next Lowest Bidder  N/A 

Attachments:

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

15-1497TP

Paul Drake

Other attachments? (list)

Contract routing sheet attached?

The Stadler 8 month extension period for the lease space at Warm Springs.  FTA approval was received.

Revenue Contract

Number of responding firms:

Detailed Description & Purpose:

(Items to include: Current condition, Benefits, Return on investment, Savings, Other alternatives considered)

Motion to approve the contract

F&AC Review and/or Approval Date: 11/28/2018

New total contract value is $200,000 - $999,999, and Change-order is > 15%

N/A

Heavy Rail facility









UTA Contract No. 15-1497TP 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment #4 to be executed 
in duplicate as of the date first herein written. 

Ivo Schener, r asurer 

� 0�1dJ� Uh- M111m� 
J�� 

LANDLORD 

UT AH TRANSIT AUTHORITY 

By: 
Robert K. Biles, VP of Finance 

B
��fi Esrate �d 

Legal Approved as to Form 

UTA Contract No. 15-1497TP Amendment #4 to Lease Agreement [Page 3 of 4]

By:___________________________________
 W. Steve Meyer, Interim Executive Director















































































Rev.061418

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Contract #: Contract Title:

7200 S TRAX Bridge 
Replacement with 
UDOT

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: Teressa Pickett

Impacted Areas: Included in budget? Yes

Procurement method: Contractor:
Stacy and Witbeck & 
UTA

Sole-Source Reason: Total Contract Value  $                    729,934 
Qty & Unit price

Contract term (Months)  10 months Contract options (Months)  N/A 

Contract start date: 11/29/2018 Contract end date: 9/30/2019

N/A Next Lowest Bidder:  N/A 

Attachments: Yes

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

16-1846TP

E. Gregory Thorpe, PE

Other attachments? (list)

Contract routing sheet attached?

The scope of work for the Task Order No. 64 is identified in Exhibit 1 – SWI Scope and Cost Letter dated August 
31, 2018 and accompanying costs sheets, which is hereby attached and incorporated into this Task Order.  The 
Project Reimbursement Agreement and Amendment No. 1 with UDOT requires that UDOT will reimburse UTA 
for 100% of actual costs who will pay corresponding amounts to SWI.  The Substantial Completion (SC) Date for 
this Task Order is corrected from that noted in Task Order #37.  It has two parts.  The first SC date is March 31, 
2019 for completion of the conversion of the double track to single track to allow for the existing east bridge to 
be demolished and replaced by UDOT.  The second SC date is estimated at 30 days after UDOT completes the 
new bridge by August 29. The Final Acceptance Date will then be 30 days after. The amount of Task Order No. 
64 is $729,934. The additional amount paid by UDOT per Reimbursement Agreement Amendment No. 1 is 
$729,934 for Stacy and Witbeck and $232,737 for UTA project management expense.

Sole-Source

Number of responding firms:

Detailed Description & Purpose:

(Items to include: Current condition, Benefits, Return on investment, Savings, Other alternatives considered)

Motion to approve the contract

Review and/or Approval Date: 11/28/2018

Contract is $200,000 - $999,999

N/A

7200 S TRAX Bridge



Once approved, please forward to Contract Administrator

UTA

Agenda Item No.:
Board Review Date:

CONTRACT ROUTING SHEET

CONTRACT SECTION

1) ContracUP.O. No. 16-1 846TP (4 ssigned by Purchasing) Contract Administrator: Teressa Pickeft

Project Manager: Greg Thorpe
2) Contract Type HA. A&E/Oesign H B. Blanket P0 Hc. construction H D. Goods FE. Modification

H E. Option H F. Other

__________

H C. Renewal H H. Services H I. Task Orders

3) Procurement Method H RFQ (Quote) H IFS (Low Bid) H RFQU (Qualification)
121 RFP (Best-value) H Sole source H Other:

_______

4) Contract Title 7200 S TRAX Bridge Replacement Amendment with UDOT
5) Description /

Purpose
(ci contract or project)

6) Contractor Name

7) Effective Dates

8) Option to renew?

7200 S OCS and Signal System Upgrade due to the 7200 S TRA)(
Bridge Replacement with UDOT. 100% to be reimbursed by UDOT

Stacy and Witbeck, Inc.

Beginning: 11129118 Ending: 09130119

H Yes No Renewal terms
NIA

FINANCIAL SECTION
9) Total Board Approval Amount:

9a) Current Contract Value:
9b) Amendment Amount:
9d) New Contract Value (including all amendments)
9e) Is the amount an estimate?

(Estimate if per transaction cost)

9f) If estimated, how
was the estimate
calculated?

S 729,934.00

HYes HNo

10) Is the amount a one-time purchase or annual recurring purchase?

11) Account Code 40-7390.68912

N/A

12) Budgeted? H Yes H No Budget amount: $
13) Will this contract require support from another department?

14) If so. is the other department(s) aware of this contract and the

15) If box 2a or 2c is checked, has the Qualified Heath Insurance
SIGNATURE SECTION Route to?

Attorney/Legal Yes

H One-time H Recurring

Capital Project Code SGR39OIB

729,934.00

HN0

Yes HN0

Accounting Review

IT Review (IT software or hardware)

uplosloic Manager/Program Manager

up to ssotc Dir, Sr. Mgr, RGM, or ChiefNP

up to siooi< ChiefNP, or
Oir, Sr. Mgr, RGM (capital, Maint . Ops only)

Over$100K Executive Director

Over 5200K Board Approval

H Yes

Yes

HYes HN0

required support? HYes

Certificate been verified?
Initials

I wS I Barr Simmons

Yes H No I I Bryan Steele

HYes No I N/A

I

_______

i-*u9i

__________________

I

___________________________________________

I I
Approval Date

Supply Chain Manager for board meeting agenda and approval

HN0

HN0

HYes HN0

HYes HN0

HYes HN0
If Yes, route to the Sr

E Gregory Thorpe

779ó/4.
oo4jg, Eddy) Curn,n,ns

W Steve Meyer

Revised 7/1 2/2018 Page I of I



TASK ORDER NO.64

TASK ORDER NAME: 7200 South TRAX Bridge Replacement Amendment with UDOT

PROJECT CODE: 40-3190.68912, M5P19018

This Task Order No. 64 to the On Call Maintenance Contract, dated December 30,2016, is entered
into by and between Utah Transit Authority (UTA) and Stacy and Witbeck, Inc. (Contractor) as of
October 15.2018.

This Task Order is part of the On Call Maintenance Contract and is governed by the terms thereof

The purpose of this Task Order is to specifically define the scope, schedule, price, and other terms
applicable to the work identified herein.

UTA and Contractor hereby agree as follows:

1.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of work for the Task Order No. 64 is identified in Exhibit 1 - SWI Scope and Cost
Letter date August 31, 2018 and accompanying costs sheets, which is hereby attached and
incorporated into this Task Order. The Project Reimbursement Agreement and Amendment No.
1 with UDOT requires that they will reimburse UTA for 100% of actual costs who in turn will pay
SWI for the same.

2.0 SCHEDULE

The Substantial Completion (SC) Date for this Task Order is corrected from that noted in Task
Order #37. It has two parts. The first SC date is March 31, 2019 for completion of the
conversion of the double track to single track to allow for the existing east bridge to be
demolished and replaced by UDOT. The second SC date is estimated at 30 days after UDOT
completes the new bridge by August 29. The Final Acceptance Date will then be 30 days after.

3.0 NOT TO EXCEED PRICE

The price for this task order is a not to exceed $729,934 for engineering design and develop
construction drawings for the implementation and installation of Track Work needed to establish
two independent interlockings system. Including prior Task Order No. 37 at $4,272,343 the total
of all work on the 7200 South project isa not to exceed price of $5,002,277 to be paid based upon
actual costs.

4,0 APPLICABILITY OF FEDERAL CLAUSES

This Task Order does D does not [Check Applicable] include federal assistance funds which
requires the application of the Federal Clauses appended as Exhibit D to the On Call Maintenance
Contract.

1i’s WITNESS WHEREOF, this Task Order has been executed by UTA and the Contractor or its
appointed representative

(Signatures on next page)
On-Call Maintenance Contract fi UT16-1846TP





UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORII’Y: STACY AND WITBECK, iNC.:

By:

__________________________

By:

_______________________

W. Steve Meyer. Interim Exec. Director

By:

___________________________

Date:

_____________________

D (tddy) Cunains, Acting VP
Operati sand Capital

By:

____________________

no. Capital Project Director

By:

______________________

B. Gregory Thorpe, Project Manager

uk11 \...L çj., (rJ)

On-Call Maintenance Contract # UT16-1846TP



Exhibit 1- SWI Scope and Cost Letter date August 31, 2018

5kGy kind Whbeok

August 31, 2018 OCS

Mr. Greg, Thrope
Utah Transit Authority
669 West 200 South
Salt Lake City, UT 84104

Reference: On-Call Maintenance Contract
Contract No.: 16-1846TP

Subject: 16-629—7200 South OCS and Signal System Upgrade

Dear Greg:

Thank you for the opportunity to propose on this project. Attached please find our cost
estimate for the 72005 Signal, and OCS upgrades. The 0(5 and Signal upgrades include
upgrading the signal system from one interlocking to two interlocking with new signals installed
at each turnout. The OCS upgrades provided from review comments received from UTA made
betvjeert 30% design to 100% design. The proposed work to install the OCS and signal updates
requires an increase in required shutdowns from the original 8 weekend shutdowns to 12
proposed weekend shutdowns, an increase in 4 shutdowns.

Exclusions:

• Railroad Protective Insurance
• Permit Fees
• Davis Bacon Wages
• Buy America Certification
• Quality Control Testing and Supervision
• HAZMAT and Contaminated Material Testing and Remediation
• Railroad Flagging, El, or Maintainers

• Cost of UTA bus bridge

• Cost of UTA test trains

• Existing Trackwork Track to Earth Repairs
• Track to Earth Testing

• Over-excavation and Grade Stabilization

• Spare parts- Trackwork, Signal, or OCS
• Training

• Additional costs for civil design changes based on the bridge structure
• Utility and duct hank conflict resolution
• As-Built Survey New Trackwork, Signals, or OCS
• Geometry Car

1958 West North Ternpe SI
Salt take Cly, UT MI 16

I: WI -666 -1840 8W .42.7489

On-Call Maintenance Contract # UT1 6-1 846TP



ftoc and Witbeok
• In-Line Rail Ultrasonic Testing

• Laydown yard rental costs
• OCS Power down costs
• Ballast Mat or Deck Waterproofing on New Bridge
• Sales Tax on Permanent Materials

Clarifications;

o Please see detailed list of each bid tern below
• The unit costs for each bid tern includes the costs of insurance, bond, and risk at the

agreed upon rates.
• Management Time for construction meetings, layout, and installation has been included

in the unit prices below.
• SW, has bid this project with no cost for thermite weld testing as UTA is responsible for

proviefing the weld tester and UC for the On-Call Contract.
• SWI has bid all work as being done under shutdown windows with the exception of the

new OCS foundations and access roads. The new OCS foundations will be poured during
non-revenue hours and OCS power down will he required.
The scope of work is inclusive of only the items and scope that are listed below. Any
other items of work or changes to the below scope will need to be repriced

Summary of Costs and Scope for each item:

Bid Item 1000— Field Engineering and Project Controls -1.00 IS - Total of $19,929.00 - This bid
item includes Stacy and Witbeck field support from project manager, construction manager,
and field engineer to manage construction. The field engineer will also perform pre-task
planning and coordination with UTA. This item also includes office manager time for payroll and
accounts payable, as well as needed time for a Track Superintendent to manage the field
installations.

Bid Item 2000- Safety Program & Administration -1.00 IS-Total of $2,019.00— includes the
cost of safety supplies, FRA drug testing and site Safety Manager.

Bid Item 6000— Signal System Upgrades —1.00 15—Total of $370,341.00— This bid item
includes the cost for SWI’s subcontractor to design, construct and install the request to change
the signal system from one interlocking to two separate interlocking’s. The requested design
revision will require that one of the added signals will be located immediately south of the new
bridge. The scope of this proposal is as follows;

o Construction labor and equipment, and testing
o Signal System design services
o TDX / Office upgrades to the control room

The design scope includes:

On-Call Maintenance Contract ft UT 16-1 846TP



flno9 @td We©k
o Revise the 1OD% sgnaI design to incorpoate additional equipment, and update

functionality as needed to split the existing single interlocking into two separate
interlockings

o update the TDX control office graphics, databases, and functions as required to
support two separate interlockings

Long Lead Materials include:
o New signal foundations — qty 4

o New impedance bonds — qty 8
o New complete signals —qty 4
o New custom LCP (ict. B) — qty 1
o New AFTAC cabinet with cards — qty 2

House equipment
o Field cable
o Bonding materials

Bid Item 7000— OCS System Updates —1.00 IS — Total of $180,831.00— This bid item includes
the cost for SWI’s subcontractor to make the necessary changes and upgrades to the Overhead
Catenary System based on design criteria comments received from UTA and WSP transitioning
from 30% design to 100% design.

Requested changes from the 30% design to the 100% design include the ability to sectionalize
the Overhead Catenary systems. The sectionalization allows:

o Single track operation flexibility
o Dead train recovery
o Maximize operational efficiency
o Ease of maintenance capabilities to provide material longevity
o Isolate track sections (power) for safety, operations, and maintenance

The scope of this proposal includes:
o Construction labor, fabrication and equipment, and testing
o Messenger and contact wire
o 500 MCM Cable (bonding cables)

The changes in scope include:

Design Section Disconnect OCS Cantilevers Headspans Jumper
Insulators Switches Poles Assemblies

300% 6 4 14 / 12

100% 11 7 13 11 3 18

OuanL 5 3 1 4 1 6

Bid Item 10000— Mobilization —1.00 1.S — Total $8,188.00 —This bid item includes cost of
mobilizing the equipment necessary to perform the work. It also includes portable restrooms
and disposal of waste generated from the project site and project final clean-up.

On-Call Maintenance Contract # UT1 6-1 846TP



Stacy and Witbeok

Bid Item 14000— Insulated Joint Remove — Install Rail Plug with Weld —4.00 EA - Total of
$17,524.00- This bid item includes the cost to remove the existing Insulated Joints and replace
with a new 29’6” section of rail. Bid item also includes time to install and thermite weld the
needed for the new 19’6” section of rail using two thermite welds per rail plug. Also included is
tine to load and unload the removed Ii plug. SWI has also assumed that the work will be
performed Sunday during shutdown durations without the impedance of any UTA trains. All
worksites have been assumed to be accessed via hi-rail equipment.

Bid Item 15000— Insulated Joint Plugs —2 EA thermite Welds) Plug - 12,00 EA - Total of
$74,340.00- This bid item includes cost to purchase the required 12 EA insulated joint plugs.
Bid item also includes the cost to load, unload, and set into place six insulated joint plugs. Bid
item also includes time to install and thermite weld the needed six insulated joint plugs using
two tlierrnite welds per insulated joint plug. Also included is time to load and unload the
removed Ii plug. Stacy and Witbeck has assumed that the transportation of the insulated Joint
Plugs will be provided by UTA. SWI has also assumed that the work will be performed Sunday
during non-revenue hours without the impedance of any UTA trains. All worksites have been
assumed to be accessed via hi-rail equipment.

Bid Item 16000— Destress Track —12.00 EA - Total of $20,352.00- This bid item includes the
cost to distress the track form thermal forces 200 TF in each direction of the newly installed
Insulated Joint Plug for a total of 2400 TF twelve insulated joint plugs.

Bid Item 100000- Fee (5.25%) - Total of $36,410.00- This is the agreed to CMc5C fee that is
part of the new On Call Services Contract on the above bid items.

The tot& price for this sccpe of work is $729,934.00. If you have any questions, please contact
me.

Sincerely,
Stacy and Witbeck, Inc.

Brian Dagsland
Project Manager

On-Call Maintenance Contract # UT1 6-1 846TP



O8’31/20J8 11:48
18-620 7200 SollIll OCX &: Signal System Upgrade

Brian Dngsland, BD BID lOlALS

Bid tens Dose ii ption Gun otitv Units Unit Price Bid Tot at

000 Field Enginecrng & Project Controls 1(101) [S 19,929.00 9,02000
2000 SafetyProgram & Adissitustration 1.000 [5 2,019.00 2,019.00
600(1 Signal System Upgmde 1.0011 [.8 370,341.00 370,341 00
7000 OCX System Lpdates .000 LX 80,831.00 180,83 I 00
10000 Mobilization 1.000 LX 8,1 8i.00 8,188.00
4000 Insulated Joints Remove - Install Rail Plug vIWeld 4.000 LA 4381.00 17,52400

15000 Insulated Joint Plugs - I 2EA Tliennite Welds I Plug 12.000 EA 6.195,00 74,140 00
16000 Deslress Track 12.000 FA I .696.00 20,352.00

Subtotal £693,524.00

00000 Fcc (5.25%) 1.000 LX 36.41000 36,410.00

Bid Total —> 8729934.00

On-Call Maintenance Contract # UT 16-I 846TP



SOUTh \
Las 5-115-7(324)297, Salt Lake County

-15; SB 12300 South to SR-201
Utah Transit Authority

Charge ID No.71940 PIN 12587

PROJECT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
AMENDMENT No. I

FINANCE NUMBER 188645

This PROJECT REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT AMENDMENT NO I (“Agreement”), made and
entered into this day of___________ 2018, between the Utah Department of
Transportation, an agency of the State of Utah (“UDOT”) and Utah Transit Authority, a public
transit district organized pursuant to the Utah Public Transit District Act (‘UTA”). UDOT and UTA
may be referred to hereafter as an Agency or Agencies, as the context requires.

The Parties hereto entered into a Project Reimbursement Agreement, finance number 188645,
dated the 10th day of January, 2018. All the terms of the Project Reimbursement Agreement remain
in full force and effect unless otherwise specified herein.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree to amend the Project Reimbursement Agreement as follows:

1. Replace the first Whereas paragraph with the following:

WHEREAS, UDOT (the “Project Agency”) has awarded a design-build contract for the
highway Project identified as 5-115-7(324)297, 1-15; SB 12300 South to SR-201 in Salt Lake
County, Utah, (hereafter, the “Project”);

2. Add the following paragraph after the second Whereas paragraph:

WHEREAS, Upon review of the Work in the Project Reimbursement Agreement, UTA Trax
Operations have determined the single 7200 So interlocking system will not function properly
to safely operate UTA trains and provide sufficient communication through the proposed
cross-overs. Therefore, two independent interlocking systems located at Junction A (south
side of 7200 so. bridge) and Junction B (north side of 7200 So. bridge) will be created, and

3. Section 1 WORK AGENCY TRACK WORK.

Replace Exhibit A-2 that is incorporated by reference in Section 1 a. N. with the revised
Exhibit A-2.

In section 1 add the following after subsection d.

e. Work Agency will perform the engineering design and develop construction
drawings for the implementation and installation of Track Work needed to
establish two independent interlocking system in accordance with
submitted plans.

4. Section 2 CONTRACTOR TRACK WORK. Add the following in section 2 after subsection
iv.:

v. Provide and install 4 new track signals.

Page 1



in it S-115-7(324)297, Salt Lake County
1-15; SB 12300 Southto SR-201

Utah Transit Authority
Charge ID No.71940 PIN 12587

vi. Perform Track Driver eXtra (TDX)/Office design upgrades to accommodate wayside
signals and independent movements.

vii. Perform TDX/Office communication and integration system.
vhi. Install new communication conduit, fiber-optic cable, and communication cabinets.

ix. Provide and install necessary upgrades including, but not limited to, local control
panel, signal equipment, and wiring to convert Junction B signal cabinet to a “smart

house”.

5. Section 3 SCHEDULE. Add the following in section 3 after subsection b.:

c. Work Agency and Work Agency’s Contractor agree to perform additional Track
Work without requesting additional time. All Track Work will be completed by March
31, 2019.

6. Section 4 ESTIMATED COST. Replace the following:

In subsection a: replace the estimated costs amount of $578167 with the revised
estimated costs amount of $810,904.00 as per revised Exhibit B.

In subsection c.: replace the estimated costs amount of $2815950 with the revised
estimated costs amount of $3,545,884.00 as per revised Exhibit D.

7. Exhibit B ESTIMATE OF TRACK WORK PERFORMED BYWORKAGENCY.

Replace Exhibit B with the revised Exhibit B.

8. Exhibit D ESTIMATE OF TRACK WORK PERFORMED BY WORK AGENCY.

Replace Exhibit D with the revised Exhibit D.

Page 2



8-115-7(324)297, Salt Lake County
1-15; SB 12300 South to SR-201

Utah Transit Authority
Charge ID No.71940 PIN 12587

Agreement to be executed in duplicate as of the date first herein written.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY

By:

UTA Legal Date:

By:

RECOMMENDED FOR
APPROVAL:

UTAH DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION

Contracts Administrator

By:
Project Director

By:
Region Utility and Railroad
Coordinator

Date:

Reviewed:

By:
Statewide Utility and Railroads
Engineer

Date:

Approve as to Form:

By:
Assistant Attorney General

Date:

Date:

UDOT Comptroller’s Office

By:

Date:

Page 3



EXHIBIT B
ESTIMATE OF TRACK WORK PERFORMED BY WORK AGENCY

*Nagging services by the Roadway Worker In-Charge (RWIC) will be invoiced through the
License Agreement at $788 for an 8 hr shift and $1,058 for a 12 hr shift. Estimate above assumes
8 hr shifts.
**power Down services are billed at $600 each plus Admin staff and inspection tme.

cost estimated at $6,5009.750 for mobile notifications, ads, social media advertising
supplement and some printed materials.

Description Estimated Cost
1. Contract Administration (Est. 30 months) $27,072
2. Engineering and Construction Administration $15,900
3. Construction Oversight (assumes 30 months at approx. 20%) $83,655
4. Track Protection Services, assumes the following:
a. Flagging* (assumes RWIC for -1-50-225 days) $11 8,200185.180
b. Operations Switching (assumed over 30 month schedule) $7,29013.014
c. Power Down Services for Track Work** (estimated at E—12 $49,74858,658
weekends for Trackwork and 54-62 others for OCS work including
foundations)
d. Rail Operations Supervision $544O8.190
e. Track Operations (Scheduling. Platform hosts, PedMOT & $i72.95248.781
balTicades, PR, Bus Bridge assist, Track inspection/testing, etcj***
5. Bus Bridging (assumes 8-12 weekend shutdos of TRAX, Frida’y $97.888170.455
1 1 pm to Monday 5 am) I

Total Estimated Cost: j $5784é381O,904



EXHIBIT D

ESTIMATE OF TRACK WORK PERFORMED BY WORK AGENCY

Track work Qnty. Units Unit Estimated
Price Total Cost

Traffic & Pedestrian Control 1 LS $38,325 $38,325

Survey 1 LS $18,825 $18,825

Mobilization I LS $108,500 $108,500

Surface and Line Tracks Prior to Shutdowns 1400 TF $5.00 $7,000

Demo & Reconstruct West Bridge 300 TF $425 $127,500

Trackwork with PG
Demo & Redo East bridge Track EGR 55 TF $597 $32,835

Transition
Demo & Install New No 10 Turnouls 2 PA $84,500 $169,000

Demo & Install New No. 10 Diamond I EA $65,720 S65,720

Demo & Install New No.6 Turnouts 2 EA $63,525 $127,050

Demo Existing OCS Foundations 2 PA $2,750 $5,500

New OCS Foundations 14 PA $14,500 $203,000

New Downguy Foundations 4 EA $13,300 $53,200

Build Access Rd on South End of Project 600 LF $273 $163,800

(20’ wide)
Restore North Side Access Road 500 LF $28 $14,000

Systems Install and Testing 1 LS $1,250,500 $1,250,000500

Construction Contractor Fee (5.25%) 1 LS $125,200 $4-52125,200

Gas Utility Upgrade- Provisional Sum 1 LS $10,000 $10,000

Electric Utility Upgrade- Provisional Sum 1 LS $20,000 $20,000

Utility/Ductbank Conflict- Provisional Sum 1 LS $20,000 $20,000

Subtotal Estimated Cost $2,559,955

Contingency to advance to 100% design 1 LS $255,995 $255,995

and constrnction (10%)
SubtTotal Estimated $2,815,950

Cost
OCS and Signal System Upgrade Amendment

Field Enghteering & Proiect Control I LS $19,929 $19,929

Safety Program & Administration 1 LS $2,019 $2,019

Si System Lpgyade ± LS $370.341 $370341

OCS System Upgrades 1 LS $180,831 $180,831

Mobilization 1 LS $8jfl $8.188

Insulated Joint Remove — Install Rail Plugs 4 EA $4,381 $17524

with welds
Insulated Joint Plugs - 12 Ea Thermite 12 EA $6,195 $74,340

Welds / Plugs
Destress Track 12 EA $1,696 $Q,52

Subtotal Amendment $693,524
j? $36,410

Amendment Total Estimated Cost $729,934

Total Exhibit P Amended Estimated Cost $3,545,884





Rev.10/11/18

Action Requested:

Criteria:

Contract #: Contract Title:
Ultrasonic rail line 
testing

Project Manager: Contract Administrator: Amanda Burton

Impacted Areas: Included in budget? Yes

Procurement method: Contractor: TBD

Sole-Source Reason: Total Contract Value  $                    300,000 
Qty & Unit price

Contract term (Months) 60 Contract options (Months) 0

Contract start date: TBD Contract end date: TBD

TBD $ Value of Next Lowest Bidder  TBD 

Attachments: N/A (Pre-Procurement)

Detailed Contract Description & Purpose

18-2885AB

Dave Filby

Other attachments? (list)

Contract routing sheet attached?

The current contract is expiring and a new contract is needed for ongoing service.  This is for Ultrasonic rail line 
testing of Heavy and Light Rail lines to meet FRA requirements.  Ultrasonic testing evaluates the structure of 
the tracks to look for internal and external flaws.

Lowest Bidder (IFB)

Number of responding firms:

Detailed Description & Purpose:

(Items to include: Current condition, Benefits, Return on investment, Savings, Other alternatives considered)

Pre-Procurement (information only)

F&AC Review and/or Approval Date: 11/28/2018

Contract is $200,000 - $999,999

N/A

Light Rail and Heavy Rail lines



R57RSSREQ REQUISITION FOR PURCHASE-RSS

Requisition Number 5863 OU Department 4425 MOW - INFRASTRUCTURE Requested By 3611 Filby,David K Date 10/1(0,

Request Date

Title Annual UT Testing of Rails Justification This requisition is to get a 5 year contract for the Ultrasound testing of the

Light Rait and Frontrunnertrack.

Line Dearn,:ion Q:y - IJoM LThi: Price - Exiended Line Status Accouni Njn:ber Sibledger-Type Pr,reii:

l. Annua;UTTesringotRail 5 YR 60,cco.0000 30O,00O. Approved 4425.50353.92

Approval History

ProcessED Line No. ApproverNumberand Name ApproverAction Taken Date and Time Updaled

5724 OrderLevel 1456823 Hancoek,Davidw Approved 10/10/2018 141222

5724 OrderLevel 1317232 Edwards, Michael Paul Approved 10/15/2018 154127

5724 Order Level 1440978 Ctsmins, Donald F Approved 10/18/2018 145047

5724 Order Level 4835 Meyer, William Steven Approved 10/22/2018 142336

-- -

-:j’[,
“- r
- ,.c - -

-- -

a,

—


	2018-1128 Agenda_Board Meeting_FINAL
	3 10 NOV 18 safety poster
	5 2018-1114 Minutes_Board_OPEN_UNAPPROVED
	6a Board Dashboard September 2018
	Slide Number 1

	6b September 2018 Financial Statements
	Cover
	2018.09 Financials as of 10.26.2018
	EX1-1 KEY
	EX1-2 BS
	EX1-3 P&L
	EX1-4 MTD
	EX1-5 YTD
	EX1-6 CAP
	EX1-7 IPR
	EX1-8 IPR
	EX1-9 AR
	EX1-10 Disbursements


	7a R2018-11-01 Resolution Amending the Bylaws
	7b BYLAWS for new board 11-15-2018
	Section 1. Creation.
	Section 2. Duties.
	A. Trustees and Members shall act in the best interest of the Authority and in accordance with the Constitutions and laws of the United States of America and the State of Utah, the Act, as well as adopted policies.
	B. Trustees and Members have a duty to exercise due care, to act with reasonable skill and diligence, and to perform the duties of their office honestly, faithfully, and to the best of their abilities.
	C. Trustees and Members have a fiduciary duty to the entire transit district.  They have a duty of loyalty and shall articulate and consider the interests of constituencies in the District and then take actions based on the best interest of the entire...
	D. Trustees, Members, and their alternates have a duty to complete an annual Financial Disclosure Report, sign an annual Code of Conduct, provide prompt disclosure of conflict of interests, and recuse themselves from discussing or voting on issues for...
	E. Trustees and Members have a duty to comply with the State of Utah’s Government Records Access and Management Act and to maintain records consistent with applicable retention schedules adopted by the Authority.
	F. Trustees and Members have a duty to comply with the State of Utah’s Public Officers’ and Employees’ Ethics Act.
	G. Trustees and Members have a duty to maintain the confidentiality of non-public information obtained in their official capacities.  They shall not disclose or improperly use non-public information for actual or anticipated personal, economic, or pol...
	H. Each Trustee and Member shall report the business of the Authority to their appointing jurisdictions.

	Section 3. Oath of Office.
	ARTICLE II — THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES
	Section 1. Qualifications, Appointment, Number and Terms of Office.
	Section 2. Powers.
	Section 3. Compensation.
	Section 4. Board Officers.

	Section 5. Appointment of Board Officers.
	The Board Chair shall be appointed by the Governor of the State of Utah.  The Board shall appoint an Executive Director by an affirmative vote of a majority of the Board, as well as a Secretary, Treasurer, Comptroller, and Internal Auditor.
	Section 6. Responsibilities of Officers.
	C. Treasurer.
	D. Comptroller.
	E. Internal Auditor.

	Section 8. Removal of Officers.
	Section 9. Voting Rights and Quorum.

	ARTICLE III — THE LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD
	Section 1. Qualifications and Appointment.
	Section 4. Advisory Board Officers.
	Section 5. Election/Appointment of Advisory Board Officers.
	Section 9. Voting Rights and Quorum.

	ARTICLE IV — EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
	ARTICLE V —  COMMITTEES
	Section 1. Committees.
	Section 2. Committee on Accessible Transportation.
	Section 3. Pension Committee.
	Section 1. Open and Public Meetings.
	All meetings of the Board, its Committees, and the Advisory Board shall be open to the public and comply with the State of Utah’s Open and Public Meeting Act.

	Section 4. Notice of Meetings.
	Section 5. Minutes of Meetings.

	Section 6. Electronic Attendance at Meetings.
	ARTICLE VII — CONDUCTING BUSINESS
	Section 1. Resolutions, Orders and Ordinances — Vote Recorded.
	Section 3. Fiscal Year.
	Section 4. Principal Place of Business.
	Section 5. Budget.
	Section 6. Audit Reports.
	A. Annual Audit.
	The Board shall cause an annual audit of the Authority’s financial statements to be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards following the end of each fiscal year and in compliance with the Act.  The audit shall be performed ...
	B. Other Audits.
	In consultation with the Advisory Board, the Board may cause audits other than the annual audit to be made, which shall be made available in compliance with the Act.



	8a R2018-11-02 Approving Disposition of Orem Bus Transfer Center
	8b 1040_UTA-PSA-PEX_20181116 (Orem Transfer Facility)
	9a R2018-11-03 Approving Provo-Orem ROW Real Estate Acquisition Contract
	9b 137  ROW contract w Exhibits
	10 2018-1128 Contract Tracker (v1 tmills)
	Sheet1

	10a.1 R2018-11-04 Authorizing Execution of Contract with Michelin North American, Inc. for  Bus Tire Lease
	10a.2 2018-1128 Bus tire lease services_Contract_Summary (tmills v1)
	Sheet1

	10a.3 2018-1128 Bus tire lease services_Contract_Routing (tmills v1)
	10a.4 2018-1128 Bus tire lease services_Contract (tmills v1)
	10b.1 R2018-11-05 Authorizing Execution of Contract with Stantec Architecture, Inc. for Professional Engineering Services
	10b.2 2018-1128 Depot District A&E Services_Contract_Summary (tmills v1)
	Sheet1

	10b.3 2018-1128 Depot District A&E Services_Contract_Routing (tmills v1)
	10b.4 2018-1128 Depot District A&E Services_Contract (tmills v1)
	10c.1 R2018-11-06 Authorizing Execution of Contract Amendment with Stadler for Extension of Lease Agreement
	10c.2 2018-1128 Stadler Lease Extension_Change order_Summary (aroyle v2)
	Sheet1

	10c.3 2018-1128 Stadler_Contract_Routing
	10c.4 2018-1128 Stadler Lease Extension_Change order_Contract (tmills v1)
	10d.1 2018-1128 7200 S TRAX Bridge Replacement_Contract_Summary (tmills v1)
	Sheet1

	10d.2 2018-1128 7200 S TRAX Bridge replacement_Contract_Routing (tmills v1)
	10d.3 2018-1128 7200 S TRAX Bridge replacement_Contract (tmills v1)
	11a.1 2018-1128 Ultrasonic rail line testing_Pre-procurement_Summary (tmills v1)
	Sheet1

	11a.2 2018-1128 Ultrasonic rail line testing_Pre-procurement_Requisition (tmills v1)

	HOME: 


